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CoMMONWEALTH oF KENTUCKY
OFFIcE oF THE GOVERNOR

ErRNIE FLETCHER 700 CaPITOL AVENUE
GOVERNOR Surre 100
FrRaNkForRT, Ky 40601
(502) 564-261 1
Fax: (802) 564-2517

December 23, 2004

My Fellow K entuckians:

I am pleased to present the Commonwealth of Kentucky’s Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended June 30, 2004. This report conforms to the
highest standards of financial reporting and reflects our commitment to sound financial
management and strengthening of the financial condition of the Commonwealth.

This report has been prepared by the Finance and Administration Cabinet, Office
of the Controller, Division of Statewide Accounting Services, and audited by the
independent Office of the Auditor of Public Accounts. It complies with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America for State Governments as
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board and the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants for measuring and reporting the financial
activity of the government.

The information contained herein fairly presents and fully discloses all
appropriate financial information required for citizens, business leaders, investors and
creditors to understand and evaluate the Commonwealth’s financial condition.

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER M/F/D
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ERNIE FLETCHER OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY ROBBIE RUDOLPH
GOVERNOR Finance and Administration Cabinet Secretary
383 CarPiToL ANNEX
FrankFort, KENTuckY 40601
(502) 564-4240
(502) 564-6785 Fax

December 23, 2004

The Honorable Ernie Fletcher
Governor, Commonwealth of Kentucky
The Capitol Building

Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Dear Governor Fletcher:
INTRODUCTION

Section 48.800 (3) of theK entucky Revised Statutes (K .R.S.) requiresthe Financeand Admini stration Cabinet to submit
acompletereport of thefinancial transactionsof thepreceding year and of thefinancial condition of the Commonwealth
asof theend of that fiscal year. In accordancewith thisstatute, it ismy pleasureto transmit to you the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report of the Commonwealth of Kentucky for the Fiscal Y ear Ended June 30, 2004. Thisreport is
prepared by the Finance and Administration Cabinet, Office of the Controller, Division of Statewide Accounting
Services, which assumes responsibility for the accurate, complete, and fair presentation of the data contained herein.
The information presented fully describes the Commonwealth’s financial position and results of operations of the
primary government and component unitsfor whichitisfinancially accountable. All appropriate disclosuresnecessary
for the reader to gain the maximum understanding of Kentucky’sfinancia affairs areincluded.

Thereport ispresented in three sections: introductory, financial, and statistical. Theintroductory section includesthe
transmittal letters, the 2003 Certificate of Achievement award, organizational chart and list of principal officials. The
financial section includes: the auditor’s report on the Basic Financial Statements; Management’s Discussion and
Analysis(MD&A) which provides an introduction, overview and analysisto the “Basic Financial Statements” which
present the government-wide financial statements and fund financial statements for governmental funds, proprietary
funds, fiduciary funds, and component units, together with footnotes to the Basic Financial Statements; Required
Supplementary Information other thanMD& A, which presentsbudgetary compari son schedul esand i nformation about
infrastructure assets; and the supplemental financial data which includes the combining financial statements and
schedules. The statistical section includes such items as trend information, debt information and other selected
economicand statistical data. Special attention shouldbegiventotheMD& A whichisdesigned to accompany theletter
of transmittal. TheCommonwealth’ SMD& A islocatedintheFinancial Sectiondirectly followingtheAuditors' Report.

The accompanying financial statements have been audited by the Office of the Auditor of Public Accounts of the
Commonwealth of Kentucky. Their examination was conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. The independent auditor concluded that
the Commonwealth of Kentucky’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2004, are fairly presented in
conformity with GAAP. Thereport of the independent auditor appears elsewherein this report.



PROFILE OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
The Reporting Entity and 1ts Services

Thisreport includes all funds and component units for which the Commonwealth isfinancially accountable, based on
criteriaestablished by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’ s Statement 14 asamended by GASB 39. The
component units which are blended into the Commonwealth’ s primary government and function as actual parts of the
Commonwealth are: the State Property and Buildings Commission, Kentucky Asset/Liability Commission, Kentucky
Lottery Corporation, Turnpike Authority of Kentucky, Board of Agriculture, Kentucky Savings Bond Authority,
Kentucky Tobacco Settlement Trust Corporation, Judicial Form Retirement System, Kentucky Retirement System, and
Kentucky Teachers' Retirement System.

The Commonwealth’s discretely presented component units are: the Bluegrass State Skills Corporation, Kentucky
School Facilities Construction Commission, Kentucky River Authority, Kentucky State Fair Board, Kentucky Center
for the Arts Corporation, Kentucky Educational Television Authority, Kentucky Economic Development Finance
Authority, Kentucky Higher Education Assistance Authority, Kentucky Housing Corporation, Kentucky Infrastructure
Authority, Kentucky Artisan Center, Kentucky Agricultural Finance Corporation, Kentucky GrainInsurance Corporation,
Kentucky L ocal Correctional FacilitiesConstruction Authority, Kentucky Access, K entucky Community and Technical
College System, the eight state-supported universities, and the Council on Post Secondary Education.

Additional detailedinformation pertai ningto Commonweal th’ scomponent unitsislocated withinthe Financial Section
(particularly Note 1) of thisreport.

The Commonwealth and | ts Services

L ocated in south central United States along the west side of the Appal achian M ountains, Kentucky was once apart of
Virginia. After its split with Virginia, Kentucky retained its “commonwealth” (meaning government based on the
consent of the people) status and adopted its Constitution in 1792. The Commonwealth provides the full range of
servicescontemplated by statute, including economic devel opment, educational and human services, energy and natural
resourcesmanagement, law enforcement, correctional and public protection services, transportation, publicimprovements,
andgeneral legislative, administrative, andjudicial services. TheCommonwealth’ schief executiveisthe Governor who
ispopularly elected every four years and may servefor two terms. Policiesare directed through the various Cabinets.
The General Assembly, or state L egislature, has two components: the Senate and the House of Representatives. The
Senate has 38 memberswho are el ected to four-year termsand the House has 100 memberswho are el ected to two-year
terms. The Legislature meets annually and has the power to enact all laws, subject to limits imposed by the state
constitution. Revenue-raising issues must be presented in the House. All other bills may be introduced by either the
House or the Senate.

Budgetary Controls

The Commonwealth usesabiennial budget to assist with planning and control duties. Budgetary control ismaintained
at the budget unit level, described in the notes to the Required Supplementary Information. Encumbrance accounting
is utilized to insure the availability of funding before contracts are finalized. Contracts which result in overruns of
available balances are not released until budget revisions are approved. Outstanding encumbrances for long-term
construction projects in the Transportation Fund and the Capital Projects Fund are reported as reservations of fund
balance. Encumbrancesin all other fundslapse at the end of the fiscal year.



ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK
National Economy

Therecent recession lasted just eight monthsand was officially over in November 2001, but the economy seemsto have
remainedinthedoldrumsfor muchlonger. Historically, atypical contractionisfollowed by asharpreboundinresponse
to factorsrelated to pent-up demand and low inventories. However, thisdid not happen in asustained way during this
recovery. Tostimulatetheeconomy, thefederal government adopted an aggressivefiscal policy intheform of tax cuts,
andthe Federal Reserveloweredinterest rates. The combined effect of these policiesfinally prodded the economy onto
apath of strong recovery.

Initially increased economic output, measured by real gross domestic product (GDP) increased. The greater output,
however, did not translateinto morejobsin either thenation or Kentucky. Then, beginningin January 2004, employment
started picking up and so did consumer confidence.

Real GDPisestimated to have grown by arobust 4.6 percent during fiscal year 2004, following growth ratesof just 0.7
percentinfiscal year 2002 and 2.6 percent in fiscal year 2003. The strong growth confirmsthat therecessionisfinally
over. During the next two years, real GDP is expected to increase by 4.5 percent in fiscal year 2005 and 3.0 percent
in fiscal year 2006.

Real consumption for fiscal year 2004 was up 4.1 percent, rebounding strongly from the 2.8 percent growth seen ayear
ago. Historically low interest rates|ured consumers to purchase big-ticket items, driving the consumption of durable
goods up by 10.1 percent. The strongest gain during the year wasin the purchase of furniture (up 13.6 percent) andin
motor vehicles and parts (up 7.5 percent). Consumer confidence, as displayed by the purchase of houses and
automobiles, isimpacted by economic reality and “feel good” factors. However, the 8.6 percent increase in business
investmentinfiscal year 2004 meant that businesseswerewilling to expand capacity and employ new capital inthebelief
that the recovery waswell entrenched.

U.S. personal incomewas up 4.7 percent in fiscal year 2004 and is forecasted to increase by 5.9 percent in fiscal year
2005 and 5.1 percent infiscal year 2006. The employment pictureis expected to change during the next two yearswith
strong growth rates of 2.0 and 1.7 percent.

Kentucky's Economy

Followingtherecovery inU.S. grossdomestic product (it surged by 8.2 percent inthe July-to-September quarter of fiscal
year 2004), expectations for asimilar recovery were high for the Kentucky economy. Unfortunately, the growth in
national GDPfailed to translateinto arebound in Kentucky’ s employment and income during thefirst half of theyear.
Increased investment in infrastructure during the “ new economy” surge of the 1990s paid off in terms of productivity
improvements. Thus, anincreasein output did not initially translate into an increase in Kentucky employment in the
high-wage manufacturing sector.

By the second half of fiscal year 2004, however, employment began to increasein Kentucky. Overall, nonagricultural
employment growth for theyear was0.2 percent, the sameasthe national average. Service-providingindustries, which
comprisealittleover 60 percent of all empl oyment, postedjob gainsof 1.0 percent. Employment inthegoods-producing
sector, which provides jobs for about one-fifth of Kentucky, declined by 0.6 percent. Employment in government
declined by 1.9 percent.

As the economy firms up during the next two years, employment is forecasted to show strong gains. Total
nonagricultural employment isexpected to be up by 1.7 percent in fiscal year 2005 and 1.5 percent in fiscal year 2006.
Thenet job gain during thetwo-year period isestimated at 58,300. Manufacturing employment isexpected to rebound
and post gains of 1.8 and 1.0 percent during the current biennium.

Personal incomeisameasure of spending power. Kentucky’ spersonal incomegrowthinfiscal year 2004 averaged 4.8
percent, compared to 4.7 percent nationally. The wage and salary component grew by 3.5 percent. The slim growth



inthewage component isduetotheslow employment recovery, especially inthetraditional ly high-wagemanufacturing
and business services sectors. Infiscal year 2005, Kentucky’s personal incomeis expected to rebound with again of
5.6 percent, followed by 4.7 percent growth in fiscal year 2006.

Long-Term Financial Planning

Kentucky has by statute (KRS 48.705) a set goal of maintaining aBudget Reserve Trust Fund (BRTF) balance of five
percent of general fund revenues. As of June 30, 2004, the BRTF was approximately $300 million short of thisgoal.
TheBRTFwasreducedtothislevel aspart of the budget bal ancing measures of the previousadministration. The Fund
wastappedto supplement revenueshortfallsinfiscal year 2001 andfiscal year 2002, tofinanceessential publicservices.
Itisthepolicy of the current administration to earmark aportion of any year-end surplusto replenishthe BRTFin order
to achieve the desired balance.

Major Initiatives

Fiscal year 2004 was an unusual, if not unique, year in Kentucky’ s recent fiscal history. Most notably, the year was
marked by gubernatorial transition, asignificant formal budget reduction action, legisl ativefailureto enact the biennial
budget, and a modest upturn in the state’ s economy and revenue collections nearing the end of the fiscal period.

Thefiscal year began in July 2003 with implementation of the Executive and Judicial Branch budgets that had been
enacted by theGeneral Assembly inthe2003 Regular Session. ThismarkedthefirsttimeinKentucky’ smodern political
history inwhichthe General Assembly had enacted abiennial budget inits“oddyear” and “ short session.” That action
occurred inthe odd year session because the 2002 Regular Session of the General Assembly and a subsequent Special
Session of the General Assembly ended without enacting biennial budgets for the Executive and Judicial Branches of
government. Ultimately, when the General Assembly convened in Regular Session in February and March of 2003, it
took theactionit had previously deferred—afirstin Kentucky history. That 2003 Session of the General Assembly then
enacted a budget for the remainder of the 2002-2004 biennium.

The budget that was enacted was a very lean one reflecting across-the-board cutbacks in spending compared with an
“Executive Branch Spending Plan” and “Judicial Branch Spending Plan” under which Kentucky government had
operated during the period July 1, 2002 — March 22, 2003, in the absence of legislatively enacted budgets. Both the
Governor and Chief Justice of the Supreme Court had issued Executive Orders at the outset of fiscal year 2003 to set
forth spending parameters for their respective branches of government in the absence of legislatively conferred
appropriations.

In November 2003, Kentucky €lected anew Governor upon the expiration of the previous Governor’ sterm of office.
For the first time in 32 years, the gubernatorial election in Kentucky resulted in a change of political partiesin the
Governor’sOffice. No sooner had the new Administration taken officethanit wasconfronted by asignificant shortfall
in revenues compared to the belated budget enacted by the 2003 Session of the General Assembly for fiscal year 2004.

In response, in January 2004, the new Governor executed an Official Budget Reduction Order reducing or realigning
state spending by $302 millionfor theremainder of fiscal year 2004. Thisactionwascompleted theday beforethe 2004
Regular Session of the General Assembly convened.

Whenthe General Assembly adjournedin April 2004, for thesecondtimeinthe Commonweal th’ shistory and the second
consecutivebiennial sessionit did sowithout enacting abudget for the Executive Branch. Whilethe Governor indicated
that “he would call a Special Session of the General Assembly should a consensus on a budget emerge between the
L eadership of respective Legislative Chambers,” no consensus emerged prior to the close of the fiscal year and no
Special Session was convened. At the same time, during the final months of the fiscal year, state revenues began to
accrue in excess of the amounts estimated by the Consensus Forecasting Group in its December forecast that had
triggered the issuance of the Governor’s Budget Reduction Order in January. This late year upturn enabled the
Commonwealth to closethe fiscal year with amodest surplus compared to the mid-year estimates. Nonetheless, even
with thislate year upturn, the additional revenuesrealized at year end totaled fewer dollars than the amounts that had



already been cut from the budget in the January Reduction Order. Thus, thefiscal year concluded on abrighter revenue
note than what had been experienced in several fiscal years, even though revenue collections still did not meet the
estimates upon which the enacted budget for fiscal year 2004 had been predicated.

Ashad occurredtwoyearspreviously intheabsenceof alegidlatively enacted budget for the Executive Branch, just prior
totheend of thefiscal year, the Governor issued an Executive Order setting forth a* Public Services Continuation Plan”

for the Executive Branch. Thisspending plan set out an allocation of dollarsfor each state agency for thefirst quarter
of fiscal year 2005. Immediately the Order was challenged by a number of groups who filed suit against its
implementation seeking to enjoin or otherwise restrict the Governor and Executive Branch from operating absent a
legislatively enacted budget. However, whenthefiscal year 2004 ended andfiscal year 2005 beganon July 1, theCircuit
Court declinedto grant aninjunction or other relief to the plaintiffsand the Executive Branch continued operating under
the parameters of the Governor’ s Executive Order (the Public Services Continuation Plan).

It should be noted that the Public Services Continuation Plan did not permit all normal financial activities of the
government to continue. It specifically omitted all new revenue bond issues and the capital projects that they would
normally support. A Judicial Order issued in July 2004 expressly prohibited spending on any “new programs or
projects.”

Asof late October 2004, the Executive Branch of the Commonwealth continued to operate under the Public Services
Continuation Plan for which the Governor issued a second quarter authorization by Executive Order 2004-1092 dated
September 30, 2004.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The Accounting System

The Commonwealth’ sfinancial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (GAAP). Additional discussions of the various funds and how they are reported are
located in the Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section of this report.

In developing and operating the Commonwealth’s accounting system, management of the Commonwealth placed
emphasison the adequacy of internal accounting controls. The comprehensiveinternal control framework isdesigned
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded against |oss from unauthorized use or
disposition, and that financial records arereliablefor preparing GAAPfinancia statementsthat are freefrom material
misstatement and maintaining accountability for assets. The concept of reasonabl e assurance recognizes that the cost
of internal controls should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived from their use, and that such cost-benefit
evaluation requires estimates and judgments by management. All internal control evaluations occur within this
framework.

Debt Administration
The amount of debt service for general bonded debt, the ratio of this amount to total expenditures for general

governmental functions, and the amount of debt per capitaare useful indicatorsto citizens, investors, and management
regarding the Commonwealth’ s debt position. The datafor 2004 are:

Ratio to Tota Per Capita
Debt Service (thousands) General Governmental Expenditures Debt
Genera Bonded Debt $545,642 3.5% $779

No general obligation bonds were authorized or outstanding at June 30, 2004.

A detailed analysis of the Commonwealth’s debt issuance during the fiscal year ended 2004 is presented in Note 15.



OTHER INFORMATION
Certificate of Achievement for Excellencein Financial Reporting

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellencein Financial Reporting to the Commonweal th of Kentucky for its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2003. Thisisthe seventeenth consecutive year the Commonwealth has
received this prestigious award.

Inorder to beawarded aCertificate of Achievement, agovernmental unit must publish an easily readableand efficiently
organized comprehensive annual financial report, the contents of which conform to program standards. Such reports
must satisfy both accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and applicable legal
requirements.

TheCertificateof Achievementisvalidfor aperiod of oneyear only. Webelieveour current report continuesto conform
to the Certificate of Achievement Program requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA.

Acknowledgments
The preparation of thisreport could not have been accomplished without the cooperation of all branches and agencies
of the Commonwealth. The professionalism demonstrated by the staffs of the Finance and Administration Cabinet’s

Divisions of Statewide Accounting Services and Printing, aswell as the Office of the Auditor of Public Accounts, is
especially noteworthy. Their combined dedication made the publication of this report possible.

Respectfully submitted,

ARt pl, §-

R.B. Rudolph, Jr., Secretary
Finance and Administration Cabinet

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER M/F/D
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Finance and Administration Cabinet

ERNIE FLETCHER Office of the Controller Edgar C. Ross
Governor Capitol Annex Building Controller
ROBBIE RUDOLPH 702 Capital Avenue, Room 393
Secretary Frankfort, Kentucky 40601-3448

(502) 564-2210
Fax (502) 564-5697

December 23, 2004

The Honorable Robbie Rudolph

Secretary, Finance and Administration Cabinet
383 New Capitol Annex

Frankfort, Kentucky

Dear Secretary Rudol ph:

Pursuant to Section 48.800 (3) of the Kentucky Revised Statutes, the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) of the Commonweal th of K entucky for thefiscal year ended June 30, 2004,
is submitted herewith. It contains all funds of the primary government and component units for
whichitisfinancially accountable, based onthe criteriadevel oped by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB).

Thebasi sof accounting uponwhichthereport hasbeen prepared complieswith accounting principles
generally acceptedintheUnited Statesof Americafor stategovernmentsasprescribed by both GASB
andthe AmericanInstituteof Certified Public Accountants' (AICPA) publication Auditsof Stateand
Local Governments.

The information presents fairly and fully discloses the financial position and results of financial
operationsof the Commonwealth for thereporting period asmeasured by thefinancial activity of the
various funds. All appropriate disclosures necessary to assist readers in their understanding and
evaluation of Kentucky’s financial condition have been included in this report.

Respectfully submitted,

A

Edgar C. Ross, Controller

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER M/F/D
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Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Commonwealth of Kentucky

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2003

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.
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CRIT LUALLEN
AubiTor oF PuBLic AccounNTs

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the People of Kentucky
The Honorable Ernie Fletcher, Governor
Robbie Rudolph, Secretary
Finance and Administration Cabinet

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each magjor fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2004, which collectively comprise the Commonwealth’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Commonwealth’s management.
Our responsibility isto express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We did not audit the financial statements of some of the entities that comprise the Commonwealth of
Kentucky. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been
furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar asit relates to the amounts included for those component units and
funds is based upon the reports of the other auditors. Those entities were;

Certain portions of the Governmental Fundsincluding:
* Debt Service Fund - Turnpike Authority *  Specia Revenue Fund - Turnpike Authority
Certain portions of the Proprietary Fundsincluding:

*  Kentucky Horse Park
*  Kentucky Lottery Corporation
e Within the Insurance Administration Fund:
o Kentucky Coal Workers' Pneumoconiosis
o Kentucky Workers' Compensation Fund
o The Underground Storage Tank Branch - formerly known as the Petroleum Storage Tank
Environmental Assurance Program

Certain portions of the Risk Management fundswithin the Internal Service Funds:

e State Workers' Compensation Program e Transportation Cabinet’s Self-Insured Workers
Compensation Trust Program

Certain Fiduciary Fundsincluding:

e Pension Trust Funds

105 SEA HeErRO ROAD, SUITE 2 TELEPHONE 502.573.0050

FRanNKFORT, KY 40601-5404 FAcsiIMILE 502.573.0067
WWW.AUDITOR.KY.GOV

An EguaL OrrorTuNiTYy EMpPLover M / F / D
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To the People of Kentucky
The Honorable Ernie Fletcher, Governor
Robbie Rudolph, Secretary
Finance and Administration Cabinet
Page 2

Component Units:

*  Bluegrass State Skills Corporation e Kentucky Infrastructure Authority
*  Kentucky Center for the Arts Corporation e Kentucky Local Correctional Facilities
*  Kentucky Economic Development Finance Construction Authority
Authority ¢ Kentucky River Authority
*  Kentucky Educational Television Authority e Kentucky State Fair Board
*  Kentucky Higher Education Assistance e Kentucky Housing Corporation
Authority

Component Units - Colleges and Universitiesand related entities:

*  University of Kentucky e University of Louisville

e Eastern Kentucky University ¢ Kentucky State University

*  Morehead State University e Murray State University

*  Northern Kentucky University *  Western Kentucky University

*  Kentucky Community and Technical College e Kentucky Council on Postsecondary Education

System

Those financial statements reflect total assets and revenues of the government-wide financial statements
and total assets and revenues or additions of the fund financial statements as follows:

Government-Wide Financial Statements: Percent of Assets  Percent of Revenues
Primary Government - Governmental Activities 1.84% 0.47%
Primary Government - Business-Type Activities 52.01% 66.24%
Component Units 99.24% 96.59%

Fund Financial Statements:

Governmental Funds - Non-Mgjor Funds 44.14% 7.46%

Proprietary Funds - Business-Type Activities - 50.93% 64.72%
Enterprise Funds

Proprietary Funds - Governmental Activities - 2.92% 14.86%
Internal Service Funds

Fiduciary Funds - Pension Trust Funds 100.00% 100.00%

Component Units 99.24% 96.59%

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financia statements. An audit aso includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evauating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our
opinions.
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To the People of Kentucky
The Honorable Ernie Fletcher, Governor
Robbie Rudolph, Secretary
Finance and Administration Cabinet
Page 3

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above, present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, as of June 30, 2004, and
the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 16 through 23, budgetary comparison schedules and
corresponding notes on pages 102 through 121, and information about infrastructure assets reported using
the modified approach on pages 122 and 123, and claims development information for entity risk pools on
page 124, are not required parts of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We and the other auditors have applied certain
limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Commonwealth of Kentucky’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund
statements and schedules - non-major funds, presented in this report on pages 127 through 171 are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements of
the Commonwealth of Kentucky. This information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in our audit of the basic financia statements and in the audits performed by other auditors and, in our
opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, is fairly presented, in al material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The Introductory and Statistical sections
presented in this report on pages 1 through 10 and 173 through 184 are also presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. This information has not
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue our report on our consideration of
the Commonwealth of Kentucky's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

Respectfully submitted,

(o5t iy

Crit Luallen
Auditor of Public Accounts

December 23, 2004
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MANAGEMENT’SDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of the Commonwealth of Kentucky’s Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR) presentsadiscussion and analysisof the State’ sfinancial performanceduring thefiscal year ended June
30, 2004. 1t issupplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting StandardsBoard (GASB) andis
intended to providean easily readabl e explanation of theinformationinthebasicfinancial statements. It should beread
inconjunctionwiththeadditional informationthat isfurnishedintheletter of transmittal, which can befound preceding
this narrative, and with the Commonwealth’ sfinancial statementswhich follow.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS- PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Government-WideHighlights:

The assets of the Commonwealth governmental activities exceeded itsliabilitiesat fiscal year ending June 30, 2004 by
$16.7 billion, anincrease of $344 millionrelated to current year activity. Liabilitiesof the Commonwealth’ sbusiness-
type activities exceeded assets by $82 million, a decrease in net assets of $33 million related to current year activity.
Total net assets increased by $311 million to $16.6 billion.

The assets of component units exceeded liabilities at fiscal year ending June 30, 2004 by $4.93 billion, an increase of
$366 million related to current year activity.

Fund Highlights:

As of the close of the fiscal year 2004, the Commonwealth’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balancesof $2.03 billion, adecreaseof $74 millionin comparisonwiththeprior year. Of thistotal anount, $1.03 billion
wasreserved and thebal ance of approximately $999 millionwasunreserved. Theunreserved undesignated fund balance
of the General Fund was $304 million at June 30, 2004.

Enterprisefundsreported net assets of $(82) million, of which $640 million wasrestricted or invested in capital assets,
and the balance of $(722) million was unrestricted.

Long-Term Debt:

The Commonwealth’ s total long-term debt obligations (bonds and notes payabl€) increased by $177 million to $3.41
billionduring the current fiscal year. Thisincreaseisdueto theissuance of new debt by the Commonwealth’ s Primary
Government during fiscal year 2004. Additional details of these activities can be found in Note 15 beginning on Page
87.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TheCommonwealth’ shasic financial statementsinclude: (1) government-widefinancial statements, (2) fund financial
statements, and (3) notestothefinancial statements. Thisreport alsoincludesother required supplementary information
(General and Special Revenue Fund budgetary schedules; condition and maintenance data regarding infrastructure;
and claimsdevel opment infor mation) and other supplementary information (combining financial statements). Each of
these componentsis described below.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Government-Wide Financial Statements provide a broad view of the Commonwealth’ s operations in a manner
similar to aprivate-sector business. These statementsreport financial information about the entire government except
fiduciary activities. The statements provide both short-term and long-term information about the Commonwealth’s
financia position, which assists in assessing the Commonwealth’s economic condition at the end of the fiscal year.
Theseare prepared using theflow of economic resources measurement focusand the accrual basisof accounting. They
takeinto account all revenuesand expensesof thefiscal year evenif no cash hasbeenreceived or paid. Thegovernment-
wide financial statements include two statements: The Statement of Net Assets shows the financial position of the
Commonwealth at the end of the fiscal year. The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the
government’ s financial position has changed since the beginning of the fiscal year.

Both of the above financia statements have separate sections for three different types of state programs or activities.
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These three types of activities are:
Governmental Activities—Theactivitiesinthissectionaremostly supported by taxesandintergovernmental
revenues (federal grants). Most services normally associated with State government fall into this category.
Internal Service Fund balances are reported as a part of governmental activities.

Business-Type Activities— These functions normally are intended to recover al or asignificant portion of
their costs through user fees and charges to external users of goods and services provided by the State. The
busi ness-typeactivitiesof the Commonweal thincludetheoperationsof various Enterprise Fundsaslisted | ater

inthetext.

Discretely Presented Component Units— These are operations for which the Commonwealth has financial
accountability but which possesscertai nindependent qualitiesaswell. MoreinformationontheCommonwealth's
discretely presented component units can be found in Note 1 on Page 53.

The government-wide financial statements can be found immediately following this discussion and analysis.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund isagrouping of related accountsthat is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for
specificactivitiesor objectives. Somefundsarerequiredto beestablished by Statelaw or bond covenantsand additional
funds are established for management and fiscal control of resources.

Thefund financial statementsfocus on activities of State government. All of the funds of the Commonwealth can be
divided intothree categories: Governmental Funds, Proprietary Funds, and Fiduciary Funds. Itisimportant to notethat
these fund categories use different accounting approaches and should be interpreted differently.

Table 1, below, summarizes the major features of the basic financial statements and how they relate to one another

Table 1. Major Features of the Commonwealth of Kentucky’s Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-Wide
Financial Statements

Governmental

Fund Financial Statements

Proprietary

Fiduciary

Scope

Entire government (except
fiduciary funds) and the
Commonwealth's
component units.

The activities of the
Commonwealth that are not
proprietary or fiduciary.

Activities of the
Commonwealth that are
similar to private
businesses.

Instances where the
Commonwealth is the
trustee for someone else’s
resources.

Required Financial
Statements

*Statement of Net Assets

*Statement of Activities

*Balance Sheet

*Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances

*Statement of Net Assets

*Statement of Changes in
Net Assets
* Statement of Cash Flows

*Statements of Fiduciary
Net Assets

*Statement of Changes in
Fiduciary Net Assets

Accounting Basis and
Measurement Focus

Accrual accounting and
economic resources
measurement

Modified accrual accounting
and current financial
resources focus

Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus

Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus

Type of Asset/Liability
Information

All assets and liabilities,
both financial and capital,
and short-term and long-
term

Only assets expected to be
used up and liabilities that
come due during the year or
soon thereafter, no capital
assets included

All assets and liabilities,
both financial, and capital,
and short-term and long-
term

All assets and liabilities,
both short-term and long-
term

Type of Inflow -
Outflow Information

All revenues and expenses
during the year, regardless
of when cash is received
or paid

Revenues for which cash is
received during or soon after
the end of the year and
expenditures when goods or
services have been received
and payment is due during the
year or soon thereafter.

All revenues and expenses
during the year, regardless
of when cash is received or
paid

All revenues and expenses
during the year, regardless
of when cash is received or
paid

17




NotestotheFinancial Statements- Notestothefinancial statementsprovideinformation necessary tofully understand
the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. They are an integral part of the financial
statements and focus on the primary government and its activities.

Required Supplementary | nfor mation - InadditiontothisManagement’ sDiscussionand Analysis, whichisrequired
supplementary information, the basic financial statements are followed by a section of required supplementary
information that further explains and supports the information contained in the financial statements.

Other Supplementary Information - Supplementary information includes the introductory section and combining
financia statements for non-major governmental funds, non-major discretely presented component units, and the
individual internal service funds, fiduciary funds and statistical section.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net Assets

Net assets may serve as auseful indicator of agovernment’sfinancial position. The Commonwealth’s combined net
assets (governmental and business-type activities) totaled $16.6 billion at theend of 2004, ascompared to $16.2 billion
at the end of the previous year.

At $17.4 billion, the largest portion of the Commonwealth’s net assets is invested in capital assets (e.g. land,
infrastructures, buildingsandimprovementsand machinery and equipment), lessany related debt used to acquirethose
assetsthat isstill outstanding. The Commonwealth usesthese capital assetsto provideservicestoitscitizens; therefore,
these assets are not available for future spending.

The second largest portion of the Commonwealth’s net assets, totaling $1.38 hillion, is restricted and represents
resources that are subject to either external restrictions or legislative restrictions on how they may be used. The
remaining balance is unrestricted net assets. The unrestricted net assets, which if positive could be used at the
Commonwealth’s discretion, showed a negative balance of $2.2 billion. Therefore, no funds were available for
discretionary purposes. A contributing factor tothenegativebal anceisthat liabilitiesarerecognized onthegovernment-
wide statement of net assets when the obligation isincurred. Accordingly, the Commonwealth recognizes long-term
liabilities (such as general bonded debt, compensated absences, unfunded employer pension cost, and contingent
liabilities-shown in Note 15 to the financial statements) on the statement of net assets.

Table 2 below presentsthe Commonwealth’ s condensed statement of net assets as of June 30, 2003 and June 30, 2004,
derived from the government-wide Statement of Net Assets.

Table 2: Condensed Statement of Net Assets ( Expressed in Thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Current Assets $ 3,526,169 $ 2,303,761  $ 600,698 $ 627,240 $ 4,126,867 $ 2,931,001
Capital Assets 18,424,452 17,763,532 257,858 249,449 18,682,310 18,012,981
Other Assets 1,237,855 1,345,234 509,248 568,613 1,747,103 1,913,847
Total Assets 23,188,476 21,412,527 1,367,804 1,445,302 24,556,280 22,857,829
Non Current Liabilities 4,271,975 3,998,777 1,374,578 1,446,270 5,646,553 5,445,047
Other Liabilities 2,245,937 1,143,372 75,137 59,774 2,321,074 1,203,146
Total Liabilities 6,517,912 5,142,149 1,449,715 1,506,044 7,967,627 6,648,193
Invested in Capital Assets
Net of Related Debt 17,156,329 16,368,574 257,794 249,023 17,414,123 16,617,597
Restricted 994,827 1,189,894 382,173 464,354 1,377,000 1,654,248
Unrestricted (1,480,592) (1,288,090) (721,878) (774,119) (2,202,470) (2,062,209)
Total Net Assets $ 16,670,564 $ 16,270,378 $ (81,911) $ (60,742) $ 16,588,653 $ 16,209,636
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Changesin Net Assets
The revenues and expenses information, as shown in Table 3, was derived from the government-wide Statement of
Activities and reflects how the Commonwealth’s net assets changed during fiscal year 2004. The Commonwealth
received program revenues of $7.3 billion and general revenuesof $8.5 hillionfor total revenuesof $15.8 billionduring
Fiscal Y ear 2004. Expensesfor the Commonwealthduring Fiscal Y ear 2004 were$15.5hbillion, whichresultedinatotal
increase of the Commonwealth’s net assets in the amount of $311 million, net of contributions, transfers and specia

items.

Table 3: Condensed Statement of Activities (Expressed in Thousands)

Revenues:
Program Revenues

Charges for Services
Operating Grants and

Contributions

Capital Grants and

Contributions
General Revenues:
Income Taxes
Sales Taxes
Property Taxes
Other Taxes

Investment Earnings

Other

Expenses:

Total Revenues

Governmental Activities:
General Government
Legislative and Judicial

Commerce

Education and Humanities
Human Resources

Justice

Natural Resources and
Environmental Protection
Public Protection and

Regulation
Transportation

Interest Expense
Business-type Activities:

State Parks

Kentucky Lottery Corporation

Kentucky Horse

Park

Insurance Administration
Unemployment Compensation

Total Expenses

Increase (Decrease) in Net

Assets Before
Transfers

Transfers

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets, Beginni

ng of Year

Net Assets, End of Year

2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Governmental Governmental Business-Type Business-Type

Activities Activities Activities Activities Total Total
849,146  $ 1,092,148 $ 1,243204  $ 1240234 $ 2092350 $ 2,332,382
4,528,038 4,583,434 130,212 210,488 4,658,250 4,793,922
524,936 547,363 586 1,046 525,522 548,409
3,102,016 3,054,536 3,102,016 3,054,536
3,780,204 3,653,535 3,780,204 3,653,535
462,062 439,129 462,062 439,129
555,625 581,871 555,625 581,871
24,368 10,184 21,259 19,251 45,627 29,435
537,093 387,955 66,784 (6,565) 603,877 381,390
14,363,488 14,350,155 1,462,045 1,464,454 15,825,533 15,814,609
2,322,043 1,949,067 2,322,043 1,949,067
268,001 247,503 268,001 247,503
128,548 80,459 128,548 80,459
3,824,742 3,752,426 3,824,742 3,752,426
5,630,683 5,646,075 5,630,683 5,646,075
564,202 616,236 564,202 616,236
150,380 136,057 150,380 136,057
111,928 139,518 111,928 139,518
1,020,786 1,062,576 1,020,786 1,062,576
200,315 227,926 200,315 227,926
92,287 88,423 92,287 88,423
554,880 515,629 554,880 515,629
11,732 8,562 11,732 8,562
77,241 83,536 77,241 83,536
556,870 490,348 556,870 490,348
14,221,628 13,857,843 1,293,010 1,186,498 15,514,638 15,044,341
141,860 492,312 169,035 277,956 310,895 770,268

201,712 231,828 (201,712) (231,828)

343,572 724,140 (32,677) 46,128 310,895 770,268
16,326,992 15,546,238 (49,234) (106,870) 16,277,758 15,439,368
16,670,564 $ 16,270,378  $ (81,911) $ (60,742) $ 16,588,653 $ 16,209,636
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Gover nmental Activities:

Duringthefiscal year, thenet assetsof governmental activitiesincreased by $344millionor 2.10 percent. Approximately
54 percent of the governmental activities' total revenue came from taxes, while 35 percent resulted from grants and
contributions (including federal aid). Table 4 below presents program expenses and revenues for governmental
activities. Overall, program revenues were insufficient to cover program expenses for governmental activities.
Therefore, thenet program expensesof thesegovernmental activitieswere supported by general revenues, mainly taxes.

Net Program Expenses

State Programs Program Expenses Program Revenues (Revenue)
General Government $ 2,322,043 $ 359,654 $ 1,962,389
Legislative and Judicial 268,001 14,490 253,511
Commerce 128,548 47,016 81,532
Education and Humanities 3,824,742 763,686 3,061,056
Human Resources 5,630,683 3,779,730 1,850,953
Justice 564,202 67,856 496,346
Natural Resources and Environmental
Protection 150,380 95,921 54,459
Public Protection and Regulation 111,928 75,087 36,841
Transportation 1,020,786 698,680 322,106
Totals $ 14,021,313 $ 5,902,120 $ 8,119,193

Business-TypeActivities:

Table 5 below presents program expenses and revenues for business-type activities. The business-type activities
decreased the Commonwealth’ s net assets by $33 million. Program revenues generated by the operations State Parks,
Kentucky Horse Park, and Unemployment | nsurance were insufficient to cover program expenses. General revenues
support expenses not covered by Program revenues.

Net Program Expenses

State Programs Program Expenses Program Revenues (Revenue)
State Parks $ 92,287 $ 50,925 $ 41,362
Kentucky Lottery Corporation 554,880 725,252 (170,372)
Kentucky Horse Park 11,732 9,497 2,235
Insurance Administration 77,241 129,084 (51,843)
Unemployment Insurance 556,870 459,244 97,626
Totals $ 1,293,010 $ 1,374,002 $ (80,992)

Overall Analysis

Financial highlights for the State as awhole during fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 include the following:

e Theassetsof the State’ s governmental activities exceeded liabilities (net assets) at the close of the fiscal year by
$16.7 billion and the liabilities of the State’ s business-type activities exceeded their assets by $(82) million.

e The State's total net assets increased during the year by $311 million. Net assets of governmental activities
increased by $344 million, while net assets of business-type activities decreased by $33 million.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSISOF THE COMMONWEALTH’SINDIVIDUAL FUNDS

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Commonwealth’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balancesof $2.03 billion, adecrease of $74 millionin comparisonwiththeprior year. Approximately half ($999million
or 49%) of thistotal amount constitutes unreserved fund balance, which isavailable for spending in the coming year.
The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending.

General Fund

The General Fund isthe chief operating fund of the Commonwealth. At the end of the current fiscal year, total fund
balancereached $389 million, with an unreserved balance of $304 million. ThiscomparestoaGeneral Fund unreserved
Fund Balance of $184 million as of June 30, 2003. An unreserved fund balance represents the excess of the assets of
theGeneral Fund over itsliabilitiesand reserved fund bal ance accounts. Reservationsof fund balancesof governmental
funds represent amounts that are not available for appropriation. Examples of fund balance reservations reported
include reserves for encumbrances, inventories and capital outlay.

The fund balance of the Commonwealth’ s general fund increased by $94 million during the current fiscal year. This
isa31.4 percent increasein net assetsfrom the prior year. Theincreaseistheresult of spending reduction efforts and
lapsesof appropriations, anincreased number of interfund transfersin. Thefollowinggovernmental fundsexperienced
significant changes during the year:

Transportation Fund

Fund balance at June 30, 2004 totaled $228 million, a decrease of $207 million during the fiscal year. The decrease
primarily relates to an accelerated program for the construction of road projects.

Capital Projects Fund

Fund balance at June 30, 2004 totaled $394 million, an increase of $95 million during the fiscal year. The increase
primarily relates to the issuance of new debt for capital projects.

Proprietary Funds- The Commonweal th’ sproprietary fundsreported net assetsof $32 millionincluding $(82) million
intheenterprisefundsand $114 millionintheinternal servicefunds. Thisisadecreaseof $48millionfromtheprevious
year.

Two proprietary fundsthat experienced significant changesduring theyear werethel nsurance Administration Fund and
Unemployment Compensation. Thelnsurance Administration Fund’ snet assetsat June30, 2004 total ed ($749) million,
anincrease of $87 million during the fiscal year. Theincrease primarily relatesto areduction in the amount of claims
liability reported in the special fund of the Division of Workers' Compensation. Unemployment Compensation’s net
assets at June 30, 2004 totaled $368 million, alarge decrease of $96 million for theyear. Thisisduein large part to
an increase in the payments of claims throughout the year.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

General Fundrevenuesexceeded final budgetary estimates by approximately $211 million; however, thiswaslessthan
original estimates. Appropriationsand allotmentswere decreased to reflect the changein budgetary revenue estimates.
Asaresult of thesebudgetary reductions, the Commonweal th’ sGeneral fundbal anceincreased. Thisenabled thebudget
stabilization “rainy day fund” to be increased in the new fiscal year.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets- The Commonwealth’sinvestment in capital assetsfor its governmental and business-type activities

asof June 30, 2004, amountsto $19.5 billion, with accumul ated depreciation of $824 million, leaving anet book value
of $18.7 billion. Thisinvestment in capital assetsincludesland, improvements, buildings, equipment, constructionin
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progress, infrastructure and intangibles. Infrastructure assets are normally immovable and of value only to the
Commonwealth, such as roads, bridges, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems, lighting systems, and similar items.

Thetotal increaseinthe Commonwealth’ sinvestment in capital assetsfor thecurrent fiscal year wasabout 3.72 percent
intermsof net book value. However, actual expendituresto purchase or construct capital assetswere $698 million for
theyear. Most of thisamount was used to construct or reconstruct roadsand bridges. Depreciation chargesfor theyear
totaled $80.7 million. Additional information on the Commonwealth’s capital assets can be found in Note 6 of the
“Notesto the Financial Statements® of this report.

Infrastructure Assets — The Commonwealth has elected to utilize the “Modified Approach” option as it relates to
guidelines set forth in the GASB (Government Accounting Standards Board), Statement Number 34. Under this
alternative method, referred to as the modified approach, the Commonwealth expenses certain maintenance and
preservation costs and does not report depreciation expense. Assets accounted for, under the modified approach,
include 61,750 lane miles of roads and approximately 9,000 bridges that the Commonwealth has responsibility for
maintaining.

e There have been no significant changes in the condition levels of the infrastructure assets.
The asset condition level established by the Commonwealth has been met and exceeded for the past two years.
Therehavebeenno significant diff erencesbetween the amountsestimated to be necessary to maintain and preserve
infrastructure assets at target condition levels and the actual amounts of expense incurred for that purpose during
the current fiscal period.

A more in-depth discussion of the Commonwealth’s infrastructure assets is located in the “Required Supplemental
Information” section of thisreport.

Debt Administration - The authority of the Commonwealth to incur debt isdescribed in Article X, Section 25, of the
Kentucky Constitution. In 1987, the Commonwealth created the Executive Bond Oversight Commission and the
Legidlative Bond Oversight Commission. The commissions meet jointly to review all proposed debt issuance. Both
commissions must approve each financing plan before obligations are issued. The legislation that created the bond
oversight commissions al so created the position of Commonwealth Bond Advisor, who advises the commissions and
must approve the pricing and fees associated with any debt issuance.

The Commonwealth of Kentucky’ s bonded debt decreased by $60 million to $3,225,431, a1.90% increase during the
current fiscal year. No general obligation bonds were authorized or outstanding at June 30, 2004. The key factor in
thisincrease was the issuance of new debt during fiscal year 2004.

Additional information onthe Commonwealth’ slong-term debt obligations can befound in Note 15 of the notesto the
financial statements of thisreport.

ECONOMIC FACTORSAND NEXT YEAR'SBUDGETSAND RATES

Theunemployment rate for the Commonwealth of Kentucky iscurrently 5.5 percent, which isapproximately the same
asayear ago. This compares to the nation’ s average unemployment rate of 5.6 percent.

Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices as well. These factors are considered by
legislative leaders and management in preparing the Commonwealth’ s budget for future years.

The Consensus Forecast Group revised the original revenue estimate for fiscal year 2004 decreasing the General fund
estimateby $261.3 millionandthe Transportation fund by $16.6 million. A morecomprehensivebudgetary dissertation
islocated in the “Letter of Transmittal —Magjor Initiatives’ section of this report.

Asaresult of the combined economic factors, the overall economic condition of the Commonwealth hasimproved and
is expected to continue improving.
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REQUESTSFOR INFORMATION

Thisfinancial report isdesigned to provide ageneral overview of the Commonwealth of Kentucky’ sfinancesfor all of
Kentucky’s citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors. This financial report seeks to demonstrate the
Commonwealth’ s accountability for the money it receives. Questions concerning any of the information provided in
this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to: Commonwealth of Kentucky, Finance and
Administration Cabinet, Office of the Controller, 702 Capitol Avenue, Frankfort, KY 40601.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2004
(Expressed in Thousands)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5)
Cash with fiscal agents (Note 5)
Restricted cash (Note 5)
Investments, net of amortization (Note 5)
Invested security collateral
Receivables, net (Note 4)
Notes receivable
Capital lease receivable
Internal balances
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Deferred charges
Restricted assets:
Temporarily restricted:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5)
Capital assets (Note 6):
Land
Improvements other than buildings
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Other capital assets
Easements and other intangibles
Less: Accumulated depreciation
and amortization
Construction in progress
Infrastructure
Total Capital Assets
Other assets
Total Assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable (Note 4)
Tax refunds payable
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities
Liabilities from restricted assets
Obligations under securities lending
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year (Note 15)
Due in more than one year (Note 15)
Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt

Restricted for:

Debt service

Other purposes (Note 1)
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
525,771 $ 157,210 682,981 $ 931,093
24,001 24,001
14,105 492 14,597
1,237,855 509,248 1,747,103 2,476,859
1,171,452 1,171,452
1,531,440 140,486 1,671,926 2,963,126
26,102 26,102
125,875 125,875
28,840 (28,840)
40,597 3,413 44,010 27,057
9,034 677 9,711 7,173
28,891 28,891 39,025
320,812 320,812 355,797
104,371 19,516 123,887 152,879
9,066 89,103 98,169 109,686
951,335 186,224 1,137,559 3,454,170
495,599 59,145 554,744 1,190,193
16,082
44,083 2,322 46,405 9,117
(664,564) (159,542) (824,106) (2,279,440)
2,357,126 61,090 2,418,216 266,204
15,127,436 15,127,436
18,424,452 257,858 18,682,310 2,918,891
61 6,448 6,509 156,871
23,188,476 1,367,804 24,556,280 9,875,892
766,410 45,257 811,667 265,966
253,939 253,939
54,136 28,301 82,437 134,650
1,579 1,579 75,830
15,166
1,171,452 1,171,452
410,993 178,089 589,082 323,112
3,860,982 1,196,489 5,057,471 4,127,630
6,517,912 1,449,715 7,967,627 4,942,354
17,156,329 257,794 17,414,123 2,155,608
317,655 317,655 342,110
677,172 382,173 1,059,345 1,939,277
(1,480,592) (721,878) (2,202,470) 496,543
16,670,564 $ (81,911) 16,588,653 $ 4,933,538

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004
(Expressed in Thousands)

Program Revenues

Charges for

Operating
Grants and

Capital
Grants and

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General government $ 2,322,043 312,007 19,887 27,760
Legislative and judicial 268,001 11,111 3,379
Commerce 128,548 34,689 12,074 253
Education and humanities 3,824,742 14,185 749,501
Human resources 5,630,683 138,487 3,640,408 835
Justice 564,202 23,011 40,035 4,810
Natural resources and
environmental protection 150,380 39,311 56,610
Public protection and regulation 111,928 69,194 5,893
Transportation 1,020,786 207,151 251 491,278
Interest expense 200,315
Total Governmental Activities 14,221,628 849,146 4,528,038 524,936
Business-Type Activities:
State Parks 92,287 50,925
Lottery Corporation 554,880 725,252
Kentucky Horse Park 11,732 5,896 3,015 586
Insurance Administration 77,241 129,084
Unemployment Compensation 556,870 332,047 127,197
Total Business-Type Activities 1,293,010 1,243,204 130,212 586
Total Primary Government $ 15,514,638 2,092,350 4,658,250 525,522
Component Units:
Authorities:
Kentucky Housing Corporation $ 228,937 86,473 131,197
Kentucky Higher Education Assistance
Authority 228,884 101,883 146,468
Kentucky School Facilities Construction
Commission 141,470 44,918
Universities and Colleges:
University of Kentucky 1,383,700 764,497 296,921 15,275
University of Louisville 606,097 264,528 160,703 8,998
Kentucky Community and
Technical College System 408,400 71,415 162,105
Other component units 1,182,759 334,104 296,081 17,246
Total Component Units $ 4,180,247 1,667,818 1,193,475 41,519

General Revenues (Note 1):
Taxes:

Sales and gross receipt

Individual income

Corporate income

Property

License and privilege

Severance

Inheritance and estate

Miscellaneous taxes
Unrestricted grants and contributions
Unrestricted investment earnings
Gain on sale of capital assets
Miscellaneous general
Transfers

Total General Revenues and Transfers

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets at July 1, as Restated (Note 2)
Net Assets at June 30

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Component
Units

(11,267)
19,467
(96,552)

(307,007)
(171,868)

(174,880)
(535,328)

(1,277,435)

127,562
173,800
1,368
1,340,460

1,643,190

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Totals
(1,962,389) $ (1,962,389)
(253,511) (253,511)
(81,532) (81,532)
(3,061,056) (3,061,056)
(1,850,953) (1,850,953)
(496,346) (496,346)
(54,459) (54,459)
(36,841) (36,841)
(322,106) (322,106)
(200,315) (200,315)
(8,319,508) (8,319,508)
(41,362) (41,362)
170,372 170,372
(2,235) (2,235)
51,843 51,843
(97,626) (97,626)
80,992 80,992
(8,319,508) 80,992 (8,238,516)
3,780,204 3,780,204
2,790,732 2,790,732
311,284 311,284
462,062 462,062
142,048 142,048
194,369 194,369
66,287 66,287
152,921 152,921
69,037 20 69,057
24,368 21,259 45,627
75 75
468,056 66,689 534,745
201,712 (201,712)
8,663,080 (113,669) 8,549,411
343,572 (32,677) 310,895
16,326,992 (49,234) 16,277,758
16,670,564 $ (81,911) 16,588,653

365,755
4,567,783
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Major Funds

General Fund

The General Fund isthe State’ s operating fund and accountsfor financial resources appropriated by
the General Assembly that are not required to be accounted for in other funds.

Transportation Fund

The Transportation Fund Accounts for activities related to the construction, preservation, and
mai ntenance of roads.

Federal Fund

The Federal Fund accountsfor monies received from the federal government to be spent on specific
programs and operations.

Agency Revenue Fund

The Agency Revenue Fund accounts for revenues and expenditures of restricted taxes, fees, and
chargesrelated to aparticular function or activity. The General Assembly usually appropriatesthis
fund.

Capital Projects Fund

TheCapital ProjectsFund accountsfor financial resourcesappropriated by the General Assembly for
theacquisition, construction, or renovation of major capital facilities, and for theacquisition of major
equipment other than that financed by proprietary funds, certain trust funds, and university and
college funds.

Non-Major Funds

Non-Major governmental fundsare presented by fund typebeginningonpage ..................... 128
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2004

(Expressed in Thousands)

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5)
Cash with fiscal agents (Note 5)

Restricted cash (Note 5)

Investments, net of
amortization (Note 5)

Invested security collateral

Receivables, net (Note 4)

Notes receivable

Capital lease receivable

Interfunds receivable (Note 7)

Interfund loans receivable
Inventories
Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:

Accounts payable (Note 4)

Judgements payable
Tax refunds payable

Interfunds payable (Note 7)

Interfund loans payable

Obligations under securities

lending (Note 15)
Deferred revenue
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances
Statutory obligations
Budget stabilization
Inventories
Deposit with fiscal agents
Compensating balance
with depositories
Capital outlay
Unreserved, reported in:
General fund
Special revenue funds
Debt service fund
Capital projects fund
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities and Fund
Balances

Non-Major Total
Agency Capital Governmental Governmental

General Transportation Federal Revenue Projects Funds Funds
$ 172,007 13,643 $ 95 $ 14441 $ 23,342  $ 266,024 $ 489,552
24,001 24,001
750 13,355 14,105
55,173 145,577 252,060 371,946 377,710 1,202,466
1,171,452 1,171,452
727,570 103,486 581,717 48,040 6,190 59,458 1,526,461
13,116 6,079 6,907 26,102
125,875 125,875
147,122 2,195 74,044 66,104 7,182 108,362 405,009
900 44,059 44,959
8,584 25,331 66 4,282 48 38,311
$ 2,282,808 335041 $ 669,038 $ 404,361 $ 408,660 $ 968,385 $ 5,068,293
$ 198,832 20508 $ 394473 $ 39241 $ 12,076 $ 13,944  $ 679,074
26,072 3,353 325 29,750
253,939 253,939
51,640 53,124 94,974 51,463 425 116,946 368,572
33,896 10,484 579 44,959
1,171,452 1,171,452
191,416 29,689 107,110 11,306 2,264 151,685 493,470
1,893,351 106,674 630,453 112,819 14,765 283,154 3,041,216
237,133 267,822 504,955
26,485 41,782 68,267
50,765 50,765
8,584 25,331 66 4,282 48 38,311
13,355 24,001 37,356
750 750
327,321 327,321
303,623 303,623
(76,629) 38,519 273,905 367,528 603,323
293,654 293,654
(201,248) (201,248)
389,457 228,367 38,585 291,542 393,895 685,231 2,027,077
$ 2,282,808 335,041 $ 669,038 $ 404,361 $ 408,660 $ 968,385 $ 5,068,293

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET- GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2004

(Expressed in Thousands)

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 2,027,077
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Land and other non-depreciable assets 97,182
Buildings, equipment, and other depreciable assets 1,150,134
Infrastructure 15,127,436
Accumulated depreciation (467,252)
Construction in progress 2,346,012 18,253,512

Certain revenues are earned but not available, and therefore, are deferred in
the funds. 469,766

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred in the funds. 4,038

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of Fleet Management,
Computer Services, Central Printing, Prison Industries, Property Management and
Risk Management to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service
funds are included in governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets. 114,171

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not
reported in the funds.

Capital lease obligations (16,094)
Compensated absences (221,233)
Judgements and contingencies (236,561)
Net pension obligations (136,527) (610,415)

Long-term bonded debt is not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, is not
reported in the funds. Unamortized premiums, loss on refundings, and interest payable
are not reported in the funds; however, these amounts are included in the Statement of
Net Assets. This is the net effect of these balances on the statement:

Bonds payable (3,225,431)

Notes payable (186,970)

Unamortized premiums and discounts (114,444)

Less deferred amounts on refundings 18,388

Accrued interest payable (79,128) (3,587,585)
Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 16,670,564

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

(Expressed in Thousands)

Non-Major Total
Agency Capital Governmental Governmental
General Transportation Federal Revenue Projects Funds Funds
Revenues
Taxes $ 6,684572 $ 968,860 $ $ 196,603 $ $ 83,163 $ 7,933,198
Licenses, fees, and permits 22,318 112,515 117,847 13,019 265,699
Intergovernmental 16,406 5,100,998 16,233 16,316 752 5,150,705
Charges for services 23,369 14,478 96 454,601 358 123,736 616,638
Fines and forfeits 54,444 57 32 19,178 22,034 95,745
Interest and other
investment income 7,154 7,323 213 3,329 29,127 28,834 75,980
Securities lending income 15,549 15,549
Increase (decrease) in fair
value of investments (106) (23,544) (3,050) (8,042) (5,816) (40,558)
Other revenues 160,562 2,313 151,508 204,856 197 105,572 625,008
Total Revenues 6,984,268 1,082,002 5,252,847 1,009,597 37,956 371,294 14,737,964
Expenditures
Current:
General government 1,551,367 111,392 143,007 128,143 1,933,909
Legislative and judicial 251,957 3,626 10,149 115 265,847
Commerce 22,429 9,066 31,735 2,288 65,518
Education and humanities 3,017,676 729,828 44,713 31,581 3,823,798
Human resources 1,388,001 3,811,837 758,484 26,192 5,984,514
Justice 467,151 37,829 58,838 72 563,890
Natural resources and
environmental protection 58,937 51,787 24,133 14,544 149,401
Public protection and regulation 48,739 5,728 61,505 (3,385) 112,587
Transportation 4,684 1,129,393 483,586 57,903 48,776 1,724,342
Debt service:
Principal retirement 286,166 286,166
Interest and fiscal charges 181,424 181,424
Other expenditures 78,052 78,052
Securities lending expense 13,123 13,123
Capital outlay:
Buildings 293,761 293,761
Total Expenditures 6,824,064 1,129,393 5,244,679 1,190,467 293,761 793,968 15,476,332
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over (under) Expenditures 160,204 (47,391) 8,168 (180,870) (255,805) (422,674) (738,368)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 358,516 5,777 11,823 410,625 56,762 938,368 1,781,871
Transfers out (427,942) (167,285) (22,167) (268,538) (71,473) (606,274) (1,563,679)
Capitalized leases 3,034 1,609 275 423 18 5,359
Proceeds from the sale of bonds:
New issues 365,108 143,883 508,991
Refunding issues 601,879 601,879
Premiums 103,316 103,316
Proceeds from notes 171,260 171,260
Payments to refunded bond
escrow agent (944,495) (944,495)
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) (66,392) (159,899) (10,069) 142,510 350,397 407,955 664,502
Net Change in Fund Balances 93,812 (207,290) (1,901) (38,360) 94,592 (14,719) (73,866)
Fund Balances at July 1,
as Restated (Note 2) 298,257 438,991 40,485 327,450 299,303 699,954 2,104,440
Increase (decrease) in inventories (2,612) (3,334) 1 2,452 (4) (3,497)
Fund Balances at June 30 $ 389,457 $ 228,367 $ 38,585 $ 291542 $ 393895 $ 685,231 $ 2,027,077

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

(Expressed in Thousands)

Net change in fund balances-total governmental funds
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays
exceeded depreciation in the current period:

Assets disposed of, net book value

Donated assets, fair market value

Buildings, equipment, and other depreciable assets
Infrastructure

Accumulated depreciation

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Certain expenditures are reported in the funds; however, they increase assets reported

on the Statement of Net Assets and have been eliminated from the Statement of Activities:
Prepaid Expenses
Inventories

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of Fleet Management,
Computer Services, Central Printing, Prison Industries, Property Management and
Risk Management to individual funds. The net revenues (expense) of certain activities
of the internal service funds are reported with governmental activities.

To eliminate intragovernmental activity.

Certain expenditures are reported in the funds; however, they either increase or decrease
long-term liabilities reported on the Statement of Net Assets and have been eliminated
from the Statement of Activities.

Excess contributions to pension funds
Capital lease payments

Compensated absence payments
Litigation payments

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial resources
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes
the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has
any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts
are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of
these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Bond proceeds and premiums received
Repayment of bond principal

Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Accrued interest

Deferred issue costs

Loss on refundings

Change in net assets of governmental activities

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.

(73,866)
(30,245)
2,412
160,312
588,392
(53,561) 667,310
11,625
3,980
(3,498) 482
(14,869)
(29,104)
8,748
2,767
632 (16,957)
(1,385,446)
286,166
944,495
(76,470)
13,130
(12,028) (230,153)
343,572



PROPRIETARY FUNDS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Enterprise Funds (All Major)

State Parks Fund
The State Parks Fund accounts for revenues earned and expenses incurred in the commercial
operations of the Department of Parks.

Kentucky L ottery Corporation

The Kentucky Lottery Corporation, empowered by KRS 154A, administers the Kentucky State
L ottery and is pursuant to amended section 226 of the Constitution of Kentucky asratified by voters
of the Commonwealth.

Kentucky Horse Park Fund
The Kentucky Horse Park Fund accounts for revenues earned and expenses incurred in the
commercial operations of the Kentucky Horse Park.

Insurance Administration Fund
The Insurance Administration Fund accounts for insurance risk pools operated by the state. These
include:

Workers Compensation Fund provides benefitsfor workerswith illnesses, which are not
attributable to one employer.

Coal Workers' Pneumoconiosis provides benefits for workers with pneumoconiosis
resulting from exposure to coal dust created in the severance or processing of coal.
Petroleum Storage Tank Environmental Assurance Program providesfor the cleanup of
leaking underground storage tanks in amounts that exceed the insurance required of the
owners and operators.

MineSubsidencel nsuranceProgram providescoverageagainst lossesarising out of or due
to mine subsidence within this state.

Bond Pool Program provides coverage to reclaim surface mined land when the permit
holder has forfeited bonds posted for such purpose.

Unemployment Compensation Fund
The Unemployment Compensation Fund accounts for assessed employer contributions and related
unemployment compensati on payments.

Internal Service Funds

Individual fund statementsfor thelnternal Service Funds, whosecombinedtotal sarepresented onthis
StatemMENt, DEJINONPAGE. .. ... ettt e e e e e e e s 138

35



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2004

(Expressed in Thousands)

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5)
Cash on deposit with the Federal
government (Note 5)
Restricted cash (Note 5)
Investments, net of amortization (Note 5)
Receivables, net (Note 4)
Interfunds receivable (Note 7)
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent assets:
Investments, net of amortization (Note 5)
Receivables, net
Capital assets (Note 6):
Land
Improvements other than buildings
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Easements and other intangibles
Less: Accumulated depreciation
and amortization
Construction in progress
Total Capital Assets
Other assets
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable (Note 4)
Judgements payable
Interfunds payable (Note 7)
Claims liability (Note 15)
Claims adjustment liability (Note 15)
Capital lease obligations (Note 10)
Notes payable (Note 15)
Prize liability
Compensated absences (Note 15)
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Claims liability (Note 15)
Claims adjustment liability (Note 15)
Capital lease obligations (Note 10)
Notes payable (Note 15)
Prize liability
Compensated absences (Note 15)
Other liabilities (Note 15)
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Other purposes (Note 1)
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

Business-Type Activities-

State
Parks

7,282

471
46
2,517
29

Kentucky
Lottery
Corporation

10,345

24,159

27,602
23,256

340
634

Kentucky
Horse
Park

9,008

14,640
72,195
162,364
14,697
2,322

(104,240)
59,590

75,991

801

428
192
611
4
556
14

221,568

203,482
6,244

423
333
7,203
38,097

(29,560)

2,606

16,496

2,192
54

4,453
16,575
16,657

3,974

(24,064)
1,500

230,576

19,095

240,921

226,222

150

3,423
70
1,663

86

912
3,290

302,213

21,491

9,444

21,150

48,533
711

24,097

111

4,324
25

70,394

437

164

11

411

289

4,460

182,671

1,312

13,904

182,671

37
40

251

221,550

5,467

253,065

328

227,017

16,496

32,652

1,640

49,148

19,047

3,066
344

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.

36

22,457




Enterprise Funds

Insurance
Administration

90,420

64

32,476
203

Unemployment
Compensation

123,163

6,754

320,812

83,672
3

291,827

2,377

(1,678)

411,241

699

2,739

292,526

415,689

2,739

146
26,533

123,673
2,824

569

1,579

413,980

155,324

20,101

736

25,011

983,180
24,588

1,262

45,848

1,009,030

1,164,354

701

10,975
(760,341)

45,848

(748,665)

368,132

368,132

Totals
June 30, 2004

$ 129,416

320,812
492
27,794
140,486
256
3,413
677

Governmental
Activities-
Internal
Service
Funds

623,346

36,219

1,071
2,211
2,285
5,056

509,248
6,298

19,516
89,103
186,224
59,145
2,322

(159,542)
61,090

46,842

257,858

35,389

7,189
2,807
231,369
115,774

(197,311)
11,114

150

170,942

773,554

1,396,900

206,331

45,257
70
29,096
123,673
2,824
97

411
48,533
2,481
28,301
1,579

253,173

282,322

8,212

5,893
16,812

600

1,049
1,541

983,180
24,588
148

40
182,671
5,837
25

34,107

1,196,489

99,840

558

4,497

1,478,811

104,895

257,794

382,173
(721,878)

139,002

3 (81,911)

169,885

(55,714)
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

(Expressed in Thousands)

Operating Revenues:

Charges for sales and services:
State parks sales and services
Lottery sales
Horse park admissions and sales
Insurance receipts
Unemployment insurance receipts
Internal Service Fund Receipts
Other services

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Personal services
Utilities, rental, and other services
Commodities and supplies
Grants and subsidies
Depreciation and amortization
Travel
Reinsurance expense
Claims expense
Claims adjustment expense
Prize expense
Other expenses

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Gain (loss) on sale of fixed assets
Interest and other investment income
Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments
Interest expense
Other revenues (expenses)
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Income (Loss) before Capital Contributions
and Transfers

Capital Contributions
Transfers in
Transfers out

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets at July 1, as Restated (Note 2)
Net Assets at June 30

Business-Type Activities-

State
Parks

50,832

1,047

Kentucky
Lottery
Corporation

51,879

725,252

Kentucky
Horse
Park

51,277
13,098
20,449

7,220
239

34

(92)

725,252

5,896

3,329

92,225

79,398
1,826

2,194
32

439,189
9,692

9,225

(40,346)

532,331

4,412
2,586
1,435

669

2,332

(39)
17
(424)
(24)

192,921

11,434

(470)

75
14,779
(18,202)
(14,455)

(8,094)

(2,209)

(40,816)

113
36,758
(1,745)

(25,897)

(46)
140
(50)
(17)
(235)

(5,690)

232,707

167,024

(185,226)

(208)

227,017

(18,202)

67,350

(2,417)

586
2,481
(186)

49,148

464

21,993

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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Enterprise Funds

Insurance
Administration

129,084

47,385

Unemployment
Compensation

176,469

443,484

18,699
2,048
670

342
372

54,320
689

100

443,484

77,240

98
4,412
552,360

99,229

556,870

)
6,669
17,923

12,504

(113,386)

37,095

20,318
1,289

136,324

(49,351)

21,607

86,973

(835,638)

(91,779)

25
(4,468)

(748,665)

(96,222)

464,354

368,132

39

Totals
June 30, 2004

50,832
725,252
5,896
129,084
443,484

51,761

Governmental
Activities-
Internal
Service
Funds

1,406,309

149,713
741

153,786
19,656
26,966

552,360
10,425

643

54,354
689
439,189
12,032

150,454

1,270,100

51,887
40,962
26,370
865
16,767
199
536
20,324

136,209

157,910

(11)
41,923
536

(14,496)
4,175

(7,456)

32,127

(521)
67

(871)

(102)

168,336

699
39,264
(240,976)

(1,427)

(32,677)

(49,234)

(8,883)

316
6,034
(12,336)

(81,911)

(14,869)

129,040

114,171




COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004
(Expressed in Thousands)

Business-Type Activities -

Kentucky
State Lottery
Parks Corporation
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers - public $ 50,983 $ 727,678
Cash received from customers - state 737
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (33,938) (527,411)
Cash payments for employee salaries and benefits (51,716) (91,628)
Cash payments for claims expense
Cash payments from other sources 1,139 79,398
Cash payments to other sources (34) (420)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities (32,829) 187,617
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers from other funds 36,758
Transfers to other funds (1,745) (185,226)
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 35,013 (185,226)
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (4,707) (2,962)
Principal paid on revenue bond maturities and equipment contracts (75)
Interest paid on revenue bonds and equipment contracts (24)
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets 75
Net Cash Used for Capital and Related Financing Activities (4,806) (2,887)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of investment securities (573)
Proceeds from the sale of investment securities 4,172 8,124
Interest and dividends on investments (408) (995)
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 3,764 6,556
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,142 6,060
Cash and Cash Equivalents at July 1 6,140 18,099
Cash and Cash Equivalents at June 30 $ 7,282 $ 24,159
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating income (loss) $ (40,346) $ 192,921
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 7,220 2,194
Interest and other investment income
Miscellaneous nonoperating income (expense) (350)
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Receivables, net 309 2,254
Interfund receivables 748
Inventories 60 (76)
Prepaid expenses 12
Other assets 178
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable (1,019) (541)
Interfund payables 555 7,832
Claims liability
Claims adjustment liability
Compensated absences (200) (65)
Deferred revenue (169)
Other liabilities 1 (16,730)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ (32,829) $ 187,617
Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities
Change in fair value of investments $ (424) $ (18,202)
Contributions of capital assets 113 70
Capital assets acquired through leases 45
Accretion of investments held to fund grand prizes, which increased prize liability 14,455
Total Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities $ (266) $ (3,677)

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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Enterprise Funds

Kentucky
Horse
Park

$ 6,297

(5,004)
(4,628)

1,651
(18

Insurance
Administration

(1,698)

172,723
140
(2,781)
(18,520)
(108,765)
42,268
(380)

Unemployment
Compensation

2,481
(186)

84,685

105,456

(9,712)

337,896
(552,360)

Totals
June 30, 2004

2,295

(49,351)

(118,720)

1,063,137
881
(578,846)
(166,492)
(108,765)
462,352
(553,212)

Governmental
Activities -
Internal
Service
Funds

(1,084)
(62)
(22)

(49,351)

25
(4,468)

119,055

4,834
145,203
(58,256)
(52,592)
(22,060)
703
(1,474)

(1,168)

(4,443)

39,264
(240,976)

16,358

(1,262)
1,846
46

(201,712)

6,034
(12,336)

630

(92)
44,368
7,518

(8.753)
(137)
(46)

75

(6,302)

59
1,170

51,794

(2,739)

21,607

(8,861)

(6,320)
(802)
(101)

837

$ 1,229

87,128
3,356

18,868

(4,666)
58,510
27,768

(6,386)

$ (2,209)

669
(190)
91
(4)
73
332
(568)

164

(56)

$ (1,698)

$ (50)
586
57

$ 593

90,484

(104,295)
431,861

81,612

(23,107)
20,394
(697)

99,229

342

®3)
39,003

(282)
17)

(197)
33
2,140

(55,749)
186

84,685

17,923

17,923

327,566

(9,906)
460,626

(3,410)

(113,386)

(8,568)

(437)
(4,764)

8,433

(118,720)

1,289

1,289

41

450,720

260
35,959

136,209

10,425

(©)
38,463

(6,196)
729
57
12
510

(2.762)
3,820
2,140

(55,749)

(135)
8,264

(16,729)

119,055

536
769
102
14,455

15,862

36,219

(7,456)

16,767

388

(52)
181
809

(84)

3,538
4,683
(1,963)

(601)
161
(13)

16,358

(871)
316
221

(33%)




FIDUCIARY FUNDS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) trust fundsaccount for moniesreceived for and expenses
incurred by thevariouspublic employeeretirement systemsadministered by the State. Kentucky uses
the following pension trust funds:

Kentucky EmployeesRetirement System
County Employees Retirement System
Judicial Retirement Fund

State Police Retirement System
Kentucky Teachers Retirement System
Legislators Retirement System
Deferred Compensation System

Agency fundsaccount for moniesheld by the Commonweal th for custodial purposesonly. Kentucky
uses the following agency funds:
Commonwealth Choice

County Fees Fund
Special Deposit Trust Fund
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
ALL FIDUCIARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2004

(Expressed in Thousands)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5)
Cash with fiscal agents (Note 5)
Investments, net of amortization (Note 5)
Receivables, net
Interfunds receivable (Note 7)
Prepaid expenses
Buildings

Total Assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Interfunds payable (Note 7)

Amounts held in custody for others

Obligations under securities lending
Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Held in trust for:
Employee retirement systems
Retirees' health insurance
Total Net Assets

Pension
Trust Funds

1,485,274

28,858,827
314,523

208
4,380

30,663,212

67,431

2,564,688

2,632,119

26,329,251
1,701,842

28,031,093

Agency Totals

Funds June 30, 2004
223,185 $ 1,708,459
5,974 5,974
57,722 28,916,549
211 314,734
148 148
208
4,380
287,240 30,950,452
116,244 183,675
4,063 4,063
166,933 166,933
2,564,688
287,240 2,919,359
26,329,251
1,701,842
$ 28,031,093

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
ALL FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

(Expressed in Thousands)

Additions
Contributions:
Employer
Member
Total Contributions

Investment income:

Net increase (decrease) in fair value
of investments

Interest

Dividends

Real estate operating income, net

Securities lending income, net
Total Investment Income

Less: Investment expense

Less: Securities lending expense
Net Investment Income
Total Additions

Deductions

Benefit payments

Refunds

Administrative expenses

Other deductions, net
Total Deductions

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets Held In Trust

Net Assets at July 1, as Restated (Note 2)
Net Assets at June 30

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.

Pension
Trust Funds

784,288
719,035

1,503,323

2,265,562
605,952
120,923

31,532
34,241

3,058,210

19,762
27,531

3,010,917

4,514,240

1,960,929
34,308
29,014

124,827

2,149,078

2,365,162

25,665,931

28,031,093




COMPONENT UNITSFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Major Component Units

Kentucky Housing Cor por ation

The Kentucky Housing Corporation was authorized under KRS Chapter 198A in 1972 to increase the
supply of housing for persons of lower income by making and participating in insured construction loans.
The Corporation also makes and participates in insured mortgage loans when financing is not available
from private lenders under reasonable equivalent terms and conditions.

Kentucky Higher Education Assistance Authority
The Kentucky Higher Education Assistance Authority was established by KRS 164.742 to improve higher
education opportunities by insuring eligible student loans and providing grants and scholarship awards ta
eligible students.
Kentucky School Facilities Construction Commission
The Kentucky School Facilities Construction Commission was established to assist local school districtsin
meeting the school construction needs of the Commonwealth in a manner that ensures an equitable
distribution of funds based upon unmet needs.
University and College Funds
The University and College Funds account for all transactions relating to the nine State-supported
universities and the community colleges and technical schools. These ingtitutions maintain their own
financial records and are not part of the central accounting system operated by the Finance and
Administration Cabinet. The major component units-universities are:

University of Kentucky

University of Louisville
Kentucky Community and Technical College System

Non-Major Component Units

The non-major component units are presented beginNiNng oNpPage ........ooevvveieiiie e veiiiiiieninn. ... 158
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
COMPONENT UNITS

JUNE 30, 2004

(Expressed in Thousands)

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5)
Restricted cash (Note 5)
Investments, net of amortization (Note 5)
Accounts receivable, net
Interest receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Other current assets
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash (Note 5)
Long-term investments (Note 5)
Long-term receivables, net
Deferred charges
Capital assets (Note 6):
Land
Improvements other than buildings
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Other capital assets
Easements and other intangibles
Less: Accumulated depreciation
and amortization
Construction in progress
Total Capital Assets
Other assets
Total Noncurrent Assets, Net
Total Assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accruals
Current portion of long-term debt:
Notes payable (Note 15)
Bonds payable (Note 15)
Capital lease obligations (Note 10)
Compensated absences (Note 16)
Claims liability
Deferred revenues
Payable from restricted assets
Other current liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Notes payable (Note 15)
Bonds payable (Note 15)
Capital lease obligations (Note 10)
Compensated absences (Note 16)
Other long-term liabilities
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Debt service
Other purposes (Note 1)
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

AUTHORITIES
Kentucky Kentucky
Higher School
Kentucky Education Facilities
Housing Assistance Construction
Corporation Authority Commission
$ 42,766 $ 84,378 10,300
116,023 8,157
1,774 4,655
30,385
9
37,181 1,771 2,022
197,744 129,355 12,322
60,169
322,185 12,981 4,125
1,111,223 978,579
19,439 19,176
942
5,212 11,842
5,978 13,372
(6,261) (10,247)
5,871 14,967
566 9,972
1,459,284 1,095,844 4,125
1,657,028 1,225,199 16,447
29,252 8,832 13,624
3,663 41,280
33,505 56,920 55,418
350
1,473 14
24,907
91,327 108,855 69,056
18,165
1,287,336 947,250 616,508
7,735
11
1,396 20,493
1,306,897 975,478 616,519
1,398,224 1,084,333 685,575
5,871 7,221
197,875 86,061
16,513 35,629
38,545 11,955 (669,128)
$ 258,804 $ 140,866 (669,128)

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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UNIVERSITIES and COLLEGES

University
of
Kentucky

307,849

38,644
113,491
2,011
16,230
1,360
1,400

480,985

93,242
720,413
30,443

39,258
52,423
1,116,671
499,247

(814,795)
89,562

982,366

1,826,464

2,307,449

115,314
3,063
18,585
5,146
417
46,951

15,437

204,913

422
261,385
37,940
2,333
61,979

364,059

568,972

737,140

6,570
554,078
440,689

1,738,477

Kentucky
University Community
of and Technical
Louisville College System
58,970 104,842
47,530 5,964
56,623 19,339
1,400 2,997
22,420
186,943 133,142
46,979 28,373
599,989 16,982
44,504 9,370
37,873 18,611
7,551 6,351
559,814 421,955
248,440 106,167
2,031 7,086
(357,432) (227,372)
25,877 37,468
524,154 370,266
15,900
1,231,526 424,991
1,418,469 558,133
43,028 7,977
195
15,110
1,499 364
8,074
26,690 17,862
8,820
2,132
88,654 43,097
505
166,891
2,316 8,450
49,165 3,436
218,877 11,886
307,531 54,983
363,361 361,453
26,695 124
347,027 69,269
373,855 72,304
1,110,938 503,150
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All
Component
Non-Major Units
Component Totals
Units June 30, 2004
321,988 931,093
18,023 18,023
77,428 293,746
96,625 292,507
4,238 36,634
6,430 27,057
5,804 7,173
9,747 74,541
540,283 1,680,774
109,011 337,774
506,438 2,183,113
459,866 2,633,985
410 39,025
56,195 152,879
43,361 109,686
1,338,676 3,454,170
316,989 1,190,193
16,082 16,082
9,117
(863,333) (2,279,440)
113,297 266,204
1,021,267 2,918,891
55,892 82,330
2,152,884 8,195,118
2,693,167 9,875,892
47,939 265,966
2,622 50,823
44,183 223,721
6,543 13,902
13,208 23,186
11,480 11,480
43,147 134,650
6,346 15,166
33,354 75,830
208,822 814,724
17,050 36,142
449,608 3,728,978
110,436 166,877
1,551 3,895
55,269 191,738
633,914 4,127,630
842,736 4,942,354
680,562 2,155,608
24,785 342,110
916,761 1,939,277
228,323 496,543
1,850,431 4,933,538




COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
COMPONENT UNITS

JUNE 30, 2004

(Expressed in Thousands)

Expenses:
Operating and other expenses
Depreciation
Interest on long-term debt
Total Expenses

Program Revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
Total Program Revenues
Net Program (Expense) Revenue

General Revenues:
Unrestricted grants and contributions
Unrestricted investment earnings
Gain on sale of capital assets
Miscellaneous general

Total General Revenues
Change in Net Assets

Net Assets at July 1, as Restated (Note 2)
Net Assets at June 30

AUTHORITIES
Kentucky Kentucky
Higher School
Kentucky Education Facilities
Housing Assistance Construction
Corporation Authority Commission
228,937 228,884 112,851
28,619
228,937 228,884 141,470
86,473 101,883 44,918
131,197 146,468
217,670 248,351 44,918
(11,267) 19,467 (96,552)
112 323
(120)
) 323
(11,267) 19,459 (96,229)
270,071 121,407 (572,899)
258,804 140,866 (669,128)

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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UNIVERSITIES and COLLEGES

University
of
Kentucky

1,383,700

1,383,700

764,497
296,921
15,275

1,076,693

(307,007)

45,583
78,102

283,643

407,328

100,321

1,638,156

1,738,477

Kentucky
Community
University and Technical
of College
Louisville System
606,097 408,400
606,097 408,400
264,528 71,415
160,703 162,105
8,998
434,229 233,520
(171,868) (174,880)
28,672 14,306
74,554 (720)
(453)
154,014 228,575
257,240 241,708
85,372 66,328
1,025,566 436,322
1,110,938 503,150

All
Component
Non-Major Units
Component Totals
Units June 30, 2004

1,174,751 4,143,620
8,008 8,008

28,619

1,182,759 4,180,247
334,104 1,667,818
296,081 1,193,475
17,246 41,519
647,431 2,902,812
(535,328) (1,277,435)
39,001 127,562
21,429 173,800

1,821 1,368
674,348 1,340,460
736,599 1,643,190
201,271 365,755
1,649,160 4,567,783
1,850,431 4,933,538
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NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2004
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2004

Note 1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Basisof Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United Statesof Americafor stategovernmentsasprescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Thefinancia
statementsfor theUniversity and College Fundshavebeen prepared
according to standards established by GASB Statement 35.

B. Financial Reporting Entity

For financial reporting purposes, the Commonwealth of Kentucky
includes all fund types, departments, and agencies of the
Commonweadlth, as well as boards, commissions, authorities,
corporations, colleges, and universities. Theseorganizational units
comprisethereporting entity of theCommonwealthand arereported
in accordance with GASB 14 as amended by GASB 39.
Consequently, the reporting entity includes organizations that are
not legally separatefromtheprimary government and al sothosethat
arelegally separate. Organizationsnotlegally separatearereported
as part of the primary government. Legally separate organizations
are reported as component units if either the Commonwealth is
financially accountable for the organization or when exclusion of
the organization would cause the Commonwealth’s financial
statements to be misleading or incomplete.

Component unitsmay beblended or discretely presented. Blended
component unitsarethosethat either providetheir servicesexclusively
or almost entirely to the primary government, or their governing
bodiesaresubstantively thesameasthat of theprimary government.
Amountsrelated to blended component unitsareincluded asif the
component units were part of the primary government. All other
component unitsarediscretely presented, or shown separately from
the primary government.

Auditedfinancial statementsareavailablefor thefoll owing blended
component units; Kentucky Lottery Corporation, Kentucky
Retirement System, Kentucky Teachers’ Retirement System, Judicial
Form Retirement System, and the Turnpike A uthority of Kentucky.
Auditedfinancial statementsareavailablefor all discretely presented
component unitsexcept theK entucky Agricultural FinanceAuthority,
the Kentucky Grain Insurance Corporation, and the Kentucky
School Facilities Construction Commission. (See pages 98 and 99
for acomplete list of component units' addresses.)
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Blended Component Units

The following legally separate organizations provide services
entirely, or amost entirely to the State or otherwise exclusively, or
almost exclusively, that benefit the State, and therefore, these
organizations' balancesandtransactionsarereported asthoughthey
were part of the State’ s primary government by using the blending
method.

Kentucky Lottery Corporation (KRS 154A.020)

TheKentucky L ottery Corporationisempowered by thel egislature
to administer the Kentucky state lottery games. The board of
directorsiscomprised of oneex officio member and seven members
appointed by the Governor with the advice and consent of the
Senate.

Kentucky Retirement System (KRS 61.645)

The Kentucky Retirement System administers the Kentucky
Employees Retirement System, the County Empl oyees Retirement
System, andthe State Police Retirement System. Theboard consists
of the Commi ssioner of the Department of Personnel, fivemembers
elected by theretirement systems, and three members appointed by
the Governor.

Kentucky Teachers Retirement System (KRS 161.220)

The Kentucky Teachers' Retirement System is an independent
agency and instrumentality of the Commonwealth. It provides
pension benefit plan coverageto employeesof local school districts
and educational agencies of the State. The board includes two ex
officio members and seven el ected members.

Judicial Form Retirement System (KRS 21.530)

The Judicia Form Retirement System accounts for monies and
securities, including contributionsand earnings, whichwill beused
to pay benefitsto the members of the Legislators' Retirement Plan
and the Judicial Retirement Plan. The board consists of eight
members; three are appointed by the Supreme Court, two by the
Governor, oneby the President of the Senate, one by the Speaker of
theHouse of Representatives, and oneby the President and Speaker
jointly.

Turnpike Authority of Kentucky (KRS 175.430)

The Turnpike Authority is a body corporate and politic. It was
created solely to perform essential governmental functions and to
servethepublic purposesof constructing, acquiring, financing, and
operating turnpike and other road projects for the use, safety,
convenienceand general welfare of thetraveling public, by leasing
such projectsto the Transportation Cabinet. The Governor and six
other ex officio members comprise the authority.
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AdministrativeEntities

The State Property and Buildings Commission, Kentucky Asset/
Liabilities Commission, Kentucky Tobacco Settlement Trust
Corporation, Kentucky Savings Bond Authority, and the Board of
Agriculturearelegally separateentitiesof anadministrativenature.
They are comprised of el ected and appointed official sfrom various
state agencies, and have no cost associated with them. Therefore,
there is no separate presentation for these entities.

State Property and Buildings Commission (KRS 56.450)

Thiscommission isapublic body corporate that issues all revenue
bonds for state agencies, unless those agencies are specifically
authorized by other provisionsof the Kentucky Revised Statutesto
issuebonds. Thecommissioniscomposed of six ex officiomembers.

Kentucky Asset/Liability Commission (KRS 56.861)

Thecommissionisapublicbody corporatethat takesacomprehensive
view of the Commonwealth’s finances and devel ops policies and
strategiesto minimizetheimpact of fluctuating revenuereceiptsand
interest rates on the Commonwealth’ sinterest-sensitive assets and
liabilities. The commission consists of five ex officio members.

Kentucky Tobacco Settlement Trust Cor por ation (KRS248.480)

The Kentucky Tobacco Settlement Trust Corporation is a public
body corporate that performs essential governmental and public
functionsby assisting intheimplementation of thenational tobacco
grower settlement trust agreement. The board of directors is
comprised of five ex officio membersand nine membersappointed
by the Governor with the advice and consent of the Senate and
House of Representatives.

Kentucky Savings Bond Authority (KRS 293.030)

Thisauthority isabody corporateand politicthat promotesinvestment
by the general public in bonds of the Commonwealth and helpsto
reduce interest costs to the Commonwealth or its agencies. The
authority consistsof seven commissioners, threeex officiomembers
and four members appointed by the Governor.

Board of Agriculture (KRS 246.120)

Theboard isabody corporate that acts as an advisory board to the
Commissioner of Agriculture, aidsin the collection of information
concerning crops, promulgatesindustrial information, and actsasan
immigration committee. The board consists of five ex officio
members and nine citizens of the Commonweal th appointed by the
Governor.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Thecomponent units’ columnsinthecombinedfinancial statements
includethedataof thediscretely presented component unitsdescribed
below. They are reported together in a separate column labeled
“Component Units” to emphasi zetheseorgani zations' separateness
from the Commonwealth’ s primary government.

Kentucky River Authority (KRS 151.710)

TheKentucky River Authority possessesthe corporate powersthat
distinguish it as being legally separate from the Commonweal th.
Theauthority is charged with devel oping comprehensive plansfor
the management of the Kentucky River Basin. The Governor
appoints the twelve members of this authority.

Kentucky Housing Cor poration (KRS 198A.030)

The Housing Corporation is a body corporate and politic that
performsessential governmental and publicfunctionsinimproving
and promoting the health and welfare of the citizens of the
Commonwealthby theproductionof residential housinginK entucky.
Theboard of directors consists of six ex officio membersand eight
members appointed by the Governor.

Bluegrass State Skills Cor poration (KRS 154.12-205)

This corporation attempts to improve and promote employment
opportunitiesof the Commonwealth’ scitizensby assisting theKY
Cabinet for Economic Development in creating and expanding
programs offering skills, training and education. The board of
directors consists of six ex officio members and twelve members
appointed by the Governor.

Kentucky School Facilities Construction Commission (KRS
157.617)

The commission is an independent corporate agency and
instrumentality of the Commonwealth. The purpose of the
commission isto assist local school districtsin meeting the school
construction needs of the Commonwealth in a manner that will
ensure an equitable distribution of funds based upon unmet needs.
Oneex officiomember and e ght membersappointed by the Governor
comprisethe commission.

Kentucky State Fair Board (KRS 247.090)

Thisboardisabody corporatethat accountsfor revenuesearned and
expenses incurred in the commercial operations of the State Fair
Board. Threeex officio membersand twel ve membersappointed by
the Governor make up the fifteen-member board.
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Kentucky Center for the Arts Cor poration (KRS 153.410)

The Center for the Artsis abody corporate created by the General
Assembly to promote the growth and development of the arts,
convention trade, tourism and hotel industries within Jefferson
County and the Commonwealth. The board consists of fifteen
members appointed by the Governor.

Kentucky Educational Television Authority (KET) (KRS
168.030)

KET is a public body corporate and politic that prescribes and
enforcesregulationsgoverningtheuseof educational televisionand
television facilities and related functions. KET also produces and
transmitseducational television programs. Theauthority consistsof
ninemembers. The Governor appointsfiveof thesemembers. The
board el ects aliaison between the authority and the department on
matters of curriculum. The Council on Postsecondary Education
elects a representative of the University of Kentucky and a
representativeof theother stateuniversities. Theauthority’ smembers
elect a chairman. A component unit of KET is the Kentucky
Educational Television Foundation. Thefoundationisanon-profit
Kentucky corporationthat receives, holdsand administersgiftsand
grants in the name of and with the approval of the authority.

Kentucky EconomicDevelopment FinanceAuthority (KEDFA)
(KRS 154.20-010)

KEDFA possessesthe corporate powers necessary to distinguishiit
aslegally separate from the Commonwealth. It was established to
assi st business enterprisesin obtaining financial resourcesin order
to promotethe Commonwealth’ slong-term economic growth. The
Kentucky Economic Development Partnership board appoints the
fivemembersof thisauthority. Additionally, other component units
of the authority include The Kentucky Industrial Development
Authority, the Kentucky Industrial Revitalization Authority, the
Kentucky JOBSDevelopment Authority, andtheK entucky Mortgage
Insurance and Guarantee Corporation. Thefinancia statements of
the component units are combined with those of the authority.

Kentucky Higher Education Assistance Authority (KHEAA)
(KRS 164.742)

This authority is a body corporate and politic that operates to
improve the higher education opportunities of persons who are
attending or planning to attend eligible institutions by insuring
eligible student loans. The authority is governed by a board of
directors consisting of 15 members appointed by the governor.
KHEAA also oversees the Kentucky Educational Savings Plan
TrustandtheK entucky Higher Educati on Student L oan Corporation,
both of which are component units of KHEAA.
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Kentucky Council on Postsecondary Education
(KRS 164.011)

This council was established in 1997 under the direction of the
Kentucky Postsecondary Education Improvement Act. The board
consists of 16 members—13 citizens appointed by the Governor,
onefaculty member, onestudent, and the Commi ssioner of Education.
This council coordinates change and improvement in Kentucky’s
postsecondary education system. This council strivesto increase
literacy, improve work-related skills, and to raise the number of
students attending college and completing college degrees.

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority (KRS 224A.030)

The authority is a body corporate and politic created to perform
essential governmental functions and to serve the local public
agenciesof the Commonweal thwith respect totheconstructionand
acquisition of infrastructure projects. Theboard consists of fiveex
officio members and five members appointed by the Governor.

Kentucky Agricultural Finance Corporation (KAFC) (KRS
247.944)

KAFCisacorporationthat seekstoimproveand promotethehealth
and general welfare of the Commonwealth’s people through the
advancement of agriculture. Theboard of directorsconsistsof three
ex officio members and nine members appointed by the Governor.

Kentucky GrainlnsuranceCorporation (KGIC) (KRS 251.620)

KGIC is abody politic created to promote the Commonwealth’'s
welfare by improving the economic stability of agriculture and
protecting grain producers in the event of a financia failure of a
grain dealer or warehouseman. The board of directors consists of
four ex officio members and six members appointed by the
Commissioner of the Department of Agriculture.

Kentucky Health Care Improvement Authority (Kentucky
Access) (KRS 304.17B-003)

The Kentucky Health Care Improvement Authority was created as
a body corporate and politic and is funded by assessments on
insurers, enrollment fees, and Tobacco Trust Funds. Consisting of
15hboard members, thisauthority existsfor administrative purposes
in the Department of Insurance and administers the Kentucky
Accessprogram.
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Kentucky L ocal Correctional FacilitiesConstruction Authority
(KRS 441.615)

Thisauthority isabody corporate and politic created to provide an
additional and alternative method of constructing, reconstructing,
improving or repairing, andfinancingjailsand appurtenant facilities
for any local government inthe Commonwealth. The membership
consistsof six ex officio membersand four members appointed by
the Governor.

Appalachian/Kentucky Artisans Gateway Center Authority
(KRS 148.561) (Kentucky Artisan Center)

Thisauthority isanindependent, dejuremunicipal corporationand
isabody corporateand politic. Itisgoverned by aboard of directors
consisting of thirteenmembers. Theauthority operatesand manages
the Kentucky Artisan Center at Berea.

State Colleges, Universities and Kentucky Community and
Technical College System (KRS 164.350)

Each board of regents or board of trustees is appointed by the
Governor, and constitutes a body corporate with the power to
receive and administer revenue and property.

C. Government-WideFinancial Statements

Government-WideFinancial Statements- The Statement of Net
Assets and Statement of Activities report information on all
governmental and busi ness-typeactivitiesof theprimary government
anditsnon-fiduciary component units. Governmental activitiesare
generally characterized by their use of taxes, intergovernmental
revenues, and other non-exchange revenues as funding sources.
Business-typerevenuescomemostly fromfeescharged to external
parties for goods or services. Fiduciary funds and fiduciary
component units are not included in government-wide financial
statements dueto the unavailability of fiduciary fundstoaidinthe
support of government programs.

Restricted Net Assets
(Expressed in Thousands)

The government-wide statements are reported using the economic
resourcesmeasurement focusand theaccrual basisof accounting, as
aretheproprietary andfiduciary fundfinancial statements. Revenues
are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when a
liability isincurred, regardlessof thetiming of cashflows. Therefore,
deferred revenues are only reported for receipts of prepayments or
revenues collected in advance (unearned revenues). Property taxes
are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.
Grantsand similar itemsare recognized as revenues once provider-
imposed eligibility requirements have been met.

The Statement of Net Assets presents the reporting entity’ s non-
fiduciary assets and liabilities with the difference between the two
shown as net assets. Net assets are reported in three categories:

(1) Invested in capital assets, net of related debt, consist of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and further
reduced by debt net of cash balances, for debt related to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

(2) Restricted net assets result from constraints placed on net
assets by creditors, grantors, contributors, and other external
parties, including those constraints imposed by law through
constitutional provisionsor enabling legislation.

(3) Unrestricted net assetsarethosenet assetsthat do not meet the
definition of restricted net assets or invested in capital assets.

When restricted assetsand unrestricted assetsare both availablefor
aparticular purpose, the Commonwealth’s objective isto use any
restricted fundsfirst, since unrestricted funds are available for any
purpose and provide for greater financial flexibility. If the rules
governing restricted assetsaremet, restricted assetsmay betheonly
funds used. However, there may be instances in which restricted
funds may only be spent in proportion to unrestricted funds spent.
Assets shown as restricted for “other purposes’ for the Primary
Government and Component Unitsare asfollows:

Primary Government

Governmental

Restricted for Type
Other Purposes: Activities

Capital projects $ 393,895

Highways 283,277

Unemployment benefits

Loans

Education

Research

Other
Totals $ 677,172

Business Total

Type Primary Component
Activities Government Units-Major
$ $ 393,895 $ 61,919

283,277

368,132 368,132
25,573
3,066 3,066 687,714
194,100
10,975 10,975 53,210
$ 382,173 $ 1,059,345 $ 1,022,516
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A significant featureof thegovernment-wide Statement of Activities
isthe presentation of each program’snet cost. GAAPrequirethe
reporting of aprogram’ snet cost toindicate how self-sustaining the
programisandtoreveal theextent of relianceon other governmental
units. Net cost is obtained by subtracting program expenses from
programrevenues. Program expensesarethose costsattributableto
aparticular functionincluding certainindirect costs. GAAPpermit
both direct and indirect program expensesto be presented together
in an “Expenses’ column. Therefore, indirect expenses are not
specifically identified with individual functions and activities.

Programrevenuesareresourcesthat derivedirectly fromtheprogram
itself or from parties outside the government that reduce the total
expense of the benefiting functional activity to arrive at the net
expense of the activity. The Statement of Activities categorizes
program revenues into three groups: charges for goods, services,
and other benefits; operating grants and contributions; and capital
grantsand contributions. Revenuesnot considered programrevenues
are classified as general revenues. General revenues include all
taxes regardless of type.

D. Fund Financial Statements

Primary Gover nment - The accompanying financial statements
are structured into three fund categories including governmental
funds, proprietary fundsandfiduciary funds. Fundsarecharacterized
as either magjor or nonmajor. Major funds are those funds whose
assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expensesareat least ten
percent of the corresponding total (assets, liabilities, etc.) for all
funds of that category or type (governmental or enterprise funds),
andwhosetotal assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses
areat | east fivepercent of thecorrespondingtotal for all governmental
and enterprisefundscombined. The Commonwealth’ smajor funds
areidentified herein.

Governmental Funds

All governmental fund statementsareaccounted for onthemodified
accrual basisof accountingandfocusontheflow of current financial
resources. In accordance with the modified accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when they become both
measurable and available to finance expenditures of the fiscal
period. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
either collected within the current period or their collection is
expected shortly after the end of the current period in time to meet
currentliabilities. TheStategenerally includesthoserevenuestobe
received up to 30 daysfollowing the end of the accounting period.
Revenues expected to be collected after 30 days beyond the end of
the accounting period are considered unavailable and are reported
as deferred revenues. Deferred revenues also include amounts
received but unearned as of June 30.
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Principal revenue sources accounted for on the modified accrual
basisinclude federal grants, sales and use tax, coal severancetax,
property tax, departmental fees, incometaxes, and interest income.
Motor vehicleregistrationfeesandfinesandforfeituresareaccounted
for on the cash basis. Generally and except as otherwise provided
by law, property taxes are assessed as of January 1, levied (mailed)
September 15, due at discount November 1, due at face value
December 31, delinquent January 1 following the assessment, and
subject to lien and sale February 1 following the delinquency date.

In governmental funds, where the focus is on the flow of current
resources, expenditures are usually recorded at the time liabilities
are incurred. Exceptions are: inventories, prepayments, and
acquisition of capital assets which are recorded at the time of
acquisition; and principal and interest on long-term debt, aswell as
compensated absences which are recorded as expenditures in the
period payment is made.

A description of significant governmental fundsfollows:

General Fund - amajor fund that accountsfor financial resources
appropriated by the General Assembly which arenot requiredto be
accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds - a category of governmental funds that
accounts for specific revenue sources, other than for major capital
projects, dedicated to specific operations. Includes funds such as
the transportation fund, federal fund, and agency revenue fund.

Transportation Fund - amajor fund that accounts for
activitiesrelated to the preservation and maintenance of
roads.

Federal Fund - amajor fund that accounts for monies
received from the federal government to be spent on
specific programs and operations.

Agency Revenue Fund- amajor fund that accounts for
revenues and expenditures of restricted taxes, fees, and
chargesrelated to a particular function or activity.

TheSpecial RevenueFund includesthesenon-major governmental
funds:
Special Benefits - accounts for monies designated to be
distributed for specific operations.

Other Special RevenueFund - accountsfor therevenues
and expenses of restricted taxes, fees and charges related
to a certain function and is not appropriated.

Capital Projects Fund - amajor fund that accounts for financial
resourcesappropriated by theGeneral Assembly for theacquisition,
construction, or renovation of major capital facilities, and for the
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acquisition of major equipment, other than those financed by
proprietary funds and certain trust funds.

Debt Service Fund - a non-major fund that accounts for the
accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-
termobligation principal, interest, and rel ated administrative costs.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary fundsusethefull accrual basisof accounting, recognizing
revenuesand expenseswhen they occur, regardless of thetiming of
thecashflows. Onthestatement of revenues, expenses, and changes
in net assets, the term “expenses’ (not “expenditures’ as in
governmental fundsonamaodified accrual basis) describesdecreases
ineconomic benefitsand emphasi zestheaccrual basi sof accounting.

Proprietary funds' revenuesand expensesaredividedinto operating
and nonoperating revenuesand expenses. Although not specifically
defined by GAAP, operating revenuesand expensesareconsidered
to be those resources gained and consumed to produce and deliver
goodsand servicesthat arecentral tothat fund’ sparticular purpose.
Other revenues and expenses are classified as nonoperating.
Operating and nonoperating expenses are further characterized by
object (persona services, depreciation expense, travel expense,
etc.).

Furthermore, the Commonwealth has adopted the provisions of
GASB Statement No. 20, “ Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Funds that use
Proprietary Fund Accounting.” Aspermitted by GASB Statement
No. 20, the primary government’s proprietary funds have elected
not to adopt FASB Statements or Interpretations issued after
November 30, 1989, unless the GASB specifically adopts such
FASB Statementsor Interpretations. Each proprietary component
unit hasindividually madethiselection asdisclosedin the separate
audit reports.

Enter priseFunds- acategory of proprietary fundsused to account
for those public corporationsempowered by the Kentucky Revised
Statutes (KRS) to provide certain services to the citizens of the
Commonwealth and the operations of State agencies that provide
goodsor servicesto thegeneral public onauser chargebasis. Also
included are the operations of the State’ s risk management pools.

StateParksFund - amajor fund that accountsfor revenuesearned
and expenses incurred in the commercial operations of the
Department of Parks.

Kentucky Lottery Corporation - a blended component unit
presented asamajor fund, empowered by KRS 154A to administer
theKentucky statelottery, created pursuant to amended Section 226
of the Constitution of Kentucky as ratified by the voters of the
Commonwealth.
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Kentucky Horse Park Fund - a mgjor fund that accounts for
revenuesearned and expensesincurred inthecommercial operations
of the Kentucky Horse Park.

I nsurance Administration Fund - amajor fund that accounts for
insurance risk pools operated by the State, including the Workers
Compensation Special Fund, Coal Workers' PneumoconiosisFund,
Petroleum Storage Tank Environmental Assurance Program, Mine
Subsidence Insurance Program, and Bond Pool Program.

Unemployment Compensation Fund - amajor fund that accounts
for assessed employer contributions and related unemployment
compensation payments.

Internal Service Funds - a category of proprietary funds that
accountsfor financing goods and services provided by one agency
of the Commonwealth primarily to other agencies or governments
on acost reimbursement basis. All of the proprietary funds (where
the measurement focus is on the flow of economic resources) are
accounted for on the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly,
revenuesarerecognized whenthey areboth earned and measurable.
Expenses are recognized at the time liabilities are incurred.

Sinceinternal service funds usually exist to support governmental
activities, they are normally included as part of the governmental
activities reported in the government-wide statements, rather than
being presented separately.

Specific activities reported under Internal Service Fundsare:

M anagement/maintenance of State motor vehiclefleet
Industrial prison operations

Rental and maintenance operations for buildings

Computer and related data processing services

Printing services

Fire and tornado insurance programs

State workers' compensation program

Transportation Cabinet self-insured workers' compensation
trust program

N WNE

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are defined as funds used to report assetsheld ina
trusteeor agency capacity for othersand which, therefore, cannot be
used to support the government’ s own programs. This category of
funds includes pension (and other employee benefit) trust funds,
investment trust funds, and agency funds. The Commonwealth’s
fiduciary fund types are described below.

Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds—account for
moniesreceived for, expensesincurred by, and net assetsavailable
for plan benefitsof thevariouspublic employeeretirement systems.
Thisfundtypeal soaccountsfor monieshel dindeferred compensation
plans. Pension Trust Fundsareaccounted for ontheaccrual basisof
accounting and reported in the same manner as proprietary fund

types.
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Agency Funds—account for moniesheld by the Commonweal thfor
custodia purposes only. Unlike other funds, the agency fund
reportsassetsand liabilities only; therefore, it has no measurement
focus. However, theagency fund usestheaccrual basi sof accounting
when recogni zing payables and receivables.

Specificactivitieslisted under the Commonweal th’ sAgency Funds
are:
1. Commonwealth Choice benefit spending accounts
2. Special Deposit Trusts holding moniesfor specific purposes
3. County Fees Fund holding monies for Kentucky

Counties with apopulation of 70,000 or more

Asdiscussed previously, because the fiduciary fund resources are
not availableto support government programs, fiduciary funds(and
component unitsthat arefiduciary in nature) are excluded fromthe
government-wide financial statements. Inclusion of these funds
would create a misleading view of the government’s position and
results of activities.

E. Presentation of Component Units

Presentation of theunderlying fundtypesof theindividual component
units (described previously) reported in the discrete column is
availablefrom each respective component unit’ s separately issued
financial statements.

The Major Discretely Presented Component Units, including
Collegesand Universitiesare:

Kentucky Community and Technical College System
Kentucky Housing Corporation

Kentucky Higher Education Assistance Authority
Kentucky School Facilities Construction Commission
University of Kentucky

University of Louisville

TheNon-Magjor Discretely Presented Component Units, including
Collegesand Universitiesare:

Kentucky Agricultural Finance Corporation

Kentucky Artisan Center at Berea

Kentucky Center for the Arts Corporation

Kentucky Economic Development Finance Authority

Kentucky Educational Television Authority

Kentucky Grain Insurance Corporation

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority

Kentucky Local Correctional Facilities Construction
Authority

Kentucky River Authority

Kentucky State Fair Board

Bluegrass State Skills Corporation

Council on Postsecondary Education
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Kentucky Access

Eastern Kentucky University
Kentucky State University
Morehead State University
Murray State University
Northern Kentucky University
Western Kentucky University

TheCommonweal th hassignificant transactionswithitscomponent
units, primarily in providing operating fundstotheuniversitiesfrom
the State's general fund. During fiscal year 2004, the primary
government provided $302,547,600 to the University of Kentucky,
$171,572,300 to the University of Louisville, and $184,493,000 to
theK entucky Community and Technical CollegeSystem. Inaddition,
the State received $185,225,751 in proceeds from the Kentucky
L ottery Corporation.

F. Cashand Cash Equivalents

In addition to amounts held in bank accounts, cash on hand, and
imprest cash, this classification includes short-term investments
with an original maturity of 90 daysor less (from date of purchase).
Cash equivalents are generally stated at cost, which approximates
market. Deferred Compensation amountsarereported at fair value.
Short-term investments classified as cash equivalents at June 30,
2004 are $1,693,456,773.

G. Investments

Thisclassificationincludeslong-terminvestmentsthat arestated at
fair value. Investments of the Deferred Compensation Plan are
reported at fair value. See Note 5 for investment details.

H. Receivables

Receivables in the Commonwealth’s governmental and fiduciary
funds primarily consist of Federal revenues, taxes, and interest on
investments. Somegovernmental fund revenuesarenot susceptible
to accrual prior to receipt, including licenses, fees, permits, and
similar revenuesthat are recognized on the cash basis. Receivables
in al other funds have arisen in the ordinary course of business.
Receivablesinthegovernmental fundsarereported net of allowances
for uncollectibles. Disaggregation of current accounts receivable
and current taxes receivable are shown in Note 4.

I.  Interfund Transactions
TheCommonwealth hasthefollowingtypesof interfundtransactions:
Quasi-External Transactions- Chargesfor servicesrendered by one

fundto another that aretreated asrevenuesof therecipient fund and
expenditures or expenses of the disbursing fund.
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Reimbursements - Reimbursement of expenditures made by one
fund for another are recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing
fund and as areduction of expendituresin the reimbursed fund.

Transfers presented in the fund financial statements represent the
flow of assets (such as goods or cash) without equivalent flow of
assetsin return or requirement of repayment. Inaddition, transfers
arerecorded when afund receiving revenue providesit to the fund
that expendsthe resources.

The composition of theinterfund transactionsis presented in Note
7. Note that at the entity-wide level, the mgjority of interfund
activity hasbeen eliminated. Thisisto avoid the“doubling up” of
suchtransactionsso that revenuesand expenseswill not bereported
more than once.

Transfers and receivables and payables between governmental
activities and business-type activities have not been eliminated.
Also remaining are the results of activities between different
functional categories. For example, servicesprovided and used are
not eliminated because doing so would misstate the expenses of
purchasingfunctionandtheprogramrevenuesof thesellingfunction.

J. Inventoriesand Prepaid Expenses

Inventoriesinthegovernmental fundsand similar trust fundsconsist
of expendablesuppliesheldfor consumption, the costsof whichare
recorded as an expenditure at the time of purchase.

Prepai d expenses, including the prepayment of servicesto vendors
(e.g., prepaidinsurance), arerecorded similarly inthegovernmental
fund statements.

Reserves of fund balance have been established for the inventory
balances for governmental funds. Inventories in the proprietary
funds and similar trust funds consist of both expendable supplies
held for consumption and the cost of goodsheld for resale, thecosts
of which are recorded as an expense as they are used.

Inventoriesarevalued at cost (first-in, first-out, or averagecost). In
the Governmental Activities column of the government-wide
Statement of Net Assets, inventory and prepai d expensesarereported
as an asset at cost when purchased, then expensed as used.

K. Capital Assetsand Depreciation

Capital assets, which include property, equipment, intangiblesand
infrastructure (e.g. roads, bridges, ramps, and similar items), are
reported in the governmental activities or business-type activities
column of thegovernment-widefinancia statements. Fundfinancial
statementsfor governmental and similar trust fundsexpensecapital
assetswhen purchased.

60

The policy of the primary government isto capitalize assets when
theuseful lifeisgreater than oneyear and the acquisition cost meets
thecapitalizationthreshold. Theprimary government capitalizesall
land and infrastructure. Buildings, improvements to land, and
equipment are capitalized when the acquisition cost is $5,000 or
greater. Intangible fixed assets are capitalized when the cost is
$100,000 or moreexcept softwarewhich hasathreshol d of $500,000.
Component units establish their own capitalization policy and that
policy may vary from that of the primary government.

TheKentucky Historical Society, Kentucky HorsePark and K entucky
Department of Parksholdand carefor the State’ shistorical treasures.
Among these are historical clothing; china; furniture and other
furnishings, avariety of art and decorativeart; political memorabilia;
pioneer tools and equipment; guns and similar military artifacts;
books, manuscripts, and photographs; musical instruments from
Kentucky’ smusical legends; Native American artifacts; fossilized
bones and prehistory artifacts. These assets are not capitalized or
depreciated astheassetscould not bevalued and haveinexhaustible
useful lives.

The primary government values fixed assets at historical cost,
estimated historical cost or fair market valueat thetimeof donation.
At June 30, 2004, thefollowing table showscost by asset type. The
estimate of historical cost for the primary government washbased on
appraisedvalueasof June 301986, indexed tothedateof acquisition.

Assetsaredepreciated onthestraight-linebasisover their estimated
useful lives. Thetable below showsthe useful life by asset typefor
the primary government.

It is the Commonwealth’s policy to capitalize interest expense
incurred on significant assets in proprietary funds during their
construction in accordance with FASB 62.

TheKentucky Center for the ArtsCorporation’ sdiscretely presented
component unit financial statements for Fiscal Y ear 2004, do not
containtheCenter’ scapital assets. TheFinanceand Administration
Cabinet, Division of Statewide Accounting, Financial Reporting
Branch adjusted the Commonweal th of Kentucky’ sComprehensive
Annual Financial Reporttoincludethecapital assetsand depreciation
of the Center in order to satisfy GAAP requirements.

Useful Life
Asset (Expressed in Years)
Land improvements 10-60
Buildings 10-75
Machinery and equipment 3-25
Infrastructure 20-40
Intangibles 2-40
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Cost by Asset type

(Expressed in Thousands) Donated
Governmental Activities: Historical Cost Fair Market Value Estimated Cost Totals
Land $ 61,045 $ 17,171 $ 26,155 104,371
Improvements other than buildings 8,541 525 9,066
Buildings 610,540 49,270 291,525 951,335
Equipment 445,855 2,142 47,602 495,599
Easements and other intangibles 24,724 19,359 44,083
Construction in progress 2,357,126 2,357,126
Infrastructure 15,127,436 15,127,436
Totals $ 18,635,267 $ 69,108 $ 384,641 19,089,016
Donated
Business-Type Activties: Historical Cost Fair Market Value Estimated Cost Totals
Land $ 5,683 $ 1,630 $ 12,203 19,516
Improvements other than buildings 89,103 89,103
Buildings 134,922 1,713 49,589 186,224
Equipment 55,959 1,289 1,897 59,145
Easements and other intangibles 2,322 2,322
Construction in progress 61,090 61,090
Totals $ 349,079 $ 4,632 $ 63,689 $ 417,400

L. Fund Equity Reservesand Designations

TheCommonwealth’ sfund bal ancereservesrepresent thoseportions
of fund balance (1) not appropriable for expenditure, or (2) legally
segregated for a specific future use. Designated portions of fund
bal ance represent tentative managerial plansfor financial resource
utilization in afuture period.

M. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenues are treated as liabilities in the governmental
funds until al requirementsfor revenue recognition are met.

N. Long-TermObligations

Long-termliabilitiesthat will befinanced fromgovernmental funds
are presented in the Governmental Activities column of the
government-wide Statement of Net Assets. This total reported
amount of long-term liabilitiesincludesthefollowing:

1. Paymentsof principal on revenuebondswhich arerecorded as
expendituresin the Debt Service Fund.

2. Compensated absencesincludingaccumulated unpaidvacation
and compensatory timeaccruals. Theamount accruingto proprietary
funds and pension trust funds has been included in the respective
fundswhen material. Thepolicy of the Commonwealthistorecord
the cost of annual and compensatory leave. Annua leave is
accumulated at amountsranging from 7.5 to 15.0 hours per month,
determined by length of service, with maximum accumulations
ranging from 30to 60 days. The calendar year isthe period used for
determining accumulated |eave. Compensatory leaveis granted to
authorized empl oyeeson an hour-for-hour basis. June30estimated
liabilities for both annual leave and compensatory leave are
summarized in Note 16.

Sick leavefor the Primary Government isearned oneday per month
with unlimited accumulation. All of the qualifying retiring
employees’ sick leavebal ances, expressedinmonths, shall beadded
to their service credit for the purpose of determining their annual
retirement.

Thereisno liability in the accompanying financial statements for
unpaid accumulated sick leave, since it is the Commonwealth’s
policy to record the cost of sick leave only when paid. See Note 16
for disclosure of the amount of this contingency. The component
unitshavevarying policiesfor compensated absences. |nformation
regardingthesepoliciesisavailableintheauditedfinancial statement
of each component unit.

3. Outstanding capital lease obligationsfor governmental funds.

4. Judgments and contingent liabilities of governmental
fundsthat will be paid with noncurrent resources.

5. Long-term liabilities of internal service funds.

L ong-term obligationsgenerally excludethoseamountsreported as
expendituresfor compensated absences, judgments, contingencies,
and employer pension contributionsinthegovernmental fundssince
these amounts would normally be liquidated with expendable
availablefinancial resources.

Long-term liabilities of all proprietary and pension trust funds are
reportedintheirindividual fund statements. Long-termliabilitiesof
enterprise and internal service funds are also presented in the
government-wide Statement of Net Assets as asingle total in the
Business-type Activities and Governmental Activities columns
respectively. Fiduciary funds' long-termliabilitiesarenot displayed
on the government-wide Statement of Activities.
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O. Conduit Debt

This debt may take the form of certain types of limited-obligation
revenue bonds, certificates of participation, or similar debt
instruments issued to benefit athird party that is not a part of the
reporting entity. Although conduit debt obligations bear the
Commonwesalth’s name as issuer, the Commonwealth has no
obligationfor such debt beyond theresourcesprovided by aleaseor
loan with thethird party on whose behalf itisissued. GAAP alow
the State to refrain from reporting the conduit debt and the related
asset. Since the State is not legally, morally, or in any other way
responsible for the repayment of conduit debt, these items are not
includedinthefinancial statements. The Statehas$1,807,249,254
of conduit debt, the proceeds of which are used to promote the
purposes set forth in KRS 103.200 and 103.210.

Note 2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES,
REPORTING PRACTICES,AND PRIOR-PERIOD
ADJUSTMENTS

The fund balances/net assets as previously reported have been
restated or reclassified to conformto generally accepted accounting
principles and to correct balances for erroneously recorded
transactions.

Governmental Activities - Beginning net assets for the
Commonwealth’s governmental activities have been restated to
includeamountswhichwereomittedintheprior year. Thenet effect
isan increase of $56,614,000.

Business Type Activities - Beginning net assets for the
Commonwealth’ sbusinesstypeactivitieshavebeenrestated for the
reasons noted below in the section for Enterprise Funds. The net
effectisanincreaseof $11,508,000 onthenet assetsof thebusiness.
Kentucky Council on Post Secondary Education type activities.

General Fund —TheGeneral Fundwasrestated toremoveamounts
included in error last year. The effect on fund balanceisadecrease
of $80,000.

Capital ProjectsFund —The Capital ProjectsFundwasrestatedin
order to correct prior period errors. Theeffect of these transactions
on fund balance is a net decrease of $35,876,000.

Debt Service Fund —The Turnpike Authority of Kentucky’ s Debt
ServiceFundwasrestatedinorder tocorrect prior period errors. The
effect of these transactions on fund balance is a net decrease of
$19,606,000.
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Special Revenue Fund — The Agency Revenue Fund, the Other
Special Revenue Fund, and the Federal Fund within the Special
RevenueFundwererestatedfor prior period errors. Therestatements
decreased Agency Revenueand Other Special Revenuefundbalances
by $1,765,000 and $1,193,000 respectively and increased Federal
fund balances by $49,000. The net effect of all restatementson the
Specia Revenue fund balance is a decrease of $2,909,000.

Enter priseFunds—The State Parks Fund and the Horse Park Fund
within the Enterprise Funds were restated to include amounts not
reported|ast year. Theeffect on net assetsisanincreaseof $9,205,800
and $2,303,000respectively. Thenet effect of theserestatementson
the Enterprise Funds net assetsis an increase of $11,508,800.

Internal Service Funds— The Property Management Fund within
the Internal Service Funds was restated to include amounts which
werenot includedinthepast. Theeffect on net assetsisanincrease
of $33,208,000.

Fiduciary Funds—Pension Trust Funds- Deferred Compensation
was restated to include administrative equity amounts previously
omitted. The effect on net assets is an increase of $4,700,000.
Judicial Retirement System and Legislators Retirement System
were each restated dueto a prior period error. The effects on net
assetsof thiserror areanincrease of $151,000 (JRS) and adecrease
of $151,000 (LRS).

Component Units—Authorities:

Kentucky Council on Postsecondary Education — The Council
was reclassified in FY 04. Its inclusion this year as part of
Component Units-Universitiesresultsin andecreaseof $25,398,000
on total net assets of authorities.

Kentucky Center for theArtsCor por ation—Toreflect theeffects
of implementing GA SB Statement No. 39, net assetsfor the K entucky
Center for the Arts Corporation were restated. The effect on net
assetsis an increase of $17,666,000.

Kentucky Access—Kentucky Accessrestated net assetsfor errors
made in the prior year. The effect net assets is a decrease of
$1,884,000.

Restatement of all Component Units-Authoritiesresultsinanoverall
decrease in net assets of $9,616,000.

Component Units—Universitiesand Colleges:
University of Kentucky — To reflect the effects of implementing

GASB Statement No. 39, net assetsfor the University of Kentucky
wererestated. Theeffect onnet assetsisanincreaseof $62,155,000.
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University of Louisville—To reflect the effects of implementing
GASB Statement No. 39, net assetsfor the University of Louisville
wererestated. Theeffect onnet assetsisanincreaseof $540,056,000.

Kentucky Community and Technical CollegeSystem (KCTCYS)
Toreflect theeffectsof implementing GA SB Statement No. 39, net
assets for KCTCS were restated. The effect on net assets is an
increase of $23,174,000.

Eastern Kentucky University — To reflect the effects of
implementing GASB Statement No. 39, net assets for Eastern
Kentucky University were restated. The effect on net assetsis an
increase of $36,070,000.

Western Kentucky University — To reflect the effects of
implementing GASB Statement No. 39, net assets for Western
Kentucky University wererestated. The effect on net assetsis an
increase of $52,938,000.

Murray State University — Toreflect the effects of implementing
GASB Statement No. 39, net assets for Murray State University
wererestated. Theeffect on net assetsisanincreaseof $28,435,000.

Northern Kentucky University — To reflect the effects of
implementing GASB Statement No. 39, net assets for Northern
Kentucky University were restated. The effect on net assetsis an
increase of $39,422,000.

M or ehead StateUniver sity - Toreflect theeffectsof implementing
GASB Statement No. 39, net assetsfor Morehead State University
wererestated. Theeffect onnet assetsisanincreaseof $10,199,000.

Kentucky Council on Postsecondary Education — The Council
was reclassified in FY 04. Its inclusion this year as part of
Component Units-Universitiesresultsinanincreaseof $25,398,000
on total net assets of universities.

Restatement of all Component Units-Universities and Colleges
resultsin an overall increasein net assets of $817,847,000.
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| Note 3

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND
ACCOUNTABILITY

A. EnterpriseFunds—Thelnsurance Administration Fund hasa
net assets deficit of $748,665,000. The accumulated claims
liability is estimated by actuarial methods for the risk poals,
which will be funded in future periods.

B. Internal Service Funds—The Risk Management Fund has a
net assets deficit of $103,414,000. The deficit isthe result of
accumulated claims liabilities of the Commonwealth’s self-
insured workers' compensation programs, and isto be funded
in future periods.

C. Component Units — Authorities — The Kentucky School
Facilities Construction Commission has a net assets deficit of
$669,128,000. The Commission financeslocal school district
projects, and carries the liabilities but not the assets. The
Kentucky Local Correctional FacilitiesConstruction Authority
has a net assets deficit of $15,717,000 resulting from the
recognition of |oancommitmentsbeforefinancingwasarranged.
TheAuthority will issue bondsto satisfy thesecommitmentsin
thefuture.
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Note 4

DISAGGREGATION OF ACCOUNTSPAYABLE
AND ACCOUNTSRECEIVABLE

Accountspayabl efor the Commonwealth of Kentucky areamounts
owed by the State as of June 30, 2004. Thoseliabilitiesthat must be
paid withinoneyear are considered current. Amountsdueafter one
year aredeemed noncurrent accountspayable. Accountsreceivable
are amounts owed to the State. Similar to accounts payable, any
amountsto bereceivedwithinoneyear areclassified ascurrent. All
other receivablesare noncurrent. For Governmental Activitiesand
Business-Type Activities, the line indicating “ Accounts Payable”
and “Net Receivables’ are described below.

Amounts reported as “Taxes Receivable” are significant to the
State. Taxes receivable report those tax amounts owed to the
Commonwealth of Kentucky that remain uncollected as of June 30,

Disaggregation of Payables and Receivables
(Expressed in Thousands)

2004. All receivables are reported net of an Allowance for
Uncollectibles to reflect the true value of receivables. Fines,
forfeitures, andlicensefeesarerecognized asrevenuewhenreceived
and, therefore, do not requiretherecognition of accountsreceivable.
The “Current Taxes Receivable” for Governmental Activitiesand
Business-Type Activities are described bel ow.

Under the modified accrual basisof accounting, asused in thefund
statements, amountsoutstanding but owed at theend of theyear may
berecorded in oneof twoways. If thereceivableismeasurableand
expected to be collected within 30 days, revenue is recognized.
However, if thereceivableisnot expected to be collected within 30
days, itisnot consideredto beavailabletoliquidatetheliabilitiesof
the current period and will be reported as deferred revenue.
Furthermore, unearned revenue is always reported as deferred
revenue. Deferredrevenueisreported asaliability until meetingthe
criteriafor revenue recognition.

Business-
Type
Governmental Activities Total Activities
Major Non-major Internal Governmental Major Total Primary
Funds Funds Service Funds Activities Funds Government
Current Payables
Personal services 85,625 $ 218 % 2988 $ 88,831 $ 17,048 $ 105,879
Utilities, rental and
other services 5,317 490 2,370 8,177 642 8,819
Commodities and supplies 35,368 142 1,260 36,770 21,397 58,167
Grants and subsidies 453,579 2,725 21 456,325 1,608 457,933
Capital outlay 15,187 51 295 15,533 156 15,689
Travel 159 2 6 167 167
Other 69,896 89,439 1,272 160,607 4,406 165,013
Total Current Payables 665,131 $ 93,067 $ 8,212 $ 766,410 $ 45257 $ 811,667
Current Receivables
Charges for services 25,897 $ 18,663 $ 1,071 $ 45,631 $ 122,282 $ 167,913
Taxes receivable 1,573,172 7,143 1,580,315 1,580,315
Investment receivable 273 11,199 11,472 11,472
Intergovernmental revenue 594,959 125 595,084 3,136 598,220
Other 124,640 27,717 152,357 19,366 171,723
Allowances for uncollectables (848,030) (5,389) (853,419) (4,298) (857,717)
Total Current Receivables 1,470,911 $ 59,458 $ 1,071 $ 1,531,440 $ 140,486 $ 1,671,926

Taxes Receivable
(Expressed in Thousands)

Total Primary

Governmental Activities Government
Major Funds Non-Major Funds
Current Taxes Receivable

Sales and gross receipts $ 655,790 $ 7 3 655,867
Individual income 529,044 529,044
Corporate 144,063 144,063
Property 110,738 110,738
License and privilege 61,881 958 62,839
Coal severance 50,296 50,296
Inheritance and estate 5,927 107 6,034
Miscellaneous 15,433 6,001 21,434

Total Current Taxes Receivable $ 1,573,172 $ 7,143 3% 1,580,315
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The State Property and Buildings Commission has issued revenue
bonds and entered into | ease agreementsto finance capital projects
fortheUniversity of Kentucky, Kentucky StateFair Board, Kentucky
Higher Education Assistance Authority and Eastern Kentucky
University. The bond issues are shown as liabilities of the State
Property and Buildings Commission in the entity wide financial
statements. A capital lease liability is reflected in the financial
statementsof thevariousdiscretely presented component units, for
whichthedebt wasissued and acorresponding capital |easereceivable
hasbeenrecordedinthefinancial statementsof the Commonwealth
toaccurately reflect thetransaction. Amountsdueunder theselease
agreements are reflected in the following table.

Future debt service payments for leases receivable as of
June 30, 2004, are as follows (Expressed in Thousands):

Principal
2005 $ 5,095
2006 5,285
2007 5,470
2008 5,665
2009 5,880
2010-2014 33,255
2015-2019 39,510
2020-2024 25,715
Total leases receivable $ 125,875

65

Interest

$ 5,629

5,452
5,265
5,066
4,851
20,393
11,884
3,048

3 eLses

Total

$ 10,724

10,737
10,735
10,731
10,731
53,648
51,394
28,763

$ 187463
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|Note5

EQUITY INPOOLED CASHANDINVESTMENTS,
CASH, AND INVESTMENTS

The Commonwealth maintains a cash and investment pool that is
available for use by al funds under the auspices of the State
Investment Commission as authorized under KRS42.500 et a. In
addition, investments are separately held by several of the State's
funds and Component Units. Legally authorized investmentsvary
by fund but generally include: obligations of or guaranteed by the
United States; obligations of any corporation of the United States
Government; asset backed securities; U.S. dollar denominated
corporatesecurities; collateralized certificatesof deposit; bankers
acceptances; commercial paper; and repurchase agreements. In
addition to these, pension plans and certain Component Units are
permitted to purchase common stocks, corporate bonds and real

Cash - Primary Government

property and mineral rights. The Commonwealthisalsoeligibleto
invest in reverse repurchase agreements.

Deposits- Atyear end, thecarrying amount of the Commonwealth’s
deposits for the Primary Government was $1,221,877,108 and
$1,064,902,034 for the Component Units. At year end, the bank
balance was $1,216,187,736 and $1,064,950,032 for the Primary
Government and Component Units, respectively. Thebank balance
of thePrimary Government administered by the State Treasurer was
covered by Federal depository insuranceor by collateral held by the
Commonwealth or the Commonwealth’s agent in the
Commonweslth’ sname. ThefollowingtablecategorizesthePrimary
Government’s and Component Units' deposits as: (1) insured or
collateralized with securities by the entity or by its agent in the
entity’ sname; (2) collateralized with securitiesheld by thepledging
ingtitution’ s trust department or agent in the entity’ s name; or (3)
uncollateralized wheresecuritiesarehel d by thepledginginstitution
but not in the entity’ s name.

Categories Total Carrying
1 2 3 Bank Balance Amount
Cash 804,382,329 797,931,957 804,382,329
Cash with fiscal agents 66,445,867 66,445,867 66,445,867
Imprest & change 6,453,402 6,453,402 6,453,402
Money market 23,784,000 24,545,000 23,784,000
Total 901,065,598 895,376,226 901,065,598
Cash on deposit with federal
government 320,811,510 320,811,510
Total Cash 1,216,187,736 1,221,877,108
Cash - Component Units
Categories Total Carrying
1 2 3 Bank Balance Amount
Cash 867,075,563 4,168,194 38,823,016 910,066,773 910,018,775
Money market 31,310,576 101,689,618 21,632,541 154,632,735 154,632,735
Nonnegotiable certificates of
deposit 250,524 250,524 250,524
Total Cash 898,636,663 105,857,812 60,455,557 1,064,950,032 1,064,902,034

I nvestments - The Commonwealth holds investments both for its
own benefit and as an agent for other related parties. The major
investment programs conducted for the direct benefit of the
Commonwealth are administered by the Office of Financial
Management. The credit risk of those investments held in the
Commonwealth’s investment pool isall Category (1). The credit
risk mix of the retirement systems, component units, and other
Commonwealth agencies is disclosed in the financia statement
footnotesof theindividual entities. Thefollowingtablescategorize
the Primary Government’ s and Component Units' investments as:
Category (1) those investments which are insured or registered, or
held by the Commonwealth of Kentucky or its agent in the
Commonwealth’ sname; Category (2) thoseinvestmentswhich are
uninsured and unregistered with securitieshel d by thecounterparty’ s
trust department or agentinthe Commonwealth’ sname; and Category

(3) those investments which are uninsured and unregistered for
which the securities are held by the counterparty or by its trust
department or agent but not in the Commonwealth’ s name.

Statutes require that securities underlying repurchase agreements
must have a fair value of at least 102 percent of the cost of the
repurchase agreement. The fair value of securities underlying
repurchase agreements fell below this required level on a few
occasionsduringtheyear; however, nolossesweresustained dueto
thefall incollateralizationlevels. Thecollateralizationismonitored
onaweekly basis (as specified within 200 KAR 14.081) and at any
point wherethe coll ateralization fall sbelow 102 percent of the cost
of the repurchase agreement, the seller/borrower is contacted and
the situation is normally rectified within two business days.
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Investments - Primary Government

Collaterized mortgage obligations
Commercial paper
Common stocks
Corporate bonds
Government securities
Negotiable certificates of deposit
Open-end mutual funds
Repurchase agreements
Securities lending collateral
State and municipal obligations
Totals
Government securities
Securities lending collateral
Mutual Funds
Mortgages
Real estate
State investment pool
KERS short term investment pool
Held by brokers/dealers
under securities loaned:
Common stocks
Corporate bonds
Government securities
Total Investments

Investments - Component Units

Commercial paper

Common stocks

Corporate bonds

Equity in health care corps
Government securities
Negotiable certificates of deposit
Mutual funds

Repurchase agreements

State and municipal obligations
Other

Totals

Guaranteed investment contracts
Real estate

Mortgages

Mutual funds

State investment pool

Other

Total Investments

Categories Net

1 2 3 Investment Fair Value
60,575,152  $ $ 60,652,090 $ 60,575,152
146,140,529 1,647,691 58,708,927 206,682,763 206,497,147
14,806,870,487 129,704,288 14,936,574,775 14,936,574,775
3,046,771,841 62,950,828 3,109,830,625 3,109,722,669
2,626,318,706 55,057,169 136,547,835 2,818,159,104 2,817,923,710
494,336 494,964 494,336
19,703,478 128,932,258 148,635,736 148,635,736
1,319,444,975 177,342,000 1,496,811,689 1,496,786,975
1,058,684,000 683,199,087 1,741,883,087 1,741,883,087
545,649,678 2,847,529 549,157,397 548,497,207
23,610,949,704  $ 271,910,983 $ 1,184,730,107 25,068,882,230 25,067,590,794
1,171,451,869 1,171,451,869
1,029,905,024 1,029,905,024
620,734,655 620,734,655
375,287,453 375,287,453
27,312,681 28,474,180
1,881,490,000 1,881,490,000
1,079,603,429 1,079,603,429
222,654,549 222,654,549
1,892,859,690 1,892,859,690
33,370,181,580 $ 33,370,051,643

Categories Net

1 2 3 Investment Fair Value
$ 4,996,468 $ 4,996,468 $ 4,996,468
415,684,256 249,553,000 665,237,256 665,237,256
162,191,370 42,946,169 31,686,000 236,823,539 236,823,539
30,313,059 30,313,059 30,313,059
178,660,557 267,730,185 15,015,000 461,405,742 461,405,742
3,725,911 3,725,911 3,725,911
97,631,968 188,295,000 285,926,968 285,926,968
305,960,660 1,591,789 307,552,449 307,552,449
437,464 437,464 437,464
3,257,761 57,899,000 6,410,135 72,010,963 72,010,963
1,197,863,006 $ 375,163,611 $ 490,959,135 2,068,429,819 2,068,429,819
102,692 102,692
13,569,000 13,569,000
5,170,479 5,170,479
145,430,055 145,430,055
339,188,851 339,002,728
117,970,224 117,970,224
2,689,861,120 $ 2,689,674,997
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Securities Lending Program — State statutes authorize the
Commonwealth to enter into securities lending agreements. The
Commonwealth has entered into an agent agreement. The agent
lendsthe Commonwealth’ ssecuritiesinexchangefor cash. Thecash
isinvested in short-term securities. After rebate and expensesthe
Commonwealth receives 75 percent of the profit earned, witha 10
basi spoint minimum. Thesecuritiestransferred areapart of thetotal
investmentsreported above. Cashreceivedascollateral onsecurities
lending transactions and investments made with that cash are
reported asassets. The Commonwealth retainstheinterestincome
on the securities being transferred. During the year, the
Commonwealth earned $2,426,235.10in securitieslendingincome.
On June 30, 2004, the fair value of the securities transferred was
$1,147,246,287.71 and thefair val ue of the securities purchased by
the Commonwealth was $1,171,451,868.75. The collateralization
reguirements and monitoring procedures in the securities lending
program arethe sasmeasthoserequirementsin regard to repurchase
agreements. At year end, the Commonwealth had no credit risk
exposure to borrowers because the amounts the Commonwealth
owes the borrowers exceed the amounts the borrowers owe the
Commonwealth.

Cash and Investment Summary

As reported in the Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Current Cash
And Investments

Noncurrent
Investments

Governmental activities $ 563,877,000
Business-type activities $ 478,514,000
Fiduciary activities $ 1,714,433,000

$ 2,756,824,000

2,409,307,000
509,248,000
28,916,549,000

31,835,104,000

Total
$ 2,973,184,000
987,762,000
30,630,982,000
$ 34,591,928,000

68



INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

69



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2004

Note 6
CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2004
(Expressed in Thousands):

Primary Government

Beginning Ending

Primary Government: Balance Restated Additions Decreases Balance
Governmental Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 96,525 $ 8,998 $ (1,152) 104,371

Construction in progress 2,373,438 695,797 (712,109) 2,357,126

Infrastructure 14,588,395 557,643 (18,602) 15,127,436
Total capital assets not being depreciated 17,058,358 1,262,438 (731,863) 17,588,933
Capital assets, being depreciated/amortized:

Improvements other than buildings 9,165 257 (356) 9,066

Buildings 794,604 157,769 (1,038) 951,335

Machinery and Equipment 498,263 41,511 (44,175) 495,599

Easements and Other Intangibles 32,958 13,560 (2,435) 44,083
Total capital assets, being depreciated/amortized 1,334,990 213,097 (48,004) 1,500,083
Less accumulated depreciation/amortization:

Improvements other than buildings (4,579) (551) 1,619 (3,511)

Buildings (319,877) (25,521) 2,001 (343,397)

Machinery and Equipment (302,473) (43,244) 31,881 (313,836)

Easements and Other Intangibles (2,887) (1,014) 81 (3,820)
Total accumulated depreciation (629,816) (70,330) 35,582 (664,564)
Total capital assets, being depreciated/amortized, net 705,174 142,767 (12,422) 835,519
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 17,763,532 $ 1,405,205 $  (744,285) 18,424,452
Business-type activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 19,403 $ 113 $ 19,516

Construction in progress 64,754 2,215 (5,879) 61,090
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 84,157 2,328 (5,879) 80,606
Capital assets, being depreciated/amortized:

Improvements other than buildings 81,511 7,592 89,103

Buildings 184,852 1,372 186,224

Machinery and Equipment 57,540 10,557 (8,952) 59,145

Easements and Other Intangibles 2,321 1 2,322
Total capital assets, being depreciated/amortized 326,224 19,522 (8,952) 336,794
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Improvements other than buildings (45,878) (1,790) (47,668)

Buildings (65,184) (5,602) 91 (70,695)

Machinery and Equipment (40,417) (3,033) 2,449 (41,001)

Easements and Other Intangibles (178) (178)
Total accumulated depreciation (151,657) (10,425) 2,540 (159,542)
Total capital assets, being depreciated/amortized, net 174,567 9,097 (6,412) 177,252
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 258,724 $ 11,425 $ (12,291) 257,858
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Depreciation expense, charged to functions/programs
of the primary government as follows:

General Government

Legislative and Judicial

Commerce

Education and Humanities

Human Resources

Justice

Natural Resources and Environmental Protection

Public Protection and Regulation

Transportation

Capital assets held by government's internal service
funds are charged to the various functions based on
usage of the assets

State Parks

Lottery Corporation

Horse Park

Insurance Administration

Total depreciation expense by activities

Discretely presented major component units
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2004
(Expressed in Thousands):

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Totals, capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated/amortized:
Improvements other than buildings
Buildings
Machinery and Equipment
Easements and Other Intangibles
Total capital assets, being depreciated/amortized

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Improvements other than buildings
Buildings
Machinery and Equipment
Easements and Other Intangibles

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated/amortized, net

Component units capital assets, net

Depreciation expense, charged to functions/programs

of discretely presented major component units as follows:
Kentucky Housing Corporation

Kentucky Higher Education Assistance Authority
Kentucky School Facilities Construction Commission
University of Kentucky

University of Louisville

Kentucky Community and Technical College System

Total depreciation expense by activities

Governmental Business-type
activities activities
6,042
987
6,047
4,076
3,896
14,736
2,840
572
14,367
16,767
7,220
2,194
669
342
70,330 $ 10,425

Component Units

Beginning Ending
Balance Restated Additions Retirements Balance
$ 90,027 7,581 $ (924) $ 96,684
164,494 93,922 (105,509) 152,907
254,521 101,503 (106,433) 249,591
63,819 2,506 66,325
1,959,586 158,963 (3,055) 2,115,494
786,863 119,609 (33,268) 873,204
9,046 71 9,117
2,819,314 281,149 (36,323) 3,064,140
(40,765) (1,734) 0 (42,499)
(764,094) (56,665) 716 (820,043)
(493,718) (84,969) 30,898 (547,789)
(5,776) 0 (5,776)
(1,304,353) (143,368) 31,614 (1,416,107)
1,514,961 137,781 (4,709) 1,648,033
$ 1,769,482 239,284 $  (111,142) $ 1,897,624
704
2,485
75,563
30,313
34,303
143,368
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Note 7

Interfund Transactions
The table below shows the interfund operating transfers for the fiscal year 2004
(Expressed in Thousands):

Transfers Out

Agency Capital
General Transportation Federal Revenue Projects
Transfers In Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

General Fund $ $ $ 176 $ 68,714 $ 15,181
Transportation Fund 1,320
Federal Fund 9,839
Agency Revenue Fund 43,981 18,846 2,292
Capital Projects Fund 2,824 7,872 1,449 10,091
Non-Major Governmental Funds 348,534 159,413 1,351 179,713 40,110
State Parks Fund 28,413 307 45 7,993
Kentucky Horse Park Fund 2,021 18 442
Insurance Administration Fund
Unemployment Compensation Fund 12
Internal Service Funds 1,755 20 124 4,135
Fiduciary Funds 414

Total $ 427,942 167,285 $ 22,167 $ 268,538 % 71,473
Reasons for transfers:
1) to move resources from the General Fund, for budgetary purposes, to the fund that will expend them; 2) to move resources from funds recording
the revenue to the Debt Service Fund, for debt service payments; 3) to move resources from the funds recording the revenue to the Capital
Projects Fund to finance acquisition of capital assets; and 4) to move resources from the Kentucky Lottery Corporation to the General Fund.
Interfund Receivables and Payables
The table below shows the interfund receivables and payables for the fiscal year 2004
(Expressed in Thousands):

Interfund Payables
Agency
General Transportation Federal Revenue
Interfund Receivables Fund Fund Fund Fund

General Fund $ 758 $ 77,219 $ 20,982
Transportation Fund 30 338 1,750
Federal Fund 8,390 41,194 22,986
Agency Revenue Fund 21,163 9,795 13,108 3
Capital Projects Fund 2,077 281 82 1,311
Non-Major Governmental Funds 18,607 633 4,174 4,145
State Parks Fund 12 2 13 18
Kentucky Horse Park Fund
Insurance Administration Fund 3 2 4 17
Unemployment Compensation Fund
Internal Service Funds 1,235 455 36 230
Fiduciary Funds 123 4 21

Totals $ 51,640 53,124 $ 94,974 $ 51,463

Reasons for interfund payables and receivables:

1) to record sales by proprietary funds to other funds; 2) to record reimbursements of expenditures made in one fund for another fund;

and 3) to distribute program cost among funds.

72



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2004
Transfers Out
Non-Major State Kentucky Kentucky Insurance Unemployment Internal
Governmental Parks Lottery Horse Park Administration Compensation Service Fiduciary
Funds Fund Corporation Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds Total
$ 56,561 $ 1256 $ 173,800 $ 150 $ 28,166 $ $ 9,160 $ 5352 % 358,516
173 4,284 5,777
619 1,162 203 11,823
322,368 21,178 1,004 956 410,625
33,583 224 36 7 676 56,762
192,957 265 11,426 3,306 1,293 938,368
36,758
2,481
13 25
6,034
414
$ 606,274  $ 1,745  $ 185,226 $ 186 $ 49,351 % 4,468 $ 12,336 $ 10592 $ 1,827,583
Interfund Payables
Capital Non-Major State Kentucky Insurance Unemployment Internal
Projects Governmental Parks Horse Park Administration Compensation Service Fiduciary
Fund Funds Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds Total
$ 45 $ 15,810 $ 1,571 $ 150 $ 26,502 $ $ 2,712 $ 1,373 $ 147,122
38 33 6 2,195
1,259 12 203 74,044
336 19,144 2 13 7 27 2,506 66,104
675 1 2,755 7,182
1 80,052 2 10 736 2 108,362
1 46
4 4
177 203
2 1 3
1 4 88 1 161 2,211
148
$ 425 $ 116,946 $ 1,663 $ 164 $ 26,533 $ 736 $ 5,893 $ 4,063 $ 407,624
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Note 8 |

PENSION PLANS

Under the provisions of Kentucky Revised Statutes (KRS) 61.645,
the Board of Trustees of the Kentucky Retirement Systems
administersthe Kentucky Employees Retirement System (KERS),
County Employees Retirement System (CERS), and State Police
Retirement System (SPRS).

The Commonwealth contributesto the KERS, amultiple-employer
cost sharing defined benefit pension plan that covers substantially
all regular full-time members employed in non-hazardous and
hazardous duty positions of any state department, board, or any
agency directed by Executive Order to participate in the System.
The plan provides for retirement, disability, and death benefits to
planmembers. Retirement benefitsmay beextendedto beneficiaries
of theplanmembersunder certain circumstances. Per KRS61.565(3),
normal contribution and past service contribution rates shall be
determined by the Board on the basis of an annual valuation last
preceding the July 1 of anew biennium. The Board may amend the
contribution rates as of the first day of July of the second year of a
biennium, if it is determined on the basis of a subsequent actuarial
valuation that amended contribution rates are necessary to satisfy
requirementsdeterminedinaccordancewithactuarial basesadopted
by the Board. However, forma commitment to provide the
contributions by the employer ismadethrough the biennial budget.
The System’s administrative budget and employer contribution
ratesaresubject totheapproval of theK entucky General Assembly.
Employee contribution rates are set by the statute and may be
changed only by the Kentucky General Assembly.

TheCommonwealthisthe predominant employer for KERSand for
note disclosure purposes will be considered as a single employer
plan.

CERS, a multiple employer cost sharing defined benefit pension
plan, providesfor retirement, disability, and death benefitsto plan
members.

SPRSisasingle-employer defined benefit plan that coversall full-
time State Troopers employed in a hazardous duty position by the
Kentucky State Police. Theplan providesfor retirement, disability,
and death benefits to plan members. Retirement benefits may be
extended to beneficiaries of the plan members under certain
circumstances. Per KRS 61.565(3), normal contribution and past
service contribution rates shall be determined by the Board on the
basis of an annual valuation last preceding the July 1 of a new
biennium. The Board may amend the contribution rates as of the
first day of July of the second year of abiennium, if it isdetermined
on the basis of a subsequent actuarial valuation that amended
contribution ratesare necessary to satisfy requirements determined
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inaccordancewith actuarial basesadopted by theBoard. However,
formal commitment to providethe contributionsby theemployeris
made through the biennial budget. The financial statements are
prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Plan member
contributionsarerecogni zedintheperiodinwhich contributionsare
due. Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when due
and the employer has made a formal commitment to provide the
contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with terms of the plan.

Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term investmentsare
reported at cost, which approximatesfair value. Securitiestradedon
a national exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at
current exchange rates. The fair value of real estate is based on
appraisals. Investmentsthat do not have an established market are
reported at estimated fair value.

Cost-of -living adjustments(COL A) areprovided at thediscretion of
the State L egislature.

Theallocation of insurance premiumspaid by the Fund and amounts
withheld from members' benefitsis based on years of servicewith
the Systems, asfollows:

Percent Paid by
Member Through
Payroll Deduction

Percent Paid by

Years of Service Insurance Fund

0%
25%
50%
75%

100%

100%
75%
50%
25%

0%

20 or more
15-19
10-14

4-9

Less than 4

TheK entucky Retirement Systemissuesapublicly availablefinancial
reportthat includesfinancial statementsand required supplementary
information for the above mentioned retirement systems. That
report may beobtained by writingtheK entucky Retirement System,
1260 Louisville Road, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601-6124, or by
telephone at (502) 564-4646.

The Judicial Retirement Plan is asingle employer defined benefit
plan, which providesretirement, disability and death benefitstoplan
membersandtheir beneficiaries. COLA areprovidedat thediscretion
of the StateL egislature, except that exi sting | egislation providesthat
apension benefit shall beincreased, if necessary, sothat it equalsan
amount cal culated by using a1.5125 percent benefit rate and the 60
month average earnings of the position held by the member at
retirement. Contribution rates are established by KRS 21.525.

The Legislators' Retirement Plan is a single employer defined
benefit plan providing retirement, disability, and death benefitsto
plan members and their beneficiaries. COLA are provided at the
discretion of the State L egislature, except that existing legislation
provides that a pension benefit shall be increased, if necessary, so
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that it equal san amount cal culated by using a1.925 percent benefit
rate and the 60 month average earnings of the position held by the
member at the time of his retirement. Contribution rates are
established by KRS 21.525.

The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. Plan member contributionsto the plan are recognized
when dueandtheemployer hasmadeformal commitment toprovide
the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due
and payable in accordance with terms of the Plans.

Investments are reported at fair value. Securities traded on a
national exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at
current exchangerates. Investmentsthat do not have an established
market are reported at estimated fair value.

The Judicial Form Retirement System issues a publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the above mentioned retirement
systems. That report may be obtained by writing to the Judicial
Form Retirement System, P.O. Box 791, Frankfort, Kentucky
40601-6124, or by telephone at (502) 564-5310.

TheKentucky Teachers' Retirement System (K TRS) wasestablished
by the 1938 General Assembly and is governed by Chapter 161
Section 220 through Section 990 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes.
KTRS is a multiple-employer cost sharing defined benefit plan
established to provide pension plan coverage for local school
districts and other educational agenciesin the state.

The financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting. Member contributions and employer matching are
recognized inthefiscal year due. Planinvestmentsare reported at
fair value. Short-term securities are carried at cost, which
approximatesfair value. Fixedincomeand common and preferred
stocks are generally valued based on published market prices and
guotations from national security exchanges and security pricing
services. Rea estate is primarily valued based on appraisals
performed by independent appraisers.

COLA are one and one-half percent annually. Additional ad hoc
increases and any other benefit amendments must be authorized by
the General Assembly.

The Kentucky Teachers' Retirement System issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information. That report may be obtained
by writingtheK entucky Teachers' Retirement System, 479V ersailles
Road, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601.
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Kentucky Kentucky
Legislators' Judicial
Retirement Plan Retirement Plan

Contribution rates:

State 45.20% 22.84%

Plan members 5.00% 5.00%
Portion of State Contribution

for Health Insurance
Annual pension costs

(Thousands) $651 $2,134
Contributions made

(Thousands) $709 $2,134
Actuarial valuation date June 30, 2004 June 30, 2004
Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit Projected unit credit
Amortization method Interest + 1% Interest + 1%

Unfunded past liability Unfunded past liability

Remaining amortization period 25 years 25 years
Asset valuation method Market value Market value
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 8.00% 8.00%

Inflation Rate

Projected salary increases 5.50% 5.50%

Increases in Health

Insurance Cost 6% - 10% 6% - 10%

(Dollar amounts in thousands)
ARC $ 651 $ 2,134
Interest on NPO 277
Adjustment to ARC (277)
Annual pension cost 651 2,134
Contributions made 709 2,134
Increase (Decrease) in NPO (58)
NPO beginning of year 3,465
NPO end of year $ (58) $ 3,465
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State Police
Retirement
System

21.58%
8.00%

21.58%

$10,211

$9,608
June 30, 2004
Entry age normal

Level percent closed

30 years

Five-year smoothing of
investment gains and losses

8.25%
3.50%

6.50%

7.5% - 10%

$ 9,611
1,066
(647)
10,030
9,608
422
12,921
$ 13,343

Kentucky Employees

Retirement
System

Kentucky Teachers'
Retirement
System

5.89% - 18.84%
5% - 7%

5.89% -12.66%

$153,182

$124,442
June 30, 2004

Entry age normal

Level percent closed

30 years

Five-year smoothing of
investment gains and losses

8.25%

3.50%

6.50%

7.5% - 10%

150,234
7,506
(4,558)

14.745% - 16.225%
7.625% -9.105%

0.75%

$322,047

$322,047
June 30, 2004
Projected unit credit
Level percent open
30 years
Five-year smoothec

market

7.50%
4.00%

4.00% - 8.10%

9% - 13.5%

322,047

153,182
124,442

322,047
322,047

28,740
90,979

119,719
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Schedule of Funding Progress
Actuarial Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Accrued (Overfunded) Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
Kentucky Employees Retirement System
Non-Hazardous
June 30, 2002 $ 6,654,084,196 6,026,094,764 (627,989,432) 110.4 $ 1,595,809,458 (39.4)
June 30, 2003 6,351,318,832 6,520,463,188 169,144,356 97.4 1,658,604,696 10.2
June 30, 2004 6,000,513,743 7,049,613,171 1,049,099,428 85.1 1,645,412,496 63.8
Hazardous
June 30, 2002 $ 376,384,302 322,069,164 (54,315,138) 116.9 $ 125,275,925 (43.4)
June 30, 2003 385,925,722 356,879,133 (29,046,589) 108.1 129,088,956 (22.5)
June 30, 2004 397,212,763 403,578,036 6,365,273 98.4 126,664,812 5.0
State Police Retirement System
June 30, 2002 $ 438,955,465 380,790,346 (58,165,119) 115.3 $ 44,314,696 (131.3)
June 30, 2003 413,063,576 414,881,459 1,817,883 99.6 43,760,832 4.2
June 30, 2004 385,077,195 437,482,425 52,405,230 88.0 43,835,208 119.6
Judicial Retirement Plan
June 30, 2002 $ 265,693,347 185,310,835 (80,382,512) 143.4 $ 26,208,973 (306.7)
June 30, 2003 234,298,628 202,838,112 (31,460,516) 115.5 26,159,412 (120.3)
June 30, 2004 247,388,763 218,117,389 (29,271,374) 113.4 25,905,022 (113.0)
Legislators' Retirement Plan
June 30, 2002 $ 67,892,070 51,095,992 (16,796,078) 132.9 $ 4,879,301 (344.2)
June 30, 2003 59,379,470 49,168,446 (10,211,024) 120.8 2,695,000 (378.9)
June 30, 2004 62,786,767 50,213,770 (12,572,997) 125.0 2,585,000 (486.4)
Kentucky Teachers' Retirement System
June 30, 2002 $ 13,588,847,000 15,695,574,000 2,106,727,000 86.6 $ 2,313,663,000 91.1
June 30, 2003 13,863,786,000 16,594,781,000 2,730,995,000 83.5 2,497,731,000 109.3
June 30, 2004 14,255,131,000 17,617,626,000 3,362,495,000 80.9 2,641,533,000 127.3
Membership of the retirement systems, at June 30, 2004, is
shown in the following table:
Kentucky County State Judicial Legislators' Kentucky
Employees Employees Police Retirement Retirement Teachers'
Retirement Retirement Retirement  Fund Fund Retirement
System System System System TOTAL
Non-Hazardous Hazardous Non-Hazardous Hazardous
Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 28,892 1,549 29,129 4,005 992 246 134 35,803 100,750
Terminated plan members - vested 4,833 260 6,927 361 46 24 49 3,003 15,503
Terminated plan members - non-vested 20,951 1,772 37,509 1,287 201 61,720
Active plan members 47,599 4,014 80,922 9,349 999 244 227 71,950 215,304
Total Members 102,275 7,595 154,487 15,002 2,238 514 410 110,756 393,277
Number of participating employers 411 1,389 1 1 1 199 2,002
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Three year trend for contributions
(Expressed in thousands):
Annual
Required
Contribution

Percentage
Contributed

Kentucky Employees Retirement System
Non-Hazardous

2002 $ 93,993 101.8%
2003 96,958 75.2%
2004 125,691 79.3%
Hazardous

2002 $ 23,601 100.9%
2003 24,351 95.3%
2004 24,543 100.8%
State Police Retirement System

2002 $ 9,563 100.0%
2003 9,444 80.8%
2004 9,611 100.0%
Judicial Retirement Plan

2002 $ 3,878 105.6%
2003 2,134 100.0%
2004 2,134 100.0%
Legislator's Retirement Plan

2002 $ 692 110.0%
2003 651 109.0%
2004 651 109.0%
Kentucky Teachers' Retirement System

2002 $ 284,795 100.0%
2003 322,047 100.0%
2004 364,351 100.0%
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Note 9

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

Deferred Compensation

Employees of the Commonwealth, its cities, counties, and local
school districts are eligible to participate in two deferred
compensation plans as authorized by the United States Internal
Revenue Code. Theseplans, |abeled 457 and 401(k), after sections
of the Code, are administered by the Personnel Cabinet and an
independent Plan administrator. The Commonwealth, through a
board of trusteesasdefinedin KRS 18A.245, sel ectstheadministrator
to oversee the daily operations and technical compliance of the
Plans with applicable sections of the Internal Revenue Code. The
Commonwealth’s responsibilities consist of withholding payroll
deductionsfor itsemployees, collecting employeewithholdings of
the cities, counties, and local school districts, and remitting those
withholdings to the plan administrators holding fixed and variable
annuity contracts (carriers). Both Plans permit employeesto defer
collectingaportionof their salary until futureyears. Thisdeferment
isnot availableto employeesuntil termination, retirement, death, or
unforeseeable emergency. Assets of the 457 Plan and the 401(Kk)
Plan arereported in aPension Trust Fund withinthefiduciary fund
type, in compliance with Internal Revenue Code and GASB 32
requirements.

Of the$480,612,182inthe457 Planat June 30, 2004, $280,031,604
was applicable to the Commonwealth, while the remaining
$200,580,580representsassetsof theother jurisdictionsparticipating
inthe Plan. The 401(k) Plan had total plan assets of $572,391,244
at June 30, 2004, of which $255,453,689 was applicableto the state
while the remaining $316,937,560 represents other participating
jurisdictions.

Note 10

LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The Commonwealth has entered into various leases for buildings
and equipment. Generally, leases contain termination clauses
providingfor cancellation after a30-, 60-, or 90-dayswritten notice.
In addition, certain leases contain appropriation clausesindicating
that continuation of the leaseis subject to funding by the General
Assembly. Itisexpected that inthenormal courseof businessmost
of these leases will be replaced by similar leases.

A portion of thecapital |easeliability for theUniversity and College
Fund is applicableto leases with the Commonweal th.

Changes in leases payable for the year ended June 30, 2004, are
summarized in Note 15, Changesin Long-Term Obligations.
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At June 30, 2004, capitalized leases included Buildings
and Equipment as follows (Expressed in Thousands):

Buildings and Equipment acquired through capital

Primary Government

leases are recorded at the lessor of fair market value Governmental Business-Type Component
or present value of future minimum lease payments. Activities Activities Units-Major
Buildings $ $ $ 44,455
Equipment 43,949 340 15,275
Total 43,949 340 59,730
Less: Accumulated depreciation (16,859) (160) (3,172)
Total Net of Depreciation $ 27,090 $ 180 $ 56,558
Future minimum rental commitments for capitalizable leases as of
June 30, 2004, are as follows (Expressed in Thousands):
Component
Primary Government Units-Major
University
Governmental Business-Type and College
Activities Activities Funds Total
2005 $ 8,022 % 114 % 9720 $ 17,856
2006 5,845 98 7,160 13,103
2007 3,498 46 5,809 9,353
2008 1,939 12 5,035 6,986
2009 2 4,753 4,755
2010-2014 23,633 23,633
2015-2019 21,699 21,699
2020-2024 7,196 7,196
2025-2029 80 80
Total minimum lease payments 19,304 272 85,085 104,661
Less: Amount representing interest
(3.50-25%) (2,052) (27) (21,285) (23,364)
Present value of future minimum
lease payments $ 17252 $ 245 % 63800 $ 81,297

Note 11

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Commonwealth is exposed to various risks of loss related to
torts: theft, damage, and destruction of assets; errorsand omissions;
injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Commonwealth
utilizes the Risk Management Fund to account for these activities.

Fireand Tornado I nsurance:

TheFireand Tornado Insurance Program is established to account
for and finance its uninsured risk of loss arising from damages to
Statebuildingsand personal property. Under thisprogram, coverage
isprovided for up to amaximum of $500,000 per occurrence of 10ss
for each insured subject of risk. The Fire and Tornado Insurance
Program purchases reinsurance for claims in excess of coverage
provided by the Program. Settled claims have not exceeded
commercial coveragein any of the past three fiscal years.

Theclaimsliability of $765,468 reportedinthe Program at June 30,
2004, isbased ontherequirementsof GASB 10, whichrequiresthat
aliability for claimsbereportedif information prior to theissuance
of thefinancial statementsindicatesthat itisprobablethat aliability
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has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Changes in the
Program’s claims liability amount in Fiscal Y ears 2004 and 2003
were:

Fiscal Year 2004 Fiscal Year 2003

Beginning of fiscal year

liability $ 1,407,000 $ 1,900,000
Incurred claims 3,069,211 1,115,304
Changes in estimates

Claims payments (3,710,743) (1,608,304)
Balance at Fiscal Year End $ 765,468 $ 1,407,000

Self-Insured Workers Compensation:

The Workers' Compensation Program is self-insurance for the
benefit of the Commonwealth’ sempl oyees, and othersasdescribed
in KRS 18A.370. Losses payable by the Program include medical
claimsandlossof wagesasaresult of anemploymentrelatedinjury.
Premiums are established based upon estimated claims and
administrative cost for thecomingfiscal year. TheProgram carries
reinsurancecoveragefor largeindividual orincident claimsbetween
$5,000,000 and $20,000,000.
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Theactuarially determined aggregateclaimsliability of $95,541,237
reportedintheProgramat June 30, 2004, includesboth reported and
unreported insured events, including estimates of future payments
of lossesandrelated claims’ adjustments. ChangesintheProgram’s
claimsliability amount in Fiscal Y ears 2004 and 2003 were:

Fiscal Year 2004 Fiscal Year 2003

Beginning of fiscal year

liability $ 94,552,483 $ 90,306,276
Claims and claims
adjustments incurred:
Current year 20,319,865 21,341,688
Prior year (4,312,334) (2,688,796)
Total Claims and Claims
Adjustments Incurred: 16,007,531 18,652,892
Claims and claims adjustment
payments:
Current year (3,655,564) (3,733,009)
Prior year (11,363,213) (10,673,676)
Total Claims and Claims
Adjustment Payments (15,018,777) (14,406,685)
Balance at Fiscal Year End $ 95,541,237 $ 94,552,483

Transportation Cabinet Workers Compensation:
TheTransportation Cabinet’ sSelf-Insured Workers Compensation
Trust Program (the“Program”) wasorganized on July 1, 1963, asa
self-insurance fund administered by the Transportation Cabinet of
the Commonwealth of Kentucky (the “Cabinet”). The purpose of
the Program isto provide workers' compensation insurance to the
employees of the Cabinet. Thelossesincurred by the Program are
serviced by a designated third-party administrator who processes
and reports all claims to the program. Changes in the Program’s
claimsliability amount in Fiscal Y ears 2004 and 2003 were:

Fiscal Year 2004 Fiscal Year 2003

Beginning of fiscal year liability $ 22,654,575 % 21,178,961
Claims and claims

adjustments incurred 2,649,206 5,114,890
Changes in estimates (1,376,374)

Claims and claims adjustment

payments (3,582,585) (3,639,276)
Balance at Fiscal Year End $ 20,344,822  $ 22,654,575
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| Note 12

RISK POOLS

The Commonwealth’ srisk poolsare the Insurance Administration
Fund (enterprise fund) and the Grain Insurance Corporation and
Kentucky Access(component units). Thelnsurance Administration
Fundincludestheoperationsof fiverisk poolsasfollows: Workers'
Compensation I nsurance, Coal WorkersPneumoconiosis, Petroleum
Storage Tank Assurance, Bond Pool, and Mine Subsi dencel nsurance.
Thelnsurance Administration Corporationisreported as part of the
primary government. Kentucky Access and the Grain Insurance
Corporation are risk pools reported as discrete component units.

Risk Pools- Enterprise Funds

Workers Compensation I nsurance;

The Kentucky Workers' Compensation Insurance Program, arisk
sharing pool, covers preexisting conditions to protect employers
from having to pay for injuries not sustained while under their
employment, or more than once for disabilities resulting from the
same accident. This Program encourages reemployment of injured
workers at adequate wages by relieving the employer of the
regquirement of paying disability compensation in addition to full
wages. TheProgramal socoversclaimsagai nst uninsured employers.

TheProgram establishesclaimsliabilities based on estimates of the
ultimatecost of claims(including futureclaimadjustment expenses)
that have been reported but not settled, and of claimsthat havebeen
incurred but not reported. The claims liability of $909,003,565, as
reported in the financial statements, is the present value of the
aggregateactuarially determined claimsliability of $2,085,039,042,
discounted at 7.0 percent, and net of the estimated realizable value
of reimbursements. The claimsadjusted liability of $21,418,361 as
reported in the financial statements is the present value is the
aggregateactuarially determinedliability of $46,801,769, discounted
at 7.0 percent.

The actuarially determined liabilities described above arise from
projectionsincludedinabiennial actuarial report that wasperformed
asof June 30, 2003. Changesinthe Program’ saggregateliabilities
for claims and claims adjustment for the past two yearswere:

Fiscal Year 2004 Fiscal Year 2003

Beginning of fiscal year

liability $ 2,165,474,600 $ 2,393,132,269
Claims and claims

adjustments incurred 3,491,639

Changes in estimates 46,801,769 (139,477,491)
Claims and claims

adjustment payments (83,927,197) (88,180,178)
Balance at Fiscal Year End $ 2,131,840,811 $ 2,165,474,600
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Coal Workers' Pneumoconiosis Fund:

The Coa Workers Pneumoconiosis Fund (CWPF) was created
within the Labor Cabinet through the enactment of House Bill No.
1 by the December 1996 Special Session of the General Assembly.
TheCWHPFisliablefor one-half of theincomebenefitsandretraining
incentive benefitsfor occupational pneumoconiosisresulting from
exposureto coal dust createdinthe severanceor processing of coal.
The employer isliablefor the remaining half.

In accordance with House Bill No. 1 from the December 1996
Special Session, the Kentucky Workers' Compensation Funding
Commissionshall imposeapneumoconiosi sassessment to pre-fund
the liabilities of the CWPF and to finance its administration. The
assessment is 3.0 percent of workers compensation premiums
received onor after January 1, 1997, from employersengagedinthe
severance or processing of coal and an additional assessment of
$0.025 per ton imposed upon coal severed on or after January 1,
1997. All pneumoconiosis assessments collected by the Funding
Commission are to be credited to a separate account within the
Benefit Reserve Fund and to be transferred as necessary to pay
administrative expenses and current claims of the CWPF.

TheCoa Workers' Pneumoconiosi sFund establishesclaimsliability
based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims (including future
claimsadjustment expenses) that have been reported but not settled,
and of claimsthat have been incurred but not reported. Theclaims
liability of $8,124,606, asreportedinthefinancial statements, isthe
present value of the aggregate actuarially determined liability of
$10,090,604, discounted at 7.0 percent. The claims adjustment
liability of $844,959, asreported in thefinancial statements, isthe
present value of the aggregate actuarially determined liability of
$1,049,423, discounted at 7.0 percent. Changes in the aggregate
liability for claims and claims adjustments for the past two years
wereasfollows:

Fiscal Year 2004 Fiscal Year 2003

Beginning of fiscal year

liability $ 9,553,619 $ 2,615,938
Claims and claims

adjustments incurred 1,859,586

Changes in estimates 1,049,423 7,073,797
Claims and claims

adjustment payments (1,322,601) (136,116)
Balance at Fiscal Year End $ 11,140,027 $ 9,553,619

As stated above, the Coal Workers' Pneumoconiosis Fund was
created by the December 1996 Special Session of the General
Assembly. Therefore, there are no provisions for claims prior to
1997.
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Petroleum Storage Tank Environmental AssuranceProgram:
TheOfficeof the Petroleum Storage Tank Environmental Assurance
Program, arisk sharing pool, wascreated inthe 1990 regul ar session
of theKentucky General Assembly. The purposeof the Programis
to assist petroleum storage tank owners or operatorsin complying
with federal financial responsibility requirements relating to
petroleum storagetanksandin cleaning up contaminati on caused by
leaking tanks. A feepaid (at arate of oneand four-tenths cents per
gallon) by dealerson each gallon of gasolinefundsthe Programand
special fuelsreceived in the Commonwealth funds the program.

ThePrograminsurespetroleum storagetank ownersor operatorsfor
cost incurred for cleanup and other corrective action required in
cleaning up contamination caused by leaking petroleum storage
tanks. The Program also provides coverage for third party claims
against the owners or operatorsfor damages sustained asaresult of
leaking storage tanks. Claims paid by the Program are subject to
deductiblesthat are applied separately, by occurrence, for cleanup
claims and third party damage claims. The deductible is set at
$1,000 per occurrence for ownersor operatorsof fiveor lesstanks,
and at $5,000 for owners or operators of six to ten tanks, and at
$25,000 for owners of more than ten tanks.

TheProgram establishesclaimsliabilitiesbased on estimatesof the
ultimatecost of claims(including futureclaimadjustment expenses)
that have been reported but not settled, and of claimsthat havebeen
incurred but not reported. Theclaimsliability of $173,266,000 that
wasreportedinthefinancial statementsisthe aggregateactuarially
determined claims liability and is not discounted. Changesin the
Program’ saggregateliabilitiesfor claimsand claimsadjustment for
the past two years were:

Fiscal Year 2004 Fiscal Year 2003

Beginning of fiscal year

liability, restated $ 177,188,000 $ 195,186,000
Claims and claims
adjustments incurred 24,721,000 10,645,000

Changes in estimates

Claims and claims

adjustment payments (28,643,000) (28,643,000)

Balance at Fiscal Year End  $ 173,266,000 $ 177,188,000

Bond Pool:

The Bond Pool was established in 1986 to provide an aternative
bonding program for small to medium sized coal companies in
Kentucky. Membership in the Pool is voluntary and prospective
members must apply to become members. Applicants must meet
standards set by the Bond Pool Commission to be accepted as
membersof theBond Pool. Thesecriteria, usedto evaluatepotential
Bond Pool members, consider factors such as mining experience,
reclamation history, and financial condition of the applicant.
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TheCommission, based onthestandardsconsi deredintheapplication
process, rates accepted members. The members are rated and
assessed an initial membership fee based on thisrating. This fee
rangesfrom $1,000 to $2,500. Additionally members pay tonnage
fees of $.05 per ton of surface mined coa and $.01 per ton for
underground mined coal. Provisions are also in effect where the
tonnagefeeis suspended for memberswho have participated inthe
Program for 36 months, or when the Program balance exceeds $7
million.

Thecoal companiesparticipatingintheProgramarerequiredto post
apermit specific bond based on the number of acres permitted and
their rating in the Program. The Bond Pool in turn provides
coveragefor reclamation coststhat exceed the permit specific bond
but limitsclaimstothetotal amount of bond required by the permit.
The Bond Pool does not pay claimsfor costsincurred in excess of
the required bond amount.

TheProgram establishesclaimsliabilitiesbased on estimates of the
ultimatecost of claims(including futureclaim adjustment expenses)
that have been reported but not settled, and of claimsthat have been
incurred but not reported. The claims liability of $21,452,273, as
reported in the financial statements, is the aggregate actuarially
determined claims liability. There were no changes in claims
adjustment liability duringfiscal year 2004. ChangesintheProgram’s
aggregate liabilitiesfor claims and claims adjustmentsfor the past
two yearswere:

Fiscal Year 2004 Fiscal Year 2003

Beginning of fiscal year

liability $ 13,594,597 $ 13,594,597

Claims and claims
adjustments incurred

Changes in estimates 7,857,676

Claims and claims adjustment
payments

Balance at Fiscal Year End  $ 21,452,273 $ 13,594,597

Mine Subsidence | nsurance:

The Mine Subsidence Insurance Program is administered by the
Department of Insurance. The provisions of the Program require
that al insurance policiesissued or renewed that insure astructure
locatedinany county inthe Commonweal th, except thosespecifically
exempted by KRS 304.44-60, shall include a separately stated
premium for mine subsidence damage coverage. Thispremiumis
assessed at the amount determined by the Program, and theinsurer
isrequired to code this coverage to the Program. The insurer may
refuseto providecoveragewherepreexisting damageisdetermined
toexist. The Program provides coverage subject to adeductible of
2 percent of thepolicy’ stotal insured valueor not lessthan $250 and
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not more than $500. The Mine Subsidence Program also limitsits
coverage to $50,000 per structure.

GASB 10requiresthat aliability for claimsbereportedif information
prior to the issuance of the financial statementsindicatesthat itis
probablethat liability has been incurred at the date of the financial
statements and the amount of theloss can be reasonably estimated.
The claims liability of $155,000 as reported in the financial
statements, isthe aggregate actuarially determined claimsliability.
Changesin the Program’s claims liability amount in Fiscal Y ears
2004 and 2003 were;

Fiscal Year 2004 Fiscal Year 2003

Beginning of fiscal year

liability $ 65,000 $ 0
Claims and claims

adjustments incurred 223,598 65,000
Changes in estimates 79,391
Claims and claims adjustment

payments (133,598) (79,391)
Balance at Fiscal Year End  $ 155,000 $ 65,000

Risk Pools- Component Units

Kentucky Access:

Kentucky Accesswascreatedto ensurethat health coverageismade
availableto each applying and qualifying Kentucky individual. As
animplemented state sponsored “ high risk” pool, Kentucky Access
was established January 2, 2001 by KRS 304.17B-001 to 304.17B-
031. Itspurposeisthat Kentucky may continueflexibleregulation
of health coverage.

Inoperatingunder theDivisionof Kentucky AccessintheDepartment
of Insurance, KRS 12.050 and KRS 304.2-060 guides the
appointmentsof an appropriatedivisiondirector asappointed by the
commissioner of insurance. Also, the Guaranteed Acceptance
Program, as established by KRS 304.17A-400 to 304.17A-480,
helps participating insurance companies to recover losses from
individuals who met the “high risk” pool category by transferring
the fundsto Kentucky Access.

Under this program, a referral fee is paid to Kentucky Access. A
provider network is then established, or a provider network is
created by contracting with an insurer for a statewide provider
network. Under KRS304.17B-011theestablished provider network
isavailable and limited only to Kentucky Access enrollees.
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A third-party administrator chosenthroughthestatebidding process
administers Kentucky Access. The administrator develops and
establishes policies and procedures for enrolled participants and
potential enrollees. However, premium rates charged do not fully
cover health care costs; thus, claims exceeding premium rates shall
be covered by the Kentucky Access Fund.

Changesin the Program’s claims liability amount in Fiscal Y ears
2004 and 2003 were:

Fiscal Year 2004 Fiscal Year 2003

Beginning of fiscal year liability $ 5,530,547 $ 5,531
Claims and claims

adjustments incurred 4,760,766 5,525,016
Changes in estimates

Claims and claims adjustment

payments (2,380,433)

Balance at Fiscal Year End $ 7,910,880 $ 5,530,547

Grain Insurance:

TheGrainlnsurance Programwasestablished to promoteeconomic
stability inagricultureby providing coverageto grain producersfor
lossesincurred inthe event of afinancial failure of agraindealer or
grain warehousemen. The Program is funded by a half-cent per
bushel assessment on all marketed grain producedin Kentucky. The
Program also has provisionsthat the assessment can be suspended
whenthebal anceof the Programreaches$3 million and if suspended
will be reapplied when the balance of the Program drops to $2
million.

No claims liability was reported in the Program at June 30, 2004,
based on the requirements of GASB 10. Thisstatement prescribes
thereporting of aclaimliability if information prior to theissuance
of the financial statements indicates that a probable liability has
beenincurred at the date of thefinancial statements, and theamount
of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Claimsliability in Fiscal
Y ear 2003 was also zero.

Note 13

DEFEASANCE OF LONG-TERM DEBT

The State Property and BuildingsCommissionissued $117,145,000
of Revenue and Revenue Refunding Bonds, Project 77, dated
August 20, 2003. The net proceeds of thisissuewere $118,788,071
with apremium of $2,641,634 and i ssuance cost and underwriters
discount of $998,563. The net proceeds of the refunding portion
wereplacedinescrow accountstoadvancerefund certain University
of Kentucky Community CollegesEducational BuildingsRefunding
Revenue Bonds (SeriesA,C,F and H) and for the current refunding
of Kentucky Asset/Liability Commission Notes (2002 General
Fund SeriesA), State Property and BuildingsCommission Revenue
and Revenue Refunding Bonds(Project 54), University of Kentucky
Community and Colleges Educational Buildings Revenue Bonds
(Seriesl), and (SeriesJ). Thenet savings(reductionincashflow) for
theRefunding Bondswill be$2,896,525 and the present val ueof the
savingsis $1,668,971 at arate of 4.268%.

The State Property and Buildings Commission issued $39,985,000
of Revenue and Revenue Refunding Bonds, Project 80, Series A,
dated October 30, 2003. The net proceeds of this issue were
$41,987,124 with a premium of $2,464,306 and issuance cost and
underwriters' discount of $462,182. Thenet proceedsof therefunding
portion were placed in an escrow account to refund aportion of the
State Property and Buildings Commission Project 66, Series A,
Revenue Bonds. The net savings (reduction in cash flow) for the
Refunding Bonds will be $1,627,742 and the present value of the
savingsis $1,207,275 at arate of 4.152%.

The State Property and BuildingsCommissionissued $389,835,000
of Revenue and Revenue Refunding Bonds, Project 82, dated
February 25, 2004. Thenet proceedsof thisissuewere$436,533,612
withapremium of $50,735,811 andissuancecost and underwriters
discount of $4,037,199. Theproceedswereplacedin escrow accounts
torefund outstanding University of Kentucky Community Colleges
Educational Buildings Revenue Bonds, 1994 SeriesA, C, Fand H
(Second Series), andtoadvancerefund StateProperty and Buildings
Commission Revenue and Revenue Refunding Bondsfor Projects
57,59, 60, 63, 64, 67, 68, 69 (SeriesA), 72, and 74. The net savings
(reductionincashflow) for theRefunding Bondswill be$25,940,116
and the present value of the savings is $24,050,754 at a rate of
3.818%.

The State Property and BuildingsCommissionissued $195,910,000
of Revenue and Revenue Refunding Bonds, Project 83, dated April
28, 2004. The net proceeds of thisissue were $219,866,240 with a
premiumof $25,964,579 andissuancecost and underwriters’ discount
of $2,008,339. The proceeds were placed in an escrow account to
refund State Property and Buildings Commission Revenue and
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RevenueRefunding Bondsfor Projects60, 63,67, 69 (SeriesA), 74,
77, and 79. The net savings (reduction in cash flow) for the
Refunding Bonds will be $5,942,972 and the present value of the
savingsis $6,281,351 at arate of 3.792%.

The Kentucky School Facilities Construction Commission issues
revenue bonds on behalf of local school districts to finance
construction of new facilities or the major renovation of existing
facilities. The Commission participates in the payment of debt
servicefor qualifying districts. By statute, the Commission’ sportion
of the savings from refunding issues goes to the school district.
Therefore, the Commission’s participation remains unchanged.
Proceeds from the issues are placed in escrow accountsto pay the
future debt service of theissue(s) being refunded. During thefiscal
year ended June 30, 2004 the Commission issued the following
refunding revenue bonds:

Revenue refunding bonds dated July 1, 2003, were issued for the
Harlan County School District Finance Corporation to refund a
1994 issue. The Commission’s portion of the refunding issue was
$700,411 maturing June 1, 2004 through June 1, 2014 and carrying
interest rates from 1.20% to 3.30%.

Revenue refunding bonds dated July 1, 2003, were issued for the
Spencer County School District Finance Corporation to refund a
1994 issue. The Commission’s portion of the refunding issue was
$647,829 maturing February 1, 2004 through February 1, 2014 and
carrying interest rates from 1.50% to 3.50%.

Revenue refunding bonds dated July 1, 2003, were issued for the
Christian County School District Finance Corporation to refund a
1995 issue. The Commission’s portion of the refunding issue was
$610,391 maturing January 1, 2004 through July 1, 2015 and
carrying interest rates from 1.00% to 3.375%.

Revenue refunding bonds dated July 1, 2003, were issued for the
Owenshoro Independent School District Finance Corporation to
refund a 1995 issue. The Commission’s portion of the refunding
issue was $447,177 maturing April 1, 2004 through April 1, 2015
and carrying interest rates from 1.25% to 3.25%.

Revenue refunding bonds dated July 1, 2003 were issued for the
Breckinridge County School District Finance Corporationtorefund
a1994 issue. The Commission’ sportion of therefunding issuewas
$997,114 maturing February 1, 2004 through February 1, 2014 and
carrying interest rates from 1.20% to 3.375%.

Revenue refunding bonds dated July 1, 2003 were issued for the
Magoffin County School District Finance Corporation to refund a
1991 and a1992 issue. The Commission’ s portion of the refunding
issuewas$735,711 maturing September 1, 2003 through September
1, 2010 and carrying interest rates from 1.00% to 3.25%.
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Revenue refunding bonds dated July 1, 2003, were issued for the
Green County School District Finance Corporation to refund 1994
issue. TheCommission’ sportionof therefundingissuewas$610,000
maturing September 1, 2003 through September 1,2014 and carrying
interest rates from 2.30% to 3.30%.

Revenue refunding bonds dated July 1, 2003 were issued for the
Owen County School District Finance Corporationtorefundal994
issue. TheCommission’ sportionof therefundingissuewas$118,403
maturing March 1, 2004 through March 1, 2014 and carrying
interest rates from 2.00% to 2.90%.

Revenue refunding bonds dated July 1, 2003 were issued for the
Gallatin County School District Finance Corporation to refund a
1993 issue. The Commission’s portion of the refunding issue was
$159,104 maturing December 1, 2003 through December 1, 2013
and carrying interest rates from 2.00% to 3.50%.

Revenuerefunding bondsdated October 1, 2003 wereissued for the
Carter County School District Finance Corporationtorefundal1993
issue. The Commission’s portion of the refunding issue was
$2,070,469 maturing February 1, 2004 through February 1, 2009
and carrying interest rates from 2.00% to 2.50%.

Revenuerefunding bondsdated October 1, 2003 wereissued for the
Henderson County School District Finance Corporationtorefunda
1993 issue. The Commission’s portion of the refunding issue was
$450,451 maturing April 1, 2004 through October 1, 2013 and
carrying interest rates from 1.80% to 3.35%.

Revenuerefunding bondsdated October 1, 2003 wereissued for the
Paintsville Independent School District Finance Corporation to
refund a 1994 issue. The Commission’s portion of the refunding
issuewas$116,433 maturingMay 1, 2004 through May 1, 2014 and
carrying interest rates from 1.50% to 3.60%.

Revenue refunding bonds dated November 1, 2003 wereissued for
the L etcher County School District Finance Corporation to refund
a1994 issue. The Commission’ sportion of therefunding issuewas
$413,988 maturing June 1, 2004 through June 1, 2014 and carrying
interest rates from 1.70% to 3.90%.

Revenue refunding bonds dated December 1, 2003 wereissued for
theMetcalfe County School District Finance Corporationto refund
a1994 issue. The Commission’ sportion of therefunding issuewas
$143,714 maturing February 1, 2004 through February 1, 2014 and
carrying interest rates from 2.00% to 3.50%.

Revenuerefunding bondsdated January 1, 2004 wereissued for the
Estill County School District Finance Corporationto refund a1996
issue. TheCommission’ sportionof therefundingissuewas$489,029
maturing August 1, 2004 through August 1, 2016 and carrying
interest rates from 2.00% to 3.60%.
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Revenuerefunding bondsdated January 1, 2004 wereissued for the
Warren County School District Finance Corporation to refund a
1994 issue. The Commission’s portion of the refunding issue was
$938,454 maturing March 1, 2005 through March 1, 2014 and
carrying interest rates from 2.00% to 3.35%.

Revenue refunding bonds dated February 1, 2004 were issued for
the Adair County School District Finance Corporation to refund a
1994 issue. The Commission’s portion of the refunding issue was
$322,010 maturing August 1, 2004 through August 1, 2014 and
carrying interest rates from 1.20% to 3.70%.

Revenue refunding bonds dated February 1, 2004 were issued for
the Whitley County School District Finance Corporation to refund
a1993issue. The Commission’ sportion of therefunding issuewas
$209,688 maturing April 1, 2004 through October 1, 2013 and
carrying interest rates from 1.00% to 3.25%.

Revenue refunding bonds dated February 1, 2004 were issued for
the Floyd County School District Finance Corporation to refund a
1995 issue. The Commission’s portion of the refunding issue was
$2,871,263 maturing May 1, 2004 through May 1, 2015 and
carrying interest rates from 1.10% to 3.50%.

Revenue refunding bonds dated March 1, 2004 wereissued for the
Jackson County School District Finance Corporation to refund a
1994 issue. The Commission’s portion of the refunding issue was
$235,623 maturing September 1, 2004 through September 1, 2014
and carrying an interest rate of 3.10%.

Revenue refunding bonds dated March 1, 2004 wereissued for the
Daviess School District Finance Corporationtorefunda1995issue.
The Commission’s portion of the refunding issue was $128,917
maturing August 1, 2004 through August 1, 2015 and carrying
interest rates from 2.00% to 3.625%.

Revenue refunding bonds dated March 1, 2004 wereissued for the
Cloverport Independent School District Finance Corporation to a
refund 1995issue. The Commission’ sportion of therefundingissue
was $508,541 maturing September 1, 2004 through September 1,
2023 and carrying interest rates from 1.15% to 4.30%.

Revenue refunding bonds dated March 1, 2004 wereissued for the
Union County School District Finance Corporationtorefunda1994
issue. TheCommission’ sportionof therefundingissuewas$626,900
maturing May 1, 2005 through May 1, 2013 and carrying interest
rates from 1.15% to 3.30%.

Revenue refunding bonds dated March 1, 2004 wereissued for the
Lincoln County School District Finance Corporation to refund a
1995 issue. The Commission’s portion of the refunding issue was
$200,327 maturing June 1, 2004 through December 1, 2015 and
carrying interest rates from 1.00% to 3.50%.
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Revenue refunding bonds dated March 1, 2004 wereissued for the
Providence Independent School District Finance Corporation to
refund a 1995 issue. The Commission’s portion of the refunding
issuewas$96,347 maturing April 1, 2005through April 1,2015and
carrying interest rates from 1.30% to 3.50%.

Revenue refunding bonds, Series 2004A, dated March 15, 2004
wereissuedfortheButler County School District FinanceCorporation
torefund a1992 issue. The Commission’ s portion of therefunding
issuewas$169,429 maturing May 1, 2004 throughMay 1, 2012 and
carrying an interest rate of 2.85%.

Revenue refunding bonds, Series 2004B, dated March 15, 2004
wereissuedfortheButler County School District FinanceCorporation
torefund a1996 issue. The Commission’ s portion of therefunding
issue was $482,971 maturing August 1, 2004 through August 1,
2016 and carrying interest rates from 2.00% to 3.75%.

Revenue refunding bonds dated March 1, 2004 wereissued for the
Casey County School District Finance Corporationtorefunda1993
issue. TheCommission’ sportionof therefundingissuewas$255,982
maturing June 1, 2004 through December 1, 2013 and carrying an
interest rate of 2.00%.

Revenue refunding bonds dated April 1, 2004 were issued for the
Taylor County School District Finance Corporation to refund a
1994 issue. The Commission’s portion of the refunding issue was
$192,120 maturing October 1, 2004 through October 1, 2014 and
carrying interest rates from 2.00% to 3.625%.

Revenue refunding bonds dated April 1, 2004 were issued for the
Martin County School District Finance Corporation to refund a
1995 issue. The Commission’s portion of the refunding issue was
$587,490 maturing June 1, 2005 through June 1, 2015 and carrying
interest rates from 2.00% to 3.875%.
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Note 14

RELATED ORGANIZATIONS

TheCommonwealth hasseveral related organizations. Thefinancial
activities of these organizations are not included in the
Commonwealth’ sfinancial statements. They aretheEast Kentucky
Corporation, Eastern Kentucky Exposition Center Corporation,
West Kentucky Corporation, West K entucky Economic Devel opment
Fund, Northern K entucky Convention Center Corporation, Kentucky
Employer’ sMutual I nsurance Authority, Kentucky Wood Products
CompetitivenessCorporationandthel nterstate Air Pollution Control
Commission. The Commonwealth holds no economic interest in,
nor has any financial responsibility for these organizations.

Note 15

SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM
OBLIGATIONS

Short-Term Obligations
The Commonwealth i ssued no short-term obligationsduring Fiscal
Y ear 2004.

Long-Term Obligations

General Obligation Bonds are issued through the State Property
and BuildingsCommission, subject togeneral referendumapproval
required by the Kentucky Constitution. General obligation bonds
pledgethefull faith, credit, and taxing power of the Commonwealth
and denoteapplication of specificor general tax revenuestoprovide
payment of principal and interest requirementsonthedebt. No new
issues of this type have been issued since 1965, and none are
outstanding or authorized but unissued at June 30, 2004.

Revenue Bonds - General authorization for the use of revenue
bondsiscontained in Chapter 58 of the K entucky Revised Statutes.
Specific authority is contained in the legislation and related KRS
chapterscreating and empowering thevariousdebt i ssuing entities.
Reference to such legidation and laws is made throughout the
following entity descriptions. EffectiveJuly 15, 1980, KRS56.870
requires prior approval of debt financing projects by the Kentucky
General Assembly sittinginregular or special sessions. Succeeding
statutes establish the methodsfor thisapproval and the exemptions
fromit. The majority of new debt issues are approved through the
appropriationact. Per KRS56.873, effectiveJuly 15, 1980, revenue
bonds having passed the above mechanisms, and not requiring
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Commonwealth appropriations, must receive an “A” rating by
Moody’s Investors Service or the equivalent rating by another
qualified rating agency prior to their sale.

Project revenue debt pledges only the revenues produced by the
project so funded as security for repayment and does not directly
obligatethe Commonweal th. Kentucky’ sproject revenuedebt may
befurther classified by thepurposeof thedebt. Revenuedebt issued
by the Kentucky Housing Corporation, Kentucky Infrastructure
Authority, Kentucky Higher Education Student L oan Corporation,
Kentucky Economic Development Finance Authority, Kentucky
Local Correctional Facilities Construction Authority, Kentucky
Agricultural Finance Corporation, and Kentucky School Facilities
Construction Commission is used as a financing mechanism for
activitiesandfacilitiesnot used directly for Statepurposes. Thetax-
exempt status of such municipal debt, whether issued by State or
local governments, is used to provide financing for entities unable
to bear the costs of private financing when the General Assembly
deemssuch entitiesworthy of publicassistance. Theother category
of revenuedebt financesfacilitiesused directly by State Government
in activities such asroads, parks, office buildings, and educational
facilities. The primary distinction between these categoriesisthat
thefirst type, with the exceptionsof the Kentucky School Facilities
Construction Commission, which succeeds the Kentucky School
Building Authority, and the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority,
which succeeds the Kentucky Pollution Abatement and Water
ResourcesFinance Authority, requiresno Statefundsof any typeto
provide debt service, principal and interest payments on the debt.
The School FacilitiesConstruction Commission supplementsfunds
provided by local governments and school boards in varying
percentagesfor debt service. TheKentucky Infrastructure Authority
may accept appropriations made by the General Assembly, in
addition to State and Federal grants, related to the purposes for
whichitwascreated. Thisdistinctionisimportant in analyzing the
truelevel of Statedebt and theburden of that debt on Stateresources.

During thefiscal year ended June 30, 2004, thedebt issuing entities
described below sold revenue and revenue refunding bonds as
follows:

TheKentucky State Property and Buildings Commission isan
independent agency of the Commonwealth created by KRS 56.450
and empowered upon application of any Stateagency toissuebonds
initsownnameto pay thecostsof acquiringland and equipment, and
the construction and equi pping of buildingsfor the occupancy and/
or use of said agencies.

TheCommissionissued $1,094,690,000in project revenuebondsas
follows:
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$117,145,000, Project 77, dated August 20, 2003, maturing through
August 1, 2023, with interest payable each February 1 and August
1 at 2.00% to 5.25%; and

$151,225,000, Project 78, dated October 9, 2003, maturing through
October 1, 2016, with interest payable each April 1 and October 1
at 1.38% to 5.14%; and

$145,290,000, Project 79, dated October 9, 2003, maturing through
October 1, 2023, with interest payable each April 1 and October 1
at 4.1% to 5.125%; and

$39,985,000, Project 80 SeriesA, dated October 30, 2003, maturing
through May 1, 2024, with interest payable each May 1 and
November 1 at 2% to 5.25%; and

$55,300,000, Project 81, dated November 19, 2003, maturing
through November 1, 2013, with interest payable each May 1 and
November 1 at 2% to 5%; and

$389,835,000, Project 82, dated February 25, 2004, maturing
through October 1, 2019, with interest payable each April 1 and
October 1 at 2% to 5.25%; and

$195,910,000, Project 83, dated April 28, 2004, maturing through
October 1, 2020, with interest payable each April 1 and October 1
at 2% to 5.25%.

The Turnpike Authority of Kentucky was created in the 1960
regular session of the General Assembly under present KRSsections
175.410through 175.990 asabody corporateand palitic constituting
amunicipal corporation, political subdivision, andinstrumentality
of theCommonwealth. TheA uthority iscomposed of the Governor,
Lieutenant Governor, Attorney General, Secretary of Transportation,
Commissioner of Highways, StateHighway Engineer, and Secretary
of Economic Development. The Secretary of the Finance and
Administration Cabinet currently servesastheAuthority’ sTreasurer.

TheAuthority issued $16,180,000in Economic Devel opment Road
Revenue Refunding Bonds asfollows:

$16,180,000, Economic Development Road Revenue Refunding
Bonds, dated June 10, 2004. TheBondsarenot subjecttoredemption
prior to maturity at July 1, 2010. Theinterest rates range from 4%
to 5% and both have ayield of 3.6%.

State Universities - The Board of Trustees of the University of
Kentucky andtheBoardsof Regentsof theUniversity of Louisville,
Eastern Kentucky University, Western K entucky University, Murray
State University, Morehead State University, Kentucky State
University, and Northern Kentucky University areauthorized under
KRS56.495toissuedebt for thepurposeof constructing educational
buildingsand housingand diningfacilities. Inaddition, theUniversity
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of Louisvilleisspecifically authorized toissuedebt for educational
buildings under KRS 64.860 but is limited to $16 million of
refunding debt.

State supported universities issued $288,980,000 in revenue and
refunding revenue bonds asfollows:

Easter n Kentucky Univer sity issued $12,660,000in Consolidated
Educational Buildings Revenue Bonds, Series V, dated June 1,
2004, maturing to May 1, 2019 at 3% to 4.8%.

Morehead State University issued $5,620,000 Consolidated
Educational BuildingsRefundingand |mprovement RevenueBonds,
SeriesM, dated January 1, 2004, maturing through May 1, 2024, at
2% to 3.625%.

Murray StateUniver sity issued $5,355,000inHousingand Dining
System Revenue Bonds and Consolidated Educational Buildings
Revenue Bonds asfollows:

$2,500,000, Housing and Dining System Revenue Bonds, SeriesP,
dated June 18, 2004, maturing through September 1 2024, at 1.1%
to 4.25%; and

$2,855,000, Consolidated Educational Buildings Revenue Bonds,
Series H (Second Series), dated September 1, 2003, maturing
through May 1 2012, at 2% to 3.8%.

Norther nKentucky Univer sity issued $9,450,000in Consolidated
Educational Building Revenue Bonds, Series L, dated January 1,
2004, maturing May 1, 2005, through 2023 at 2% to 4.25%.

University of Kentucky issued $185,425,000 in Housing and
Dining System Revenue Bonds, Housing and Dining Refunding
Revenue Bonds, Consolidated Educational Building Refunding
RevenueBonds, and Consolidated Educational Building Refunding
Revenue Bonds asfollows:

$52,815,000, Housing and Dining System RevenueBonds, SeriesS,
dated August 1, 2003, maturing through June 1 2023, at 2% to 5%;
and

$4,235,000, Housing and Dining System Refunding RevenueBonds,
SeriesM and O (Second Series), dated October 1, 2003, $3,225,000
maturing each June 1 through 2022 at 1.50% to 4.375%; $420,000
term bonds due June 1, 2015, at 4%, $255,000 due June 1, 2017 at
4%, and $335,000 due June 1, 2024, at 4.50%; and

$29,775,000, Consolidated Educational BuildingsRevenueBonds,
Series S, dated July 1, 2003, maturing each May 1, through 2024, at
2% to 4.5%; and
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$17,635,000, Consolidated Educational BuildingsRevenueBonds,
SeriesT, dated October 1, 2003, maturing each May 1 through 2023,
at 1% to 4.5%; and

$9,335,000, Consolidated Educational Buildings Revenue Bonds,
Series O (Second Series) dated October 29, 2003, maturing each
May 1 through 2012, at 2% to 3.7%; and

$19,520,000, Consolidated Educational Building Refunding
RevenueBonds, SeriesE, J, L (Third Series) dated January 1, 2004,
maturing May 1, 2005, through 2011, at 2% to 2.75%; and

$52,110,000, Consolidated Educational Building Refunding
Revenue Bonds, Series P, Q, R (Second Series) dated March 31,
2004, maturing May 1, 2005, through 2021, at 2% to 4.5%.

University of Louisville issued $5,815,000 in Housing System
Refunding Revenue Bonds and $32,545,000 in Consolidated
Educational Buildings Revenue Bonds asfollows:

$5,815,000 in Housing System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series
F, dated August 1, 2003 maturing each November 1, through 2014
at 2.5% to 4.2%; and

$21,310,000in Consolidated Educational BuildingsRevenueBonds,
Series N, dated June 1, 2003 maturing July 9, 2003, through 2023
at 2% to 4.125%; and

$11,235,000in Consolidated Educational BuildingsRevenueBonds,
Series O, dated October 1, 2003 maturing May 1, 2004, through
2023 at 2% to 4.25%.

Wester n Kentucky Univer sityissued bondsthat matureinvarying
amountsthrough May 1, 2023, withinterest payable at annual rates
ranging from 2.0% to 5.0%.

$9,830,000, Consolidated Educational BuildingsRefunding Bonds,
Series O, dated July 1, 2003; and

$11,135,000, Consolidated Educational BuildingsRevenueBonds,
Series P, dated September 1, 2003; and

$11,145,000, Consolidated Educational BuildingsRevenueBonds,
Series Q, dated December 1, 2003.

The Kentucky Housing Corporation was established in 1972
under KRS Chapter 198A, as a municipal corporation. The
Corporation is authorized to increase the supply of housing for
persons of lower income by making or participating in insured
constructionloans, and making or participatingininsured mortgage
loans when financing is not available from private lenders under
reasonably equivalent terms and conditions. The Corporation is
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limited to a $2.125 hillion total maximum principal value of debt
outstanding.

The Corporation issued $250,140,000 in Housing Revenue Bonds
which consisted of thefollowing:

$155,140,000, 2003 SeriesF (Non-AMT) Housing Revenue Bonds,
dated October 29, 2003, of which $69,245,000 were serial bonds
duebiannually through July 1, 2018, at 1.45%t0 4.50%. $52,505,000
term bonds, due July 1, 2013 at 3.415%; $12,230,000 term bonds,
due January 1, 2024, at 4.85%; $7,130,000 term bond, due July 1,
2024, at 4.85%; $7,745,000 term bonds, due January 1, 2033, at
4.95%, and $6,285,000 term bonds due July 1, 2033, at 4.95% and

$45,000,000 2003 Series G (AMT) Housing Revenue Bonds, dated
January 29, 2004, of which $9,700,000 were serial bonds maturing
July 1, 2004 through 2014, at 1.25% to 4.15%. Also, $10,910,000
termbonds, dueJuly 1, 2022, at 4.75%; $9,100,000 term bonds, due
July 1, 2027, at 5.0%; $555,000 term bonds, due July 1, 2033, at
4.95%; and $14,735,000term bonds, due January 1, 2034, at 4.95%.

$17,175,000 2004 Series A (Non-AMT) Housing Revenue Bonds,
dated June 24, 2004, maturing January 1, 2010through July 1, 2017,
at 3.45% to 4.55%.

$22,825,000 2004 SeriesB (AMT) Housing Revenue Bonds, dated
June 24, 2004, of which $10,360,000 were serial bonds maturing
July 1, 2005 through 2009, at 1.55% to 3.70%. Also, $3,000,000
term bonds, due January 1, 2024, at 5.00%; and $9,465,000 term
bonds, due July 1, 2024, at 5.00%.

$10,000,000 2004 SeriesC (AMT) Housing Revenue Bonds, dated
June 24, 2004, maturing July 1, 2034 at avariable interest rate.

The Kentucky Infrastructure Authority was created by House
Bill 217, passed into law during the 1988 regular session of the
Kentucky General Assembly, to assist governmental agenciesof the
Statewithrespect totheconstructionandacquisition of infrastructure
projects as defined in the legislation. Pursuant to this Act, which
amends KRS Chapter 224A, all powers, duties, and obligations of
the Kentucky Pollution Abatement and Water Resources Finance
Authority, including administration of debt service on revenue
bonds previously issued by the Authority, are transferred to the
Kentucky Infrastructure Authority, which is established as a body
corporate and politic, constituting a public corporation and a
governmental agency and instrumentality of the State.

The Authority issued $11,300,000 in Revolving Fund Program
Revenue Bonds, asfollows:
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$6,255,000, Wastewater Revolving Fund Program Revenue Bonds,
2004 Series |, dated June 30, 2004, with $3,865,000 serial bonds
maturing through June 1, 2022 at 3% to 5%, and term bonds of
$1,485,000 due June 1, 2021 at 5.25% and $905,000 due June 1,
2024 at 5%.

$5,045,000, Drinking Water Revolving Fund Program Revenue
Bonds, 2004 Series C, dated June 30, 2004, with $3,120,000 serial
bonds maturing through June 1, 2022 at 3% to 5%, and term bonds
of $1,195,000 due June 1, 2021 at 5.25% and $730,000 due June 1,
2024 at 5%.

The Kentucky Higher Education Assistance Authority is the
Commonwealth of Kentucky’'s agency for improving higher
education opportunities by insuring eligible student loans and
providing other financial aid andrel ated servicestoeligiblestudents.
The Authority isan issuer of student loans pursuant to the Federal
Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended in Kentucky and
Alabama. As such, the Authority is responsible for issuing loan
insurance, providing collection assistanceto lendersfor delinquent
loans, payinglender claimsfor |oans, and coll ecting defaul ted |oans
on which claims have been paid.

TheAuthority issued no bondsduring theyear ended June 30, 2004.

The Kentucky Local Correctional Facilities Construction
Authority isabody corporate and politic aswell asan agency and
instrumentality of the Commonwealth created in 1982 pursuant to
KRS 441.605 through 441.695, as amended, to provide additional
and alternative methods for acquiring, constructing, improving or
repairing, and financing both regional and local jail facilities.

$28,925,000isoutstanding on M ulti-County Correctional Facilities
Revenue Refunding Bonds-Series 1994; serial bonds’ rates vary
from 4.95% to 5.40%.

TheKentucky School Facilities Construction Commission was
created by act of the 1985 Extraordinary Session of the Kentucky
General Assembly asthe successor agency to the Kentucky School
Building Authority (KSBA) and empowered pursuant to KRS
157.640withall rightsof successorship necessary toassureall legal
and contractual functions and liabilities associated with the
outstanding bonds issued in the name of the Authority, including
refunding of then existing Authority debt. The Commission is an
independent corporate agency and instrumentality of the
Commonwealth pursuant to KRS 157.611 through 157.640 and
empowered thereinto: (1) act on behalf of local school districtsto
issue bonds in the name of the Commission and to enter into lease
agreementswithlocal boardsof educationtofinanceconstruction of
new facilitiesor major renovation of existingfacilities; (2) enterinto
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agreements which may provide for a percentage discount, on a
biennially renewable basis, of annual lease agreements due the
Commission for thosedistrictswhich participate; and (3) enter into
|ease agreements with the Department of Education to build State-
owned facilities operated by the Department of Education.

The Kentucky Agricultural Finance Corporation is a public
corporation and governmental agency of the Commonwealth
established by Act of the 1984 General Assembly for the purpose of
“improvingand promotingthehealth, welfare, and prosperity of the
people of the Commonwealth through the stimulation of existing
agricultural ventures.” The Authority’ sbond program is designed
to help lender banks and other financial institutions assist eligible
farmersin obtaining low interest loans through the i ssuance of tax
exempt agricultural revenue bonds. The Authority’ sdebt does not
constituteal egal or moral obligation of the Commonwealth, andthis
debt isnot included in these basic financial statements.

The Corporation issued no bonds during the year ended June 30,
2004.

The Kentucky Economic Development Finance Authority
established in 1958 under KRS Chapter 154, is an independent
agency of the Commonwealth that operates in close cooperation
withthe Secretary of theEconomi c Devel opment Cabinetto promote
theindustrial development of Kentucky.

TheAuthority issued no bondsduring thefiscal year ended June 30,
2004.
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The agencies and authorities that issue debt and their respective amounts of principal
outstanding, net of discounts and defeased bonds, at June 30, 2004, are as follows
(Expressed in Thousands):
Principal Annual Maturity
Long-Term Obligations Outstanding Interest Rate To
Agency:
State Property and Buildings
Commission $ 2,249,703 1.38%-7.65% 2024
Turnpike Authority of KY 975,728 4.00%-9.63% 2020
Total $ 3,225,431
Future revenue bond debt service requirements, to be paid with State Funds, at
June 30, 2004, are as follows (Expressed in Thousands):
Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Totals
2005 $ 184,645 $ 166,455 $ 351,100
2006 194,769 153,216 347,985
2007 213,164 143,900 357,064
2008 253,163 127,592 380,755
2009 227,050 110,318 337,368
2010-2014 1,005,005 399,979 1,404,984
2015-2019 760,685 195,924 956,609
2020-2024 386,950 452,687 839,637
Total $ 3,225,431 $ 1,750,071 $ 4,975,502
Principal Annual
Component Unit Revenue Bonds Payable Outstanding Interest Rate Maturity To
Kentucky School Facilities Construction Commission * $ 675,088 1.25-5.4% 2025
Kentucky Housing Corporation * 1,323,047 1.10-7.39% 2035
Kentucky Infrastructure Authority * 212,115 3.0-8.4% 2024
Kentucky Higher Education Assistance Authority 1,004,170 1.65-5.30% 2033
Kentucky Local Correctional Facilities Construction Authority * 28,925 4.95-5.50% 2014
University of Kentucky * 326,541 1.00-6.50% 2025
University of Louisville 182,001 1.10-5.40% 2023
Eastern Kentucky University 48,715 3.0-6.3% 2024
Western Kentucky University * 102,565 1.08-4.90% 2030
Murray State University * 18,127 1.10-5.6% 2024
Morehead State University 35,525 2.0-5.75% 2024
Kentucky State University 9,270 2.6-5.6% 2014
Northern Kentucky University 41,905 3.0-7.8% 2023
Total Component Unit Revenue Bonds Payable $ 4,007,994

* Amounts reflect original issue
Future revenue bond debt service requirements for bonds issued
by the Commonwealth's Component Units at June 30, 2004, are
as follows (Expressed in Thousands):

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Totals
2005 $ 235585 $ 134439 $ 370,024
2006 327,858 125,259 453,117
2007 173,089 117,652 290,741
2008 157,139 110,199 267,338
2009 153,979 103,447 257,426
2010-2014 682,686 426,105 1,108,791
2015-2019 503,866 277,440 781,306
2020-2024 409,455 224,399 633,854
2025-2029 542,843 153,253 696,096
2030-2034 193,684 21,119 214,803
2035-2039 627,810 21,228 649,038

Total $ 4,007,994 $ 1,714540 $ 5,722,534
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NOTESPAYABLE:

At June 30, 2004, the following entities had notes payable as
follows:

The Kentucky Asset/Liability Commission, created by House
Bill 5 enacted by the 1997 Extraordinary Session of the Kentucky
General Assembly, developspoliciesand strategiesto minimizethe
impact of fluctuatinginterest ratesonthe Commonwealth’ sinterest-
sensitive assets and liabilities. It is authorized to issue tax and
revenueanticipation notes, proj ect notesand funding notes. Tax and
revenue notes areto be used for the purpose of providing moniesto
discharge expenditure demands in anticipation of revenues and
taxesto be collected during thefiscal year. Project notesareto be
used for authorized projects upon request of the Finance and
Administration Cabinet, to berepaid through financing agreements
or alternative agreements. Funding notes are to be used for the
purpose of funding judgments against the Commonwealth or any
state agency.

The commissionissued $171,260,000in project refunding notesas
follows:

$171,260,000 is outstanding on Project Notes, 2003 General Fund
SeriesA, dated July 17, 2003, isdue January 15, 2004 and each July
15, 2004 through 2013 at 1% to 5%.

Kentucky Hor sePark Foundation (reported asacomponent unit
of The Kentucky Horse Park) has an outstanding notes payabl e of
$451,000 at June 30, 2004. The liability is $411,000, from an
unsecured operating line of credit, and carrying quarterly interest
payments at prime. Theline of credit expires September 17, 2004.
Theremaining $40,000isan unsecured notecarryinginterest at 7%
and maturing December 31, 2005.

The Kentucky Housing Corporation reported $21,828,000 in
Notes Payable for the current portion of long-term debt/Notes
Payable during Fiscal Y ear 2004. The Corporation hasthreelines
of credit. Thefirstisabond anticipation line of credit used only to
preservetax-exempt bondissuecapacity and borrowingsand matures
April 30, 2005.

The second line is a loan refunding line of credit has proceeds
applied to the retirement of the 1991 Series C-1 and 1991 D-1
Housing RevenueBondson January 1, 2004. Thelinebearsinterest
at the one-month LIBOR plus 20 basis points and matures on
January 1, 2009.
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The last is a loan warehousing line of credit used only for the
purchase of single-family mortgage loans. The line provides for
borrowings up to $40,000, bearsinterest at the one-month LIBOR
plus 20 basis points and matures December 1, 2005.

Kentucky Educational Television reported Notes Payable of
$341,000for theyear ending June 30, 2004, rel ating to paymentsto
PBS in connection with the acquisition of Literacy Link assets.

TheUniversity of Louisvillereported $700,000 in Notes Payable
tothe University of Louisville Foundation Inc. for the construction
of Cardinal Park on an unsecured, non-interest bearing basis due
upon receipt of pledges by the Association.

M or ehead StateUniver sity had NotesPayabl e of $460,000, which
includes $400,000 in a 5.00% Note Payable to an individual,
repayableinannual installmentswiththefinal installment due June,
2008; and $60,000 in a 5.00% note payable to an individual,
repayableinannual installmentswiththefinal installment due June,
2008.

Murray State University reported Notes Payable of $14,382,000
for various purposes.

Northern Kentucky University reported $2,338,000 in Notes
Payable for various purposes.

Western Kentucky University reported Notes Payable of
$1,835,505 related to the payment of debt service on substantially
all theUniversity’ sresidence halls, which have been transferred to
the WKU Student Life Foundation, Inc. These payments represent
the principal and interest allocation for the Garret Conference
Center and the Downing University Center, title to which was
retained by the University, of the Housing and Dining Revenue
Series H and Series K bonds transferred to the WKU Student Life
Foundation, Inc. In addition, they reported $315,495 for various
purposes.

TheUniversity of K entucky reported Notes Payabl e of $3,485,000
for various purposes.

Other Long-term Liabilities- The General Fund, special revenue,
andinternal servicefundsinwhichleasesarerecordedwill liquidate
the capital lease obligations. The compensated absences will be
liquidated by applicable governmental and internal service funds
that account for thesal ariesand wagesof therel ated employees. The
net pensionobligationswill beliquidated by the State’ sgovernmental
andinternal servicefundsthat contributetoward the pension funds,
based on the statutorily required contribution rates. The General
Fundandtransportation-rel ated Specia Revenuefundwill generally
liquidateother claimsandjudgmentsattributabletothegovernmental
activities.
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Future debt service requirements for aggregated Notes Payable for the Primary Government
at June 30, 2004, are as follows (Expressed in Thousands)

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Totals
2005 $ 45,740 $ 7,286 $ 53,026
2006 44,820 5,518 50,338
2007 37,330 3,548 40,878
2008 6,095 2,543 8,638
2009 2,260 2,260
2010-2014 52,985 3,342 56,327
Total $ 186,970 $ 24,497 $ 211,467

Future debt service requirements for aggregated Notes Payable for the Component Units at
June 30, 2004, are as follows (Expressed in Thousands)

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Totals
2005 $ 50,823 $ 1,362 $ 52,185
2006 11,558 804 12,362
2007 3,384 711 4,095
2008 2,320 624 2,944
2009 8,716 587 9,303
2010-2014 1,442 2,307 3,749
2015-2019 1,547 1,914 3,461
2020-2024 2,045 1,529 3,574
Thereafter 5,130 1,287 6,417
Total $ 86,965 $ 11,125 $ 98,090

Changes in long-term liabilities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, are summarized as follows (Expressed in Thousands):

Beginning Ending Due In Due
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year Thereafter
Governmental Activities
Compensated absences $ 230,144 $ 119,258 $ (122,624) $ 226,778 $ 120,803 $ 105,975
Capital leases 21,209 5,591 (9,548) 17,252 7,116 10,136
Claims liability 118,615 21,726 (23,689) 116,652 16,812 99,840
Notes payable 69,695 171,260 (53,985) 186,970 45,740 141,230
Bonds payable 3,165,223 1,110,870 (1,050,662) 3,225,431 185,256 3,040,175
Unamortized premiums 53,370 103,317 (15,187) 141,500 8,127 133,373
Unamortized discounts (32,911) 5,855 (27,056) (1,553) (25,503)
Deferred amount on refunding (6,360) (12,389) 361 (18,388) (1,056) (17,332)
Judgments and contingent liabilities 272,427 14,807 (20,925) 266,309 29,748 236,561
Unfunded employer pension contributions 107,365 29,162 136,527 136,527
Total Governmental Activities $ 3,998,777 $ 1,563,602 $ (1,290,404) $ 4271975 $ 410,993 $ 3,860,982
Business-Type Activities
Compensated absences $ 8,467 $ 3544 % (3,693) $ 8318 $ 2481 $ 5,836
Capital leases 228 104 (87) 245 97 148
Claims and claims adjustment liability 1,189,538 90,765 (146,038) 1,134,265 126,497 1,007,768
Notes payable 451 451 411 40
Prize liability 247,934 14,455 (31,185) 231,204 48,533 182,671
Judgments and contingent liabilities 97 (2) 95 70 25
Total Business-Type Activities $ 1,446,264 $ 109,319 $ (181,005) $ 1,374578 $ 178,089 $ 1,196,488
Total Primary Government $ 5445041 $ 1,672,921 $ (1,471,409) $ 5,646,553 $ 589,082 $ 5,057,470
Component Units (Major)
Compensated absences $ 20,798 $ 11,894 $ (20,370) $ 12,322  $ 9,978 $ 2,344
Capital leases 62,327 15,078 (13,605) 63,800 7,359 56,441
Notes payable 10,159 208,416 (151,282) 67,293 48,201 19,092
Bonds payable 3,330,807 844,210 (716,109) 3,458,908 179,538 3,279,370
Total Component Units $ 3,424,091 $ 1,079,598 $ (901,366) $ 3,602,323 $ 245076 $ 3,357,247
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Note 16

COMMITMENTSAND CONTINGENCIES

L itigation - TheCommonwealth, itsunitsand employeesareparties
to numerous legal proceedings, many of which normally occur in
governmental operations. The legal proceedings are not, in the
opinion of the Attorney General, likely to have amaterial adverse
impact on the Commonwealth’ sfinancial position.

In addition, the Commonwealth and itsunitsareinvolvedin certain
other legal proceedings which, if decided adversely to the
Commonwealth, may requirethe Commonwealth to make material
future expenditures for expanded services or capital facilities or
may impair futurerevenue sourcesor may requiretherefund of prior
collections. Itisneither possibleto determinethe outcome of these
proceedings nor to estimate the possible effects adverse decisions
may have on the future expenditures or revenue sources of the
Commonwealth.

Judgmentsand Contingencies—A claimisasuit that hasbeenfiled
but there has been no decision rendered by the court systems.
Amountsreported include claimsmade agai nst the Commonweal th
during the period preceding June 30 of the current fiscal year.
Claims are classified according to their chance of occurrence as
either remote, possible, or probable. Claimsarefurther classifiedas
payablewithin oneyear, within future periods, or acombination of
the two periods.

A judgment isany amount that isto berepaid astheresult of acourt
decision or an award for the condemnation of private property.
Reasons for such amounts al so arise from employment, contracts,
and government involvement of personnel or property. TheGeneral
Fund, the Agency Revenue Fund, the Transportation Fund, and the
State Parks Fund generally pay claims and judgments. These
amounts are classified as either payable within one year, in future
periods, or acombination of the two periodsif they remain unpaid
after June 30 of the current fiscal year.

Feder al Grants- TheCommonwealthreceivessignificant financial
assistance from the U.S. Government in the form of grants and
Federal revenuesharing entitlements. Entitlement totheseresources
isgenerally conditioned upon compliancewithtermsand conditions
of thegrant agreementsand applicableFederal regulations, including
theexpenditureof theresourcesfor eligiblepurposes. Substantially
all grants are subject to financia and compliance audits by the
grantors. Any disallowance as a result of these audits becomes a
liability of the Commonwealth.
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L eases - The Commonwealth has entered into various operating
leasesfor land and buildings. All leasescontaintermination clauses
providing for the cancellation after 30, 60, or 90 dayswritten notice
tothelessors. Inaddition, al leases contain appropriation clauses
indicating that continuation of theleaseis subject to funding by the
legislature. It is expected that in the normal course of business,
similarleaseswill replacemost of theseleases. Primary Government
expendituresfor rent under |easesfor theyearsended June 30, 2004
and 2003 amounted to $90.8 millionand $81.1 million, respectively.
Theoperatingleasesof theCommonweal thdo not containescal ation
clausesfor rental or expensethat would require adjustment to bein
compliance with GASB Statement 13.

Compensated Absences — Compensated absences include
accumulated, unpaidvacationand compensatory timeaccruals. The
amount accruing to proprietary funds has been included in the
respective fundswhen material. The policy of the Commonwealth
istorecordthecost of annual and compensatory leave. Annual leave
is accumulated at amounts ranging from 7.5 to 15.00 hours per
month, as determined by the length of service, with the maximum
accumulationsranging from 30to 60 days. Thecalendar year isthe
period used for determining accumulated leave. Compensatory
leaveisgranted to authorized empl oyees on an hour-for-hour basis
or atime and one half basis. Compensated absences are generally
paid from the General Fund, the Transportation Fund, the Federal
Fund, the Agency Revenue Fund, and the Other Special Revenue
Fund. At June 30, 2004, the estimated liability for annual and
compensatory leavewas$226,777,788for thegovernmental funds,
and $8,318,639 in the business-type activities.

Compensated absence liabilities for the major component units
totaled $12,322,000 at June 30, 2004.

Sick L eave- Thepolicy of the Commonwealthisto record the cost
of sick leavewhenpaid. Generally, sincesick |eave (earned oneday
per month with unlimited accumulation) is paid only when an
employee is absent due to illness, injury, or related family death,
therewasno liability recorded for sick leave at June 30, 2004. The
estimated accumul ated amount of unused sick leave at that datefor
the governmental and proprietary funds was $329,438,073 and
$9,590,470 respectively.

Construction Projects - The Transportation Cabinet, at June 30,
2004, had contractual commitmentsof approximately $584,669,043
for the construction of numeroushighway projects. Itisanticipated
that these projects will be funded with approximately 17 percent
State funds, 80 percent Federal funds, and the remaining 3 percent
with proceeds from the sale of revenue bonds.

Deferred Revenue — Deferred revenue may result from the
recognition of assets before the earnings process is complete
(unearned revenue), or if using the modified accrual basis of
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accounting, deferred revenue may represent unavailable revenues.
“Unavailable” means that the assets are not available to finance
expendituresof thecurrent fiscal period. Regardlessof whether the
deferred revenueisunearned or unavailable, itisstill reported asa
contingent liability.

Note 17

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Thedebt-issuing entities of the Commonwealth issued or agreed to
administer State participation in debt service paymentsfor revenue
bondssold after June 30, 2004, and prior to December 31, 2004, and
reported other subsequent events for the same period, as described
below.

Kentucky InfrastructureAuthority issued atotal of $43,015,000
in bonds. These include $25,640,000 in Revenue Refunding and
Improvement Bonds, Series 2004A, and $17,375,000 in Taxable
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2004B. Maturities occur each
August 1 through the year 2022. Interest is payable on each
February 1 and August 1, commencing in 2005. The Series 2004A
bonds carry interest rates ranging from 2.250-5.250%. The Series
2004B carry interest rates from 2.250-5.290%. The proceeds of
Series 2004A bonds will be used to refund existing bonds of the
Authority andtofinanceinfrastructureprojects. Series2004B bond
proceedswill be used to refund existing bonds of the Authority, to
fund a debt service account, and to pay bond issuance costs.

Kentucky L ocal Correctional FacilitiesConstruction Authority
issued $21,670,000 in Series 2004 Bonds, dated October 13, 2004.
Interest ispayable on May 1, 2005 and semi-annually on each May
1 and November 1 thereafter until maturity. These bonds mature
annually on November 1 until November 1, 2014 as follows:
$1,845,000 3.00% bondsduein 2005; $1,940,000 3.00% bondsdue
in 2006; $1,995,000 2.25% bonds due in 2007; $2,040,000 3.00%
due in 2008; $2,105,000 3.00% bonds due in 2009; $2,170,000
5.25% bondsduein2010; $2,280,0005.25%duein 2011; $2,400,000
5.25%duein 2012; $2,530,000 5.25% duein 2013; and $2,365,000
5.25%duein 2014. TheseareMulti-County Correctional Facilities
Revenue Refunding Bonds.

The Turnpike Authority of Kentucky issued $41,510,000 of
Economic Development Road Revenue Refunding Bonds
(Revitalization Projects) 2004 Series B. The proceeds of these
bonds, dated October 5, 2004, will beusedtorefund certainrevenue
bondspreviously i ssued by the Authority to pay aportion of thecosts
of certain public highway projects. Bonds mature each July 1,
startingin 2005 and going through 2015. Interestispayableoneach
January 1 and July 1. Interest ratesrange from 2.0% to 5.25%.
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TheKentucky Asset/L iability Commission issued $500,000,000
General Fund Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes, 2004 Series A
to finance General Fund cash flow requirements of the
Commonwealth for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2005. These
Notesaredated July 13, 2004, bear interest of 3%, yield 1.55%, and
are due on June 29, 2005. Principa and interest are payable at
maturity.

TheKentucky Housing Cor por ation issued atotal of $105,000,000
bonds during the subsequent period. The proceedswill be used to
finance mortgage loans for persons and families of lower and
moderateincomeinthe Commonwealth. Bondsissued includethe
following:

2004 SeriesD and SeriesE Housing Revenue Bonds, dated September
16, 2004, total $60,000,000. The Series D bonds consist of
$16,025,000 serial bonds biannually due each July 1 and January 1
through July 1, 2017; $13,265,000 4.90% term bonds due July 1,
2024; $11,880,0004.25% term bondsdue July 1, 2029; $2,575,000
5.00% term bonds due July 1, 2030; 11,255,000 5.05% bonds due
January 1, 2035. The $5,000,000 2004 Series E Bonds (AMT) are
Variable Rate Term bonds due January 1, 2035.

2004 SeriesF Bonds, dated November 18, 2004, total $45,000,000.
TheSeriesFbondsconsist of $8,970,000 serial bondsduebiannually
on each July 1 and January 1 through January 1, 2017; $1,480,000
4.50%termbond due January 1, 2017; $1,485,0004.25%termbond
due July 1, 2017; $11,760,000 4.60% term bond due July 1, 2025;
$12,290,000 3.90% term bond due July 1, 2031 (“PAC Bond");
$4,195,000 4.90% term bond due July 1, 2034; and $4,820,000
4.90% term bond due January 1, 2035.

Kentucky School FacilitiesConstr uction Commission administers
State participation in the debt service payments of local public
school district revenue bonds issued subsequent to June 30, 2004,
and maturing as to principal through 2024 is displayed in the
spreadsheet on page 97.

Kentucky Higher Education Student L oan Cor por ation issued
$350,000,000 in Student Loan Revenue Bonds. These include the
following: $18,850,000 Senior Series2004A-1; $57,550,000 Senior
Series 2004A-2; $57,600,000 Senior Series2004A-3; $57,600,000
Senior Series 2004A-4; $72,400,000 Senior Series 2004A-5;
$75,000,000 Senior Series2004A-6; and $11,000,000 Subordinate
Series2004B-1. Thesearedated August 12, 2004 for all except for
Senior Series 2004A-6 which is dated December 16, 2004. These
bonds are issued to finance the origination and acquisition of
Eligible Loans; to refinance a portion of the Corporation’sline of
credit; andto makeadeposit tothe Debt Service ReserveFund. The
bonds mature on June 1, 2034 and interest is payable on June 1 and
December 1 until maturity or earlier redemption, commencing
December 1, 2004.
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2004

KENTUCKY SCHOOL FACILITIESCONSTRUCTION COMMISSION

Delivery Principal State Interest
School District Date at Issue Share Rates (%)

Barren County 07/14/04 $ 14,120,000 $ 323,440 3.50 - 5.00
Bath County 07/19/04 850,000 850,000 2.00 - 5.00
Berea Independent 11/16/04 6,435,000 36,672 1.90 - 3.70
Boyle County 07//15/04 555,000 555,000 3.00 - 5.00
Bullitt County 11/09/04 5,595,000 182,435 2.00 - 3.625
Calloway County 12/01/04 1,955,000 476,721 2.00-3.70
Campbell County 11/10/04 7,050,000 641,839 3.00-3.75
Campbellsville Independent 12/09/04 1,420,000 135,177 2.20-3.85
Carroll County 07/16/04 395,000 395,000 2.00 - 5.00
Casey County 07/13/04 9,290,000 4,130,388 2.00 - 4.75
Dayton Independent 11/24/04 645,000 134,490 2.00-3.75
Estill County 07/15/04 2,350,000 1,814,531 3.50-4.75
Fleming County 07/15/04 855,000 806,403 3.00 - 4.90
Franklin County 10/27/04 2,120,000 371,741 2.00-3.75
Gallatin County 7/13/2004 556,000 520,564 4.10 - 5.00
Glasgow Independent 07/08/04 8,705,000 6,101,514 4.00 - 4.75
Harlan County 07/13/04 3,950,000 3,950,000 3.00-4.75
Jackson Independent 11/01/04 925,000 79,567 2.00-3.75
Kenton County 07/19/04 41,895,000 9,561,125 3.00 - 5.00
Letcher County 07/13/04 15,080,000 1,149,091 3.25-5.00
Madison County 11/01/04 3,235,000 572,461 2.00-3.70
McCracken County 10/19/04 3,345,000 706,570 2.00 - 3.80
Middlesboro Independent 07/08/04 475,000 475,000 4.75

Nelson County 09/09/04 3,885,000 653,705 2.00 - 3.80
Oldham County 10/26/04 6,435,000 437,355 2.00-3.75
Paris Independent 11/01/04 940,000 148,392 1.90 - 3.80
Perry County 07/14/04 3,865,000 1,303,177 2.70 - 4.90
Pikeville Independent 07/09/04 755,000 214,053 3.40 - 5.00
Pulaski County 10/28/04 1,365,000 89,254 2.00-3.75
Walton-Verona Independent 07/12/04 1,295,000 207,958 2.70 - 5.00
Webster County 11/17/04 2,880,000 103,852 1.90 - 3.625
Woodford County 11/30/04 7,830,000 982,770 2.00-3.75

$ 161,051,000 $ 38,110,245
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2004

Audited financial statementsmay berequested at the following addr esses:

Bluegrass State Skills Corporation
Capital Plaza Tower

500 Mero Street

Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Turnpike Authority of Kentucky
Room 92, Capitol Annex Building
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Kentucky Transportation Cabinet
200 Mero Street
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Kentucky Center for the Arts
5 Riverfront Plaza
Louisville, Kentucky 40202-2989

Kentucky Economic Development Finance Authority

Capital Plaza Tower
500 Mero Street
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Kentucky Housing Corporation
1231 Louisville Road
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Kentucky Retirement Systems
Perimeter Park West

1260 Louisville Road
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Teachers Retirement System
479 Versailles Road
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

University of Louisville
2301 South 3rd Street

108 Grawemeyer Hall
Louisville, Kentucky 40292

Western Kentucky University

Vice President for Finance and Administration
1 Big Red Way

Bowling Green, Kentucky 42101-3576

Murray State University
322 Sparks Hall
Murray, Kentucky 42071
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Kentucky State University
Office of Administrative Affairs
400 East Main Street

Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Kentucky Lottery Corporation
1011 West Main Street
Louisville, Kentucky 40202-2623

Kentucky State Fair Board

Kentucky Fair and Exposition Center
P.O. Box 37130

Louisville, Kentucky 40233-7130

Kentucky Educational Television
600 Cooper Drive
Lexington, Kentucky 40502

Kentucky Higher Education Assistance Authority
1050 U.S. 127 South, Suite 102
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority
375 Versailles Road
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Kentucky Local Correctional Facilities Construction Authority
Suite 261 Capitol Annex
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Kentucky Judicial Form Retirement System
P.O. Box 791
Frankfort, Kentucky 40602

Kentucky Horse Park
4089 Iron Works Parkway
Lexington, Kentucky 40511

University of Kentucky
301 Peterson Service Building
L exington, Kentucky 40506-0005

Eastern Kentucky University

Vice President for Business Affairs
521 Lancaster Avenue

Richmond, Kentucky 40475-3101

Morehead State University

Office of Accounting and Budgetary Control
207Howell-McDowell Administration Building
Morehead, Kentucky 40351-1689



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2004

Audited financial statements may berequested at the following addr esses:
Northern Kentucky University

Office of Business Affairs

Lucas Administration Center 726

Nunn Drive

Highland Heights, Kentucky 41099-8101

Kentucky Community and Technical College System
300 N. Main Street
Versailles, Kentucky 40383

Kentucky Access
Department of Insurance
215 West Main Street
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Kentucky River Authority
70 Wilkinson Boulevard
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Council on Postsecondary Education
1024 Capital Center Drive, Suite 320
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Office of the Petroleum Storage Tank
Environmental Assurance Fund

81 C. Michael Davenport Boulevard
Frankfort, KY 40601

Kentucky Artisan Center at Berea
P.O. Box 280
Berea, KY 40403

Kentucky Public Employees
Deferred Compensation Authority
105 Sea Hero Road, Suite 1
Frankfort, KY 40601-8862

Kentucky Personnel Cabinet
Workers' Compensation Branch
200 Fair Oaks Lane, Suite 511
Frankfort, KY 40601

Kentucky Department of L abor — Special Fund

1047 US Highway 127 S, Suite4
Frankfort, KY 40601
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

COMBINED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) - GENERAL AND MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

(Expressed in Thousands)

Revenues
Budgeted:
Taxes
Licenses, fees, and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Interest and other investment income
Lottery proceeds
Other revenues
Total Budgeted Revenues
Non-Budgeted:
Taxes
Licenses, fees, and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Interest and other investment income
Other revenues
Escheat
Transfers in (interfund)
Transfers in (intrafund)
Total Non-Budgeted Revenues
Total Revenues

Expenditures
General Government
Legislative and Judicial
Commerce
Education and Humanities
Human Resources
Justice
Natural Resources and
Environmental Protection
Public Protection and
Regulation
Transportation
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues over
(under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from sale of bonds
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources over (under)
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Fund Balance at July 1, as Restated
Non-Budgeted Items
Fund Balance at June 30

General Fund

Original Final Actual Variance

$ 6,794,700 $ 6,508,500 $ 6,653,613 $ 145,113
29,100 29,300 22,321 (6,979)
6,900 6,900 77,045 70,145

3,000 3,600 12,422 8,822
51,500 69,800 54,400 (15,400)
(8,000) 1,500 1,025 (475)
148,900 163,800 173,800 10,000
43,900 51,600 51,718 118
7,070,000 6,835,000 7,046,344 211,344
109,483 109,483

200,045 200,045

309,528 309,528

7,070,000 6,835,000 7,355,872 520,872
2,106,223 2,065,960 1,939,379 126,581
276,959 276,958 253,017 23,941
71,143 69,661 56,539 13,122
3,153,485 3,067,456 3,050,161 17,295
1,375,455 1,421,094 1,406,840 14,254
487,012 482,013 469,627 12,386
57,655 59,630 58,580 1,050
57,841 53,784 50,525 3,259
5,587 5,588 4,980 608
7,591,360 7,502,144 7,289,648 212,496
(521,360) (667,144) 66,224 733,368
(521,360) (667,144) 66,224 733,368

268,792 268,792
(5,095) (5,095)
$ (521,360) $ (398,352) $ 329,921 $ 728,273
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Transportation Fund

Federal Fund

Original Final Actual Variance Original Final Actual Variance
990,889 $ 977,907 ¢ 970,860 $ (7,047) % $ $
116,382 114,310 119,379 5,069
23,770 16,465 16,196 (269)
9 5 57 52
5,500 10,800 7,558 (3,242)
2,660 3,115 2,684 (431)
1,139,210 1,122,602 1,116,734 (5,868)
15
32
243
5,423,326
5,776 5,776 11,824
321 321 3,918
6,097 6,097 5,439,358
1,139,210 1,122,602 1,122,831 229 5,439,358
5,490 5,348 5,348 139,645 255,598 131,313 124,285
4,112 5,635 3,537 2,098
7,805 9,106 8,893 213
678,660 826,403 775,116 51,287
3,084,083 3,980,521 3,825,251 155,270
35,000 35,000 35,000 44,611 53,838 38,674 15,164
65,588 69,868 52,835 17,033
6,094 7,053 5,996 1,057
1,432,652 1,441,878 1,276,014 165,864 1,091,338 1,092,138 491,408 600,730
1,473,142 1,482,226 1,316,362 165,864 5,121,936 6,300,160 5,333,023 967,137
(333,932) (359,624) (193,531) 166,093 106,335
(333,932) (359,624) (193,531) 166,093 106,335
357,691 357,691 85,027
(783) (783) (13,831)
(333,932) $ (1,933) $ 163,377 $ 165,310 $ $ 177,531 $
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

COMBINED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) - GENERAL AND MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

(Expressed in Thousands)

Agency Revenue Fund

Original Final Actual Variance
Revenues
Budgeted:
Taxes $ $ $ $
Licenses, fees, and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Interest and other investment income
Lottery proceeds
Other revenues
Total Budgeted Revenues
Non-Budgeted:
Taxes 194,245
Licenses, fees, and permits 115,343
Intergovernmental 18,210
Charges for services 1,791,071
Fines and forfeits 19,182
Interest and other investment income 21,215
Other revenues 356,917
Escheat 131
Transfers in (interfund) 521,868
Transfers in (intrafund) 1,249,348
Total Non-Budgeted Revenues 4,287,530
Total Revenues 4,287,530
Expenditures
General Government 2,467,515 2,539,950 1,638,307 901,643
Legislative and Judicial 22,780 21,540 10,211 11,329
Commerce 37,017 38,849 34,052 4,797
Education and Humanities 70,512 62,471 52,271 10,200
Human Resources 656,374 875,826 771,395 104,431
Justice 71,218 74,628 60,099 14,529
Natural Resources and
Environmental Protection 48,332 50,090 31,054 19,036
Public Protection and
Regulation 82,465 82,220 64,546 17,674
Transportation 148,748 152,366 77,161 75,205
Total Expenditures 3,604,961 3,897,940 2,739,096 1,158,844
Excess of Revenues over
(under) Expenditures 1,548,434
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from sale of bonds
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Excess of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources over (under)
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 1,548,434
Fund Balance At July 1, As Restated 745,971
Non-Budgeted Items (1,521,725)
Fund Balance At June 30 $ $ $ 772,680 $
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004
(Expressed in Thousands)

Revenues
Budgeted:
Taxes
Licenses, fees, and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Interest and other investment income
Lottery proceeds
Other revenues
Total Budgeted Revenues
Non-Budgeted:
Other revenues
Transfers in (interfund)
Total Non-Budgeted Revenues
Total Revenues

Expenditures
General Government:

Cabinet of the General Government:
Governor's Office
Department of Veterans Affairs
Office of the State Budget Director
Small Business Advocacy
Unified Prosecutorial System: Commonwealth Attorneys

County Attorneys
Department of Agriculture
Office of the Attorney General
Auditor of Public Accounts
Registry of Election Finance
Department of Military Affairs
Department of Local Government
Local Government: Economic Assistance Fund
Economic Development Fund
Area Development Fund

Secretary of State
Secretary of Treasury
Board of Elections
Personnel Board
School Facilities Construction Commission
Executive Branch Ethics Commission
Commission on Human Rights
Commission on Women
Council on Postsecondary Education
Education Professional Standards Board
Emergency Medical Services Board
Governor's Office of Technology
Budget Reserve Trust Fund
Kentucky Infrastructure Authority

Personnel Cabinet: General Operations
State Salary Compensation Fund

Original Final Actual Variance
$ 6,794,700 6,508,500 6,653,613 145,113
29,100 29,300 22,321 (6,979)
6,900 6,900 77,045 70,145
3,000 3,600 12,422 8,822
51,500 69,800 54,400 (15,400)
(8,000) 1,500 1,025 (475)
148,900 163,800 173,800 10,000
43,900 51,600 51,718 118
7,070,000 6,835,000 7,046,344 211,344
109,483 109,483
200,045 200,045
309,528 309,528
7,070,000 6,835,000 7,355,872 520,872
8,558 8,110 7,050 1,060
15,184 15,599 15,209 390
3,365 3,333 3,238 95
75 75 48 27
26,545 26,557 25,723 834
22,177 22,233 21,756 477
19,494 19,645 18,985 660
12,963 12,703 12,703
5,235 5,281 5,281
1,437 1,446 1,399 47
10,694 21,559 17,787 3,772
9,624 9,608 8,542 1,066
31,184 36,231 36,231
41,208 40,687 38,687 2,000
831 831 810 21
2,260 2,281 2,195 86
2,217 2,174 2,056 118
6,026 6,191 4,962 1,229
579 558 522 36
84,929 79,279 76,807 2,472
326 345 338 7
1,927 1,953 1,904 49
270 270 263 7
117,851 133,779 123,087 10,692
10,679 10,679 8,853 1,826
2,504 2,445 2,340 105
300 300 293 7
31,009 50,765 50,765
8,311 8,311 4,156 4,155
3,257 3,286 3,192 94
11,490
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Original Final Actual Variance

Cabinet for Universities:

Eastern Kentucky University $ 73515 $ 71,448 $ 71,448 $
Kentucky State University 22,632 22,079 22,079
Morehead State University 42,738 41,599 41,599
Murray State University 51,473 50,142 50,142
Northern Kentucky University 47,093 45,127 45,127
University of Kentucky 308,519 302,548 302,548
University of Louisville 174,950 171,572 171,572
Western Kentucky University 72,040 68,644 68,644
Kentucky Community and Technical College System 189,098 184,493 184,493
Revenue Cabinet: General Operations 66,032 65,620 62,896 2,724
Office of Property Valuation Administrators 28,222 28,296 27,588 708
Finance and Administration Cabinet:
General Administration & Support 8,631 8,521 8,188 333
Special Accounts - Capital Construction 400 400 400
Debt Service 248,758 230,009 225,501 4,508
Office of the Controller 5,939 5,817 5,665 152
Department for Administration 3,513 3,486 3,355 131
Department for Facilities Management 7,590 7,667 7,476 191
Kentucky Higher Education Assistance Authority 72,322 72,322 70,457 1,865
Special Accounts - Tobacco Settlement 109,100 86,951 86,951
County Costs 21,927 19,727 18,846 881
Appropriations Not Otherwise Classified:
Judgements 51,854 40,754 9,765 30,989
Board of Claims Awards 600 1,000 934 66
Guardian Ad Litem 3,400 5,700 5,700
Prior Year Claims 400 927 527 400
Unredeemed Checks Refunded 1,000 2,308 988 1,320
Involuntary Commitments 60 60 52 8
Blanket Employee Bonds 100 100 82 18
Frankfort In Lieu of Taxes 195 195 195
Frankfort Cemetery 3 3 3
Police and Firemen Life Insurance 250 325 309 16
Master Commissioner Employers Retirement 200 200 150 50
Master Commissioner Social Security 343 414 414
Workers' Compensation 532 582 580 2
Attorney General Expense 225 225 129 96
Medical Malpractice Liability Insurance Reimbursements 60 185 159 26
Total General Government 2,106,223 2,065,960 1,939,379 126,581

Legislative and Judicial:

General Assembly 21,379 21,378 12,871 8,507
Legislative Research Commission 35,491 35,491 31,562 3,929
Judicial Retirement System 2,519 2,519 2,519
Court of Justice - Court Facility Use 533 533 533
Court of Justice - Operation and Administration 150,490 150,490 150,490
Court of Justice - Local Facility Support 66,547 66,547 55,575 10,972
Total Legislative and Judicial 276,959 276,958 253,017 23,941
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004
(Expressed in Thousands)

Commerce:

Economic Development Cabinet:
Office of the Secretary
Administration and Support
Financial Incentives
Community Development
Business Development

Tourism Cabinet: Office of the Secretary

Breaks Interstate Park
Travel Development
Kentucky State Fair Board
Kentucky Horse Park
Department of Parks
Total Commerce

Education, Arts and Humanities Cabinet:

Office of the Secretary

Commission on Deaf and Hard of Hearing

Kentucky Heritage Council

Kentucky Arts Council

Department of Education:
Support Education Excellence In KY (SEEK)
Executive Policy and Management
Bureau of Support Services
Learning Results Services

Kentucky Education Television Authority

Kentucky Historical Society

Kentucky Center for the Arts Corporation

Libraries and Archives -
Direct Local Aid
General Operations

Teachers' Retirement System

Workforce Development Cabinet:
Administration and Program Support
Teacher Retirement Employer Contribution Match
Department for the Blind
Department of Employment Services
Department for Technical Education
Department for Adult Education & Literacy
Department of Vocational Rehabilitation
Total Education and Humanities

Human Resources:
Cabinet for Families and Children:
Administrative Services

Office of Family Resources and Youth Services Centers

Community Based Services
Cabinet for Health Services:

Administrative Support

Office of the Inspector General

Department of Public Health

Department for Mental Health and Mental Retardation

Department for Medicaid Services
Medicaid Services Benefits
Office Of Certificate Of Need

Commission for Children With Special Health Care Needs

Office of Aging Services
Total Human Resources

Original Final Actual Variance
$ 7,862 7,882 6,986 896
2,111 1,855 1,844 11
15,826 14,366 4,640 9,726
2,879 2,766 2,547 219
2,476 2,348 2,074 274
1,674 1,927 1,723 204
196 196 191 5
6,900 6,799 5,950 849
712 712 549 163
1,650 1,663 1,622 41
28,857 29,147 28,413 734
71,143 69,661 56,539 13,122
3,151 3,111 3,042 69
886 844 821 23
921 912 889 23
4,524 4,324 4,168 156
2,372,391 2,362,379 2,359,814 2,565
1,185 1,172 1,159 13
10,532 10,602 10,529 73
574,806 511,132 498,701 12,431
14,548 14,511 14,145 366
6,185 6,028 5,872 156
604 604 589 15
6,380 6,359 6,311 48
7,257 6,953 6,658 295
97,489 97,489 97,489
1,117 1,058 1,031 27
4,743 4,629 4,513 116
1,493 1,328 1,290 38
69
23,160 22,985 22,400 585
10,808
11,236 11,036 10,740 296
3,153,485 3,067,456 3,050,161 17,295
29,163 27,475 27,078 397
49,875 49,875
284,364 281,813 275,917 5,896
4,533 4,473 4,353 120
5,341 5,093 4,967 126
56,082 55,928 54,526 1,402
172,522 173,029 167,900 5,129
18,028 18,028 18,028
761,756 761,756 761,756
134 121 118 3
16,710 16,710 16,200 510
26,822 26,793 26,122 671
1,375,455 1,421,094 1,406,840 14,254

108



Justice Cabinet:

Office of the Secretary

Department of State Police

Department of Juvenile Justice

Department of Corrections:
Management
Adult Institutions
Local Jail Allotment
Community Services and Local Facilities
Total Justice

Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Cabinet:

General Administration & Support
Kentucky River Authority
Environmental Quality Commission
Kentucky Nature Preserves Commission
Department for Environmental Protection
Department for Natural Resources
Department for Surface Mining Reclamation
and Enforcement
Total Natural Resources and Environmental
Protection

Public Protection and Regulation Cabinet:
General Operations
Board of Claims and Crime Victims Compensation
Board of Tax Appeals
Kentucky Racing Commission
Public Service Commission
Department - for Public Advocacy
of Alcoholic Beverage Control
of Housing, Buildings, and Construction
for Mines and Minerals
Labor Cabinet - Office of the Secretary:
Department of Workplace Standards
Total Public Protection and Regulation

Transportation Cabinet:
Public
Total Transportation
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Fund Balance at July 1, as Restated
Non-Budgeted Items
Fund Balance at June 30

109

Original Final Actual Variance
7827 % 7,351 7,153 $ 198
82,075 77,792 75,719 2,073
83,790 82,686 80,574 2,112
16,332 16,293 15,817 476
199,784 198,034 191,523 6,511
15,804 15,804 15,738 66
81,400 84,053 83,103 950
487,012 482,013 469,627 12,386
9,506 9,702 9,681 21
379 379 310 69
1,053 1,053 1,049 4
22,925 23,005 22,853 152
12,961 15,054 14,842 212
10,831 10,437 9,845 592
57,655 59,630 58,580 1,050
261 240 134 106
857 856 771 85
499 499 401 98
523 523 436 87
14,530 10,932 9,124 1,808
25,390 25,416 25,264 152
1,663 1,492 1,361 131
2,318 2,370 2,297 73
9,365 9,043 8,634 409
422 410 297 113
2,013 2,003 1,806 197
57,841 53,784 50,525 3,259
5,587 5,588 4,980 608
5,587 5,588 4,980 608
7,591,360 7,502,144 7,289,648 212,496
(521,360) (667,144) 66,224 733,368

268,792 268,792

(5,095) (5,095)
(521,360) $ (398,352) 329,921 $ 728,273




COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) - BUDGETED SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004
(Expressed in Thousands)

Transportation

Original Final Actual Variance
Revenues
Budgeted:
Taxes $ 990,889 977,907 970,860 $ (7,047)
Licenses, fees, and permits 116,382 114,310 119,379 5,069
Charges for services 23,770 16,465 16,196 (269)
Fines and forfeits 9 5 57 52
Interest and other investment income 5,500 10,800 7,558 (3,242)
Other revenues 2,660 3,115 2,684 (431)
Total Budgeted Revenues 1,139,210 1,122,602 1,116,734 (5,868)
Non-Budgeted:
Taxes
Licenses, fees, and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Interest and other investment income
Other revenues
Escheat
Transfers in (interfund) 5,776 5,776
Transfers in (intrafund) 321 321
Total Non-Budgeted Revenue 6,097 6,097
Total Revenues 1,139,210 1,122,602 1,122,831 229

Expenditures
Cabinet of the General Government:
Governor's Office
Kentucky Infrastructure Authority
Office of the State Budget Director
Governor's Office for Technology 125
Executive Branch Ethics Commission
Department of Veterans Affairs
School Facilities Construction Commission
Small Business Advocacy
Unified Prosecutorial System: Commonwealth Attorneys
County Attorneys
Department of Agriculture
Office of the Attorney General
Auditor of Public Accounts
Registry of Election Finance
Department of Military Affairs
Kentucky Retirement Systems
Agricultural Development: Statewide Phase
Local Government: Development Districts
Secretary of State
Secretary of Treasury
Board of:
Accountancy
Alcohol and Drug Counselors
Auctioneers
Barbering
Chiropractic Examiners
Professional Counselors
Fee-Based Pastoral Counselors
Interpreters for Deaf & Hard of Hearing
Dentistry
Dietitians and Nutritionists
Elections
Embalmers and Funeral Home Directors
Education Professional Standards
Architects
Landscape Architects
Examiners of Psychologists
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Federal

Agency Revenue

Original Final Actual Variance Original Final Actual Variance
$ $ $

194,245

115,343

18,210

15 1,791,071

32 19,182

243 21,215

5,423,326 356,917

131

11,824 521,868

3,918 1,249,348

5,439,358 4,287,530

5,439,358 4,287,530
358 184 109 75 1,297 1,447 1,363 84
50,312 50,312 407 49,905 2,567 5,067 2,466 2,601
1,318 1,317 716 601
1,261 453 808 714 714 664 50
2 2 1 1
19,332 20,266 19,378 888

2,290

45 45 14 31
739 739 579 160 200 200 162 38
435 435 349 86 5 5 2 3
2,130 4,464 3,560 904 3,574 6,154 1,845 4,309
2,351 2,351 2,175 176 2,807 2,507 1,392 1,115
4,377 4,377 3,121 1,256
203 203 203
18,188 111,972 68,814 43,158 18,796 24,743 18,973 5,770
15,848 15,848 15,035 813
161 161 101 60
52,431 52,431 35,965 16,466 902 1,402 776 626
1,007 1,007 574 433
835 825 692 133
782 782 485 297
65 65 55 10
371 371 301 70
232 232 192 40
191 191 147 44
52 52 44 8
6 8 7 1
25 31 28 3
504 504 429 75
72 72 58 14
1,000 315 685 117 1,217 117 1,100
249 249 228 21
4,379 4,379 1,459 2,920 830 830 675 155
258 258 253 5
58 58 43 15
176 176 126 50
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BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) - BUDGETED SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

(Expressed in Thousands)

Transportation

Board of: (Continued) Original Final Actual

Variance

Examiners of Social Workers $ $ $
Hairdressers and Cosmetologists
Hearing Instrument Specialists
Proprietary Education
Nursing Home Administrators' Licensing
Medical Licensure
Nursing
Ophthalmic Dispensers
Optometric Examiners
Art Therapists
Occupational Therapy
Respiratory Care Practitioners
Marriage and Family Therapists
Emergency Medical Services
Geologists
Personnel
Pharmacy
Physical Therapists
Podiatry
Engineers and Land Surveyors
Speech Pathology and Audiology
Veterinary Examiners
Ky. Board of Investigators
Athletics Commission
Real Estate Commission
Real Estate Appraiser Board
Commission on Human Rights
Council on Postsecondary Education
Commission on Women
Personnel Cabinet:
General Operations
Public Employee Deferred Compensation Authority
Cabinet for Universities:
Eastern Kentucky University
Kentucky State University
Morehead State University
Murray State University
Northern Kentucky University
University of Kentucky
University of Louisville
Western Kentucky University
Kentucky Community and Technical College System
Revenue Cabinet:
General Operations 1,418 1,401 1,401
Office of Property Valuation
Finance and Administration Cabinet:
Office of the Secretary 3,664 3,664 3,664
Office of the Controller
Kentucky Higher Education Assistance Authority
County Costs
Department for Administration 283 283 283
Office Of Governmental Services Center
Department for Facilities Management
Daviess County Fiscal Court

$

Total General Government 5,490 5,348 5,348
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Federal

Agency Revenue

Original Final Actual Variance Original Final Actual Variance
$ $ $ $ 145 145 $ 95 $ 50
707 706 706
53 53 45 8
134 134 94 40
76 76 58 18
2,100 2,100 2,022 78
4,269 4,429 3,814 615
63 63 47 16
157 157 147 10
11 11 8 3
86 86 75 11
189 189 117 72
83 83 57 26
100 1,355 699 656 172 172 72 100
135 135 82 53
2 2 2
876 876 857 19
280 280 205 75
16 16 8 8
1,354 1,354 1,099 255
86 86 78 8
238 238 154 84
55 46 9
167 28 27 1
2,302 2,303 1,927 376
632 632 514 118
171 458 447 11 24 24 5 19
3,161 19,099 13,721 5,378 4,707 15,812 7,594 8,218
5 32 32
13,771 12,843 11,326 1,517
5,622 5,622 4,412 1,210
134,269 154,269 154,252 17
29,429 33,429 33,340 89
98,312 98,312 62,929 35,383
83,163 83,163 67,862 15,301
77,205 100,205 99,176 1,029
1,001,308 1,083,088 766,724 316,364
353,107 353,107 32,980 320,127
118,042 118,042 91,678 26,364
257,186 257,186 114,565 142,621
4,149 4,119 2,730 1,389
4,464 4,464 4,115 349
2,870 2,870 2,432 438
4,000 4,000 1,103 2,897 414 414 300 114
890 1,158 1,158 97,352 100,200 93,042 7,158
1,425 1,625 1,381 244
3,773 3,773 3,374 399
1,516 1,516 1,233 283
40 40 40
80,761
139,645 255,598 131,313 124,285 2,467,515 2,539,950 1,638,307 901,643
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(Expressed in Thousands)

Transportation

Original Final Actual

Variance

Legislative and Judicial:
General Assembly $ $ $
Legislative Research Commission
Judicial Retirement System

Court of Justice - Operations and Administration

Total Legislative and Judicial

Commerce:

Economic Development Cabinet:
Office of the Secretary
Administration and Support
Financial Incentives
Community Development
Business Development

Tourism Cabinet: Office of the Secretary
Travel Development
Department of Parks
Department of Fish and Wildlife Resources

Total Commerce

Education, Arts, and Humanities Cabinet:
Commission on the Deaf and Hard of Hearing
Environmental Education Council
Kentucky Heritage Council
Kentucky Arts Council
Office of the Secretary

Department of Education:

Learning Results Services
Bureau of Support Services
Kentucky Educational Television
Kentucky Historical Society
Libraries and Archives:
Direct Local Aid
General Operations
Teachers' Retirement System
Workforce Development Cabinet:
Office of the Secretary:
Administration & Program Support
Department for the Blind
Office of Training and Reemployment
Department of Employment Services
Department for Technical Education
Department for Adult Education & Literacy
Department of Vocational Rehabilitation

Total Education and Humanities

Human Resources:
Cabinet for Families and Children:
Administrative Services
Disability Determination
Community Based Services
Family Resources and Youth Services
Centers
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Federal

Agency Revenue

Original Final Actual Variance Original Final Actual Variance
$ $ 566 565 565
1 1 1 1,611 1,611 1,611
20 173 142 31
4,111 5,634 3,537 2,097 20,583 19,191 10,069 9,122
4,112 5,635 3,537 2,098 22,780 21,540 10,211 11,329
4,141 5,546 4,521 1,025
46 46 46
2,227 2,079 1,696 383
155 155 130 25 454 454 283 171
291 41 41
1,200 1,200 981 219
825 620 205
7,650 8,951 8,763 188 28,658 28,658 25,910 2,748
7,805 9,106 8,893 213 37,017 38,849 34,052 4,797
260 294 285 9
150 238 203 35
766 766 538 228 227 750 582 168
621 734 595 139 613 683 497 186
237 395 93 302
497,995 631,820 607,499 24,321 5,851 6,001 4,616 1,385
574 573 539 34 2,264 3,064 1,809 1,255
700 791 767 24 1,076 1,337 1,122 215
382 382 345 37 571 571 548 23
424 424 331 93 9 9 9
1,837 2,131 2,033 98 1,831 1,831 1,624 207
7,572 7,572 6,434 1,138
175 175 168 7 6,696 6,696 5,051 1,645
7,637 8,262 8,208 54 1,979 2,371 2,271 100
49,350 64,025 42,848 21,177
45,819 56,946 53,503 3,443 7,444 7,444 5,319 2,125
13,037 15,180 15,157 23 19,673 20,260 19,542 718
15,149 11,104
44,194 44,194 42,585 1,609 2,955 2,955 2,266 689
678,660 826,403 775,116 51,287 70,512 62,471 52,271 10,200
38,459 38,459 25,698 12,761 4,501 4,502 4,407 95
42,377 42,377 38,257 4,120 66 66 49 17
476,833 486,204 432,081 54,123 123,640 139,244 128,018 11,226
211 113 98
Continued
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(Expressed in Thousands)

Transportation

Original Final Actual Variance

Cabinet for Health Services:
Administrative Support $ $ $ $
Office of Inspector General
Department of Public Health
Department for Mental Health and

Mental Retardation
Department for Medicaid Services
Medicaid Services Benefits
Office of Certificate Of Need
Commission for Children with Special
Health Care Needs
Office of Aging Services

Total Human Resources

Justice Cabinet:
Office of the Secretary
Department of State Police 35,000 35,000 35,000
Department of Juvenile Justice
Department of Criminal Justice Training
Department of Corrections:
Management
Adult Institutions
Community Service and Local Facilities

Total Justice 35,000 35,000 35,000

Natural Resources and Environmental
Protection Cabinet:
General Administration & Support
Kentucky River Authority
Environmental Quality Commission
Kentucky Nature Preserves Commission
Department for Environmental Protection
Department for Natural Resources
Department for Surface Mining -
Reclamation & Enforcement
Reclamation Projects
Total Natural Resources and

Environmental Protection

Public Protection and Regulation Cabinet:
General Operations
Board of Claims and Crime Victims Compensation
Kentucky Racing Commission
Kentucky Athletic Commission
Public Service Commission
Department - for Public Advocacy
of Alcoholic Beverage Control
of Charitable Gaming
of Financial Institutions
of Housing, Buildings, and Construction
of Insurance
for Mines and Minerals
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Federal Agency Revenue

Original Final Actual Variance Original Final Actual Variance

$ 2,272 $ 3,022 $ 2,567 $ 455 $ 5,798 $ 5,789 $ 4,704 $ 1,085

10,982 10,232 8,508 1,724 3,009 2,940 1,701 1,239

127,621 152,621 139,509 13,112 65,914 65,914 46,102 19,812

41,356 41,865 35,594 6,271 206,415 206,924 164,833 42,091

44,742 52,742 38,981 13,761 20,806 20,806 16,773 4,033

2,270,733 3,120,695 3,074,548 46,147 201,949 401,188 376,934 24,254

251 235 126 109

9,823 10,720 9,776 944 23,263 27,263 26,855 408

18,885 21,373 19,619 1,754 762 955 893 62

3,084,083 3,980,521 3,825,251 155,270 656,374 875,826 771,395 104,431

13,385 13,385 9,886 3,499 2,164 2,144 1,134 1,010

10,261 18,728 11,030 7,698 7,621 11,109 9,200 1,909

17,250 17,250 15,191 2,059 15,692 15,692 7,651 8,041

2,700 2,700 1,454 1,246 37,941 37,941 36,333 1,608

800 1,450 854 596 1,865 1,865 1,201 664

215 315 252 63 5,305 5,305 4,134 1,171

10 7 3 630 572 446 126

44,611 53,838 38,674 15,164 71,218 74,628 60,099 14,529

1,596 1,596 1,442 154 277 276 147 129

3,698 3,698 1,568 2,130

223 220 3

25 71 25 46 298 426 240 186

19,662 21,245 14,213 7,032 34,482 35,253 24,544 10,709

4,915 7,566 5,073 2,493 3,810 4,447 2,164 2,283

17,390 17,390 14,771 2,619 5,767 5,767 2,171 3,596
22,000 22,000 17,311 4,689

65,588 69,868 52,835 17,033 48,332 50,090 31,054 19,036

2,096 1,950 1,473 477

557 558 199 359 2,937 2,936 1,739 1,197

13,665 13,642 11,980 1,662

140 34 106

272 272 239 33 24 1,024 139 885

1,385 1,609 1,491 118 3,078 4,667 3,232 1,435

4,295 3,970 3,465 505

3,604 3,604 2,792 812

9,330 9,330 7,537 1,793

85 45 40 12,288 10,611 10,520 91

23,208 22,006 15,643 6,363

599 849 671 178 2,043 2,443 2,036 407

117 Continued



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) - BUDGETED SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004
(Expressed in Thousands)

Labor Cabinet:
Office of the Secretary
Department of Workplace Standards
Total Public Protection and Regulation

Transportation Cabinet:
Administration & Support
Revenue Sharing
Air Transportation
Highways
Highways-Public Transportation
Vehicle Regulation
Debt Service
Transfers To Capital Construction
Road Fund Judgments
1990 Economic Development Bond Projects

Total Transportation

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues over (under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds From Sale of Bonds
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources over (under) Expenditures and
Other Financing Uses

Fund Balances at July 1
Non-Budgeted Items

Fund Balances at June 30
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Transportation

Original Final Actual Variance
$ $ $
78,901 72,233 60,299 11,934
277,122 274,543 229,704 44,839
874,374 895,847 794,895 100,952
32,659 30,124 29,537 587
161,312 160,847 153,295 7,552
8,284 8,284 8,284
1,432,652 1,441,878 1,276,014 165,864
1,473,142 1,482,226 1,316,362 165,864
(333,932) (359,624) (193,531) 166,093
(333,932) (359,624) (193,531) 166,093
357,691 357,691
(783) (783)
$ (333,932) ¢ (1,933) 163,377 $ 165,310




Federal

Agency Revenue

Original Final Actual Variance
$ $

3,281 3,680 3,351 329
6,094 7,053 5,996 1,057
9 9 9
1,049,586 1,049,586 463,837 585,749
38,197 38,197 23,643 14,554
3,546 4,346 3,928 418
1,091,338 1,092,138 491,408 600,730
5,121,936 6,300,160 5,333,023 967,137

106,335

106,335

85,027

(13,831)

$ 177,531 $
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Original Final Actual Variance
$ 5,897 5,897 $ 3,956 $ 1,941
82,465 82,220 64,546 17,674
27 26 3 23
7,579 7,583 4,715 2,868
84,933 88,733 40,408 48,325
874 874 438 436
8,318 8,133 3,654 4,479
47,017 47,017 27,943 19,074
148,748 152,366 77,161 75,205
3,604,961 3,897,940 2,739,096 1,158,844
1,548,434
1,548,434
745,971
(1,521,725)
$ $ 772,680 $




COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
Required Supplementary I nformation
June 30, 2004

Budgetary Reporting

The Commonwealth of Kentucky requires that each branch of
government prepare and submit a recommended budget to the
General Assembly for each of thetwo fiscal yearsto beincludedin
abiennial budget. These budgets are prepared principally on the
cash basis. The Legislature reviews these budget requests, makes
any necessary revisions, and legally adopts a biennial budget for
each of the three branches of government. The Governor has the
power to approve or veto each bill, subject to legidlative override.

The financial plan for each fiscal year, as presented in a branch
budget recommendation, shall be adopted with such modifications
as made by the General Assembly (and explained in a budget
memorandum) by the passage of the budget bill and such revenue
and other acts necessary for the purpose. A budget bill shall not be
effective past July 1 of the year in which the next regular session
takes place.

Budgetary control ismaintained at thebudget unitlevel asdesignated
by the Legislature(i.e., function, major program area, program, or
unit of organization).

Appropriationsfor the General Fund and Road Fund shall be based
uponrevenueestimatesprepared by the Financeand Administration
Cabinet and modificationsmadeby theappropriationscommittee of
the General Assembly. Official revenue estimatesare not madefor
the other budgetary funds.

TheMajor Governmental funds, which havelegally adopted annual
budgets as part of the primary government, include the following:
General, Transportation, Federal, and Agency Revenue.

Thefundsallotted for each purpose of expenditure shall be used for
no other purpose, except when the head of any budget unit, withthe
approval of the Secretary of theFinanceand Admini stration Cabinet,
may transfer allotted funds from one purpose of expenditure to
another within the budget unit. No revisions of the allotment
schedulemay providefor anallotment or allotmentsin excessof the
amount appropriated to that budget unit in ajoint budget resolution
or for expenditure for any other purpose than specified in ajoint
budget resol ution and abudget memorandum. However, budgetary
funds except for that of the General Fund and the Transportation
Fund may be amended in an amount up to the actual receipts (not to
exceed 5%) by an Adviceof Change Order fromthe Secretary of the
Financeand Administration Cabinet. No supplemental appropriations
were required during thisfiscal year.

Encumbranceaccountingisutilizedfor budgetary control purposes.
Encumbrances outstanding at year end for long-term construction
contractsother than commitmentsof acontinuing naturearereported
as reservations of fund balance for subsequent year expenditures.

All other encumbered and unencumbered appropriationslapseat the
end of eachfiscal year except inthe Transportation Fund, which has
a project length budget. Encumbrances are carried forward as
reservation of appropriations.

The annual budget is prepared principally on the cash basis,
which differsfrom generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP). A reconciliation between the budgetary basis and the
GAAP basisis presented in the notes to the Required
Supplemental |nformation section asfollows.
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Budgetary Basisvs. GAAP

Accounting principles applied for purposes of developing data on budgetary basis differ significantly from those used to present financial statements
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. A schedule reconciling the fund balance on a cash basis at June 30, 2004, to the fund
balance on a modified accrual basis follows :

(Expressed in Thousands)

Agency
Financial statement funds General Transportation Federal Revenue
(same as budgetary funds) Fund Fund Fund Fund
Fund balance/retained earnings
June 30, 2004:
Budgetary basis $ (329,921) $ (163,377) $ (A77,531) $ (772,680)
Adjustments:
Accrued revenues (260,402) (64,561) (288,814) (40,577)
Accrued expenditures 173,106 26,549 340,208 27,317
Accrued transfers (net) 12,452 (523)
Total Accruals (1) (74,844) (38,012) 51,394 (13,783)
Reclassifications and other adjustments:
Inventory balances (1) (5,389) (25,331) (66) (4,282)
To reclassify financial and other resources
into financial statement fund types (2) (1,303) (1,647) 87,618 499,203
To record financial resources available
as non-budgeted funds (3) 22,000
Fund Balance/Retained Earnings
Fund balance/retained earnings June 30, 2004:
GAAP Basis $ (389,457) $ (228,367) $ (38,585) $ (291,542)

(1) Basis differences
(2) Perspective differences
(3) Entity differences
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Infrastructure Assets Reported Using the M odified
Approach

Asallowed by GASB Statement No. 34, Basi cFinancial Statements
—and Management’ sDiscussionand Analysis—for Stateand L ocal
Governments, the Commonwealth has adopted an alternative
processfor recording depreci ation expenseonsel ectedinfrastructure
assets. Under thisalternative method, referred to asthe modified
approach, the Commonweal th expenses certain maintenance and
preservation costsand doesnot report depreci ation expense. Assets
accounted for, under the modified approach, include 61,750 lane
miles of roads and approximately 9,000 bridges that the
Commonwealth isresponsibleto maintain.

In order to utilize the modified approach, the Commonwealth is
reguired to:

» Maintain an asset management system that includesan up-to-
dateinventory of eligibleinfrastructure assets.

»  Performconditionassessmentsof eligibleassetsand summarize
the results using a measurement scale.

» Edtimate, each year, the annual amount to maintain and
preserve the assets at the condition level established and
disclosed by the Commonwealth.

» Document that the assets are being preserved approximately
at, or above, the established condition level.

Pavements

M easurement Scale

The Kentucky Transportation Cabinet (KYTC) uses numerous
methodsto determinethecondition of roadway pavements; however,
the Pavement Condition Index (PCl) servesas KYTC's primary
method to measureand monitor pavement conditions. Inusesince
the mid-1980s, the PCI for any particular pavement section isthe
mathemati cal differencebetweenthecurrent pavement smoothness
andtheacceptabl e pavement smoothnessthreshol d based ontraffic
volumes. The corresponding pavement condition is based on the
following PCI ranges:

Condition PCl

Good Greater than +0.4
Fair Between 0.0 and 0.4
Poor Lessthan 0.0

Established Minimum Condition L evel
No more than 30% of the pavements shall be rated as* poor.”

Assessed Conditions

The Commonwealth assesses pavement condition on a calendar
year basis. Thefollowingtablereportsthepercentageof pavements
meeting ratings of “Good”, “Fair”, and “Poor” for the past five
years.

Condition 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Good 42.0% 48.3% 50.4% 51.7% 51.5%
Fair 382% 34.4% 29.0% 31.2% 30.8%
Poor 198% 17.3% 20.6% 17.1% 17.7%
Bridges

M easurement Scale

KYTC utilizes the National Bridge Inspection Program to monitor
the condition of the nearly 9,000 bridges under itsjurisdiction. The
National Bridge Inspection Program rates bridges, including the
deck, superstructureand substructure, usinga0Oto 9 point scale. The
ratings are based on the following descriptions:

Rating Description

9 Excellent.

8 Very good.

7 Good. Some minor problems.

6 Satisfactory.  Structural elements show some minor
deterioration.

5 Fair. All primary structural elements are sound but may
have minor section loss, cracking, spalling or scour.

4 Poor. Advanced section loss, deterioration, spalling or
scour.

3 Serious. Loss of section, deterioration, spalling, or scour

haveserioudly affected primary structural components. Local
failuresarepossible. Fatiguecracksin steel or shear cracks
in concrete may be present.

2 Critical. Advanced deterioration of primary structura
elements. Fatiguecracksinsteel or shear cracksinconcrete
may be present or scour may have removed substructure
support. Unless closely monitored, it may be necessary to
close the bridge until corrective action istaken.

1 Imminentfailure. Major deterioration or sectionlosspresent
in critical structural components or obvious vertical or
horizontal movement affecting structurestability. Bridgeis
closedtotraffic, but correctiveaction may putit backinlight
service.

0 Failure. Out of service; beyond corrective action.

Established Minimum Condition Level
No more than 7% of the bridges shall be rated as “structurally
deficient.”

Assessed Conditions
“Structurally deficient” resultswhenarating of 4 or worseisassessed
to at least one of the major structural elements (e.g. the deck,
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superstructure, or substructure). The following table reports the
percentageof bridgeswhose conditionwasassessed as* structurally
deficient” in the stated year:

Calendar Y ear

2003
2002
2001
2000
1999

Structurally Deficient

5.3%
5.2%
5.3%
4.9%
4.9%

Estimated and Actual Coststo Maintain

The following table presents the Commonwealth’s estimate of
spending necessary to preserveand mai ntai nthe pavements, bridges,
and maintenance condition at, or above, the* Established Condition
Levels’ cited aboveandtheactual amount spent during thepast four

fiscal years (in millions):

Fiscal Y ear 2005:
Estimated

Fiscal Y ear 2004:
Estimated
Actual

Fiscal Y ear 2003:
Estimated
Actual

Fiscal Y ear 2002:
Estimated
Actual

Fiscal Y ear 2001:
Estimated
Actual

Roadways Bridges

$665.0

$645.0
$642.8

$601.7
$630.2

N/A
$576.1

N/A
N/A

$100.0

$100.0
$100.3

$93.3
$93.8

N/A
$96.6

N/A
N/A

Total

$765.0

$745.0
$742.8

$695.0
$724.0

N/A
$672.7

N/A
$700.6

123



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

ENTITY RISK POOLS

CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION

FOR THE LAST TEN YEARS

(Expressed in Thousands)

State Workers' Compensation

Fiscal and Policy Year Ended

Earned Premiums $
Administrative Expense

Incurred Claims as
Originally Estimated

Claims Paid (Cumulative) as of:
End of Fiscal Year
One Year Later
Two Years Later
Three Years Later
Four Years Later
Five Years Later
Six Years Later
Seven Years Later
Eight Years Later
Nine Years Later

Re-estimation of Incurred Claims:

End of Fiscal Year
One Year Later
Two Years Later
Three Years Later
Four Years Later
Five Years Later
Six Years Later
Seven Years Later
Eight Years Later
Nine Years Later

Increase (Decrease) in Estimated

Incurred Claims From the
Original Estimate Using

Re-estimation at the End of the

Most Recent Fiscal Year

SOURCE: Compilation Report

1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

12,991 § 14,470 §$ 14095 §$ 16121 §$ 17,351 $ 17,026 13543 § 13628 $ 17,058 $ 18,146
401 542 554 404 513 526 533 545 777 480

12,727 14,709 14,982 13,243 13,298 15,324 19,097 19,501 21,342 20,320
3,003 3,010 2,615 2,819 2,702 3,128 3,790 3,846 3,733 3,656
5,797 5,882 5,626 5,697 5,833 6,332 7,216 7,320 7,449

7,588 7,560 7,156 7,179 7,604 7,811 8,987 9,260

8,721 8,632 8,173 8,017 8,726 8,678 10,252

9,346 9,552 8,824 8,653 9,305 9,441

9,813 10,241 9,211 9,313 9,818

10,185 10,775 9,685 9,707

10,695 11,191 9,971

11,014 11,516

11,242

12,727 14,709 14,982 13,243 13,298 15,324 19,097 19,501 21,342 20,320

12,883 14,502 13,006 12,876 13,623 16,584 19,315 20,172 20,514

13,266 14,519 12,627 13,473 15,543 16,033 19,186 18,805

13,526 14,021 12,762 14,416 15,617 16,189 19,067

13,797 14,507 14,270 14,492 15,497 15,449

14,028 15,345 14,050 15,001 15,039

14,405 15,350 14,657 14,870

14,290 15,471 14,196

14,304 15,618

14,637

(1,910) (909) 786 (1,627) (1,741) (126) 31 696 827

124



OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Debt Service Fund

IntheDebt ServiceFund, thePrimary Gover nment accountsfor thepayment of principal, interest,
and administrativefeesdueon general long-termissuesof the Commonwealth and for theaccumul ation
of financial resources used to make such payments.

TheTurnpike Authority of Kentucky issuesdebt to acquireinfrastructure, which isthen leased to
the Transportation Cabinet of the Commonwealth.

Special Revenue Funds

The Other Special Revenue Fund accountsfor revenues and expenditures of restricted taxes, fees,
and charges related to a particular function or activity, but not usually appropriated by the General
Assembly.

TheTurnpike Authority of Kentucky issuesdebt to acquireinfrastructure, which isthen leased to
the Transportation Cabinet of the Commonwealth.

The Special BenefitsFund accountsfor other fiduciary moniesthat will be expended for designated
operations.
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2004

(Expressed in Thousands)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash with fiscal agents
Investments, net of amortization
Receivables, net
Notes receivable
Capital lease receivable
Interfund receivables
Inventories

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Interfund payables
Interfund loan payable
Deferred revenue
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:

Inventories

Deposit with fiscal agents
Unreserved, reported in:

Special revenue funds

Debt service fund

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Debt Service Funds

Primary
Government

910 $
24,001

6,148

125,875
1

156,935 $

1,107

125,875

126,982

24,001

5,952

29,953

156,935 3$
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Turnpike
Authority
of Kentucky

18,371

192,100

2,429

79,760

292,660

4,958

4,958

287,702
287,702
292,660



Special Revenue Funds

Other
Special
Revenue

5,895

100,003
42,228
6,907

2,954
48

Turnpike
Authority
of Kentucky

158,035

108,737

24,411
1,663

2,003
16,058

18,166

134,811

36,227

79,760

140

48

121,760

79,901

121,808

54,910

158,035

54,910

134,811

129

Special
Benefits

132,111

55,048
13,138

25,647

225,944

6,982
20,021
579
7,504

35,086

190,858

190,858

225,944

Total
Non-Major
Governmental
Funds

266,024
24,001
377,710
59,458
6,907
125,875
108,362
48
968,385

13,944
116,946
579
151,685
283,154

48
24,001

367,528
293,654
685,231
968,385



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004
(Expressed in Thousands)

Debt Service Funds

Turnpike
Primary Authority
Government of Kentucky
Revenues
Taxes $ $
Licenses, fees, and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services 17,644
Fines and forfeits
Interest and other investment income 1,488 6,347
Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments 4)
Other revenues 4,851 3,299
Total Revenues 23,979 9,646
Expenditures
Current:
General government
Legislative and judicial
Commerce
Education and humanities
Human resources
Justice
Natural resources and
environmental protection
Public protection and regulation
Transportation
Debt service:
Principal retirement 148,111 138,055
Interest and fiscal charges 121,686 59,738
Other expenditures 73,059 4,993
Total Expenditures 342,856 202,786
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over (under) Expenditures (318,877) (193,140)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 242,738 175,861
Transfers out
Capitalized leases
Proceeds from the sale of bonds:
New issues 143,883
Refunding issues 585,699 16,180
Premiums 102,228 1,088
Proceeds from notes 171,260
Payments to refunded bond escrow agent (927,227) (17,268)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 318,581 175,861
Net Change in Fund Balances (296) (17,279)
Fund Balances at July 1, as Restated 30,249 304,981
Increase (Decrease) in Inventory
Fund Balances at June 30 $ 29,953 $ 287,702
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Special Revenue Funds

Other
Special
Revenue

82,971
1,450
678
17,895
18,879
18,645
(4,768)
55,309

Turnpike
Authority

of Kentucky

191,059

(1,409)

19,464

34,327
10
2,288
349
154

4,023

18,055

41,151

4,851

149,908

4,851

209,434
(341,635)
18

13,204

(132,183)

156,679
(175,861)

17,725
104,087

4

(19,182)

121,808

(5,978)
60,888

54,910

131

Special
Benefits

192
11,569
74
88,197
3,155
3,763

(1,044)
22,649

Total
Non-Major
Governmental
Funds

128,555

83,163
13,019
752
123,736
22,034
28,834

(5,816)
105,572

88,965
105

31,232
26,038
72

10,521
(3,385)
48,776

371,294

202,324

128,143
115
2,288
31,581
26,192
72

14,544
(3,385)
48,776

286,166
181,424
78,052

(73,769)

793,968

153,656
(88,778)

(422,674)

64,878

938,368
(606,274)
18

143,883
601,879
103,316
171,260

(944,495)

(8,891)
199,749

407,955

190,858

(14,719)
699,954

Q)

685,231




SCHEDULE OF FUND ACTIVITIES
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES BY SOURCE

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

(Expressed In Thousands)

Revenues by Source
Taxes:
Sales and gross receipts
Income:
Individual
Corporations
Property
Coal severance
Licenses and privileges
Inheritance and estate
Miscellaneous
Total Taxes

Licenses, fees, and permits
Intergovernmental

Charges for services

Fines and forfeits

Interest and other investment income
Securities lending income

Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments

Other revenues
Total Revenues by Source
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June 30, 2004

$

2,689,485

2,785,155
311,741
513,063
190,371
126,506

64,748
3,503

6,684,572

22,318
16,406
23,369
54,444

7,154

15,549
(106)

160,562

$

6,984,268




COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION, CABINET, AND OBJECT

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

(Expressed In Thousands)

June 30, 2004

General Government:
Cabinet for General Government:

Personal services $ 196,724
Utilities, rentals, and other services 28,146
Commodities and supplies 6,157
Grants and subsidies 1,220,939
Capital outlay 168
Travel 1,958
Judgments and contingent liabilities (8,947)
Total Cabinet for General Government 1,445,145

Finance and Administration Cabinet:

Personal services 20,942
Utilities, rentals, and other services 5,752
Commodities and supplies 17,498
Grants and subsidies 50,792
Capital Outlay 78
Travel 178
Judgments and contingent liabilities 10,982
Total Finance and Administration Cabinet 106,222
Total General Government 1,551,367

Legislative and Judicial:

Personal services 167,565
Utilities, rentals, and other services 63,306
Commodities and supplies 11,215
Grants and subsidies 3,381
Capital outlay 3,239
Travel 3,251
Total Legislative and Judicial 251,957
Commerce:
Economic Development Cabinet:
Personal services 6,098
Utilities, rentals, and other services 985
Commodities and supplies 281
Grants and subsidies 6,940
Capital Outlay 86
Travel 107
Total Economic Development Cabinet 14,497

Commerce Cabinet:

Personal services 4,829
Utilities, rentals, and other services 813
Commodities and supplies 100
Grants and subsidies 2,097
Capital Outlay 6
Travel 87
Total Commerce Cabinet 7,932
Total Commerce $ 22,429
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION, CABINET, AND OBJECT

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004
(Expressed In Thousands)

Education and Humanities:
Personal services
Utilities, rentals, and other services
Commodities and supplies
Grants and subsidies
Capital outlay
Travel
Judgments and contingent liabilities
Total Education and Humanities

Human Resources:

Personal services

Utilities, rentals, and other services

Commodities and supplies

Grants and subsidies

Capital Outlay

Travel

Judgments and contingent liabilities
Total Human Resources

Justice:
Personal services
Utilities, rentals, and other services
Commodities and supplies
Grants and subsidies
Capital outlay
Travel
Judgments and Contingent Liabilities
Total Justice

Natural Resources and Environmental Protection:
Personal services
Utilities, rentals, and other services
Commodities and supplies
Grants and subsidies
Capital outlay
Travel

Total Natural Resources and Environmental Protection

Public Protection and Regulation:
Personal services
Utilities, rentals, and other services
Commodities and supplies
Grants and subsidies
Capital outlay
Travel
Total Public Protection and Regulation

Transportation:
Personal services
Utilities, rentals, and other services
Commodities and supplies
Grants
Capital outlay
Travel
Total Transportation

Securities Lending Expense

Total Expenditures
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June 30, 2004

85,046
12,027
5,382
2,912,527
243

2,442

9

3,017,676

156,338
38,733
5,286
1,179,296
1,421
4,937
1,990

1,388,001

273,704
32,337
23,341

131,325

4,752
2,105
(413)

467,151

49,346
4,213
2,397
2,118

492
371

58,937

38,243
3,382
860
5,345
49

860

48,739

903
75

1
3,672
31

2

4,684

13,123

6,824,064




COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES BY TYPE
TRANSPORTATION FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

(Expressed In Thousands)

June 30, 2004

Revenues:

Licenses, fees and permits $ 112,515
Taxes 968,860
Charges for services 14,478
Fines and forfeits 57
Interest and other investment income 7,323

Increase (decrease) in fair value
of investments (23,544)
Other revenues 2,313
Total Revenues 1,082,002

Expenditures:
Transportation:

General administration and support 22,082
Motor vehicle regulation 29,564
Justice - state police 35,278
Highways 1,040,097
Other 2,372

Total Expenditures 1,129,393

Excess of Revenues over (under)

Expenditures (47,391)

Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in 5777
Operating transfers out (167,285)
Capitalized leases 1,609
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (159,899)

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources over (under) Expenditures

and Other Financing Uses (207,290)

Fund Balance at July 1 438,991
Increase (decrease) in inventories (3,334)
Fund Balance at June 30 $ 228,367
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods and services provided on a cost
reimbursement basi sby oneagency of the Commonwealthto other stateagencies. Kentucky usesthe
following Internal Service Funds:

Fleet Management Fund accountsfor expensesincurred and reimbursementsreceived by
theTransportation Cabinet for the management and mai ntenance of the State’ smotor vehicle
fleet.

Computer ServicesFund accountsfor expensesincurred and reimbursementsreceived by
the Commonwealth Office for Technology for computer and related data processing
services.

Prison IndustriesFund accountsfor expensesincurred and reimbursementsreceived by the
Department of Corrections’ industrial prison operations.

Central Printing Fund accountsfor expensesincurred and reimbursementsreceived by the
Finance and Administration Cabinet’ s Division of Printing.

Property M anagement Fund accountsfor expensesincurred and reimbursementsreceived
by the Finance and Administration Cabinet’ s space rental and maintenance operation.

Risk Management Fund accounts for the self-insurance operations of the State which
include:

Fire and Tornado Insurance Program accounts for monies received by the
Department of Insurance from State agencies and expended for insuring State
property against loss from fires, tornadoes, etc.

State Workers' Compensation Program accounts for monies received by the
Personnel Cabinet from State agencies and expended for claims of job related
injuriesto State empl oyees.

Transportation Cabinet’ s Self-Insured Workers' Compensation Trust Program
providesworkers’ compensationinsurancefor theemployeesof the Transportation
Cabinet.
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2004
(Expressed in Thousands)

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Interfunds receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent assets:
Investments, net
Land
Improvements other than buildings
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Construction in progress
Total Capital Assets
Total Noncurrent Assets, Net
Total Assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Interfund payables
Claims liability
Capital lease obligations
Compensated absences
Deferred revenue

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Claims liability
Capital lease obligations
Compensated absences
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

Fleet Computer Prison
Management Services Industries

10,389 6,357 790

6 217 755

396 1,054 517

48 269 1,776
2,953

10,839 10,850 3,838

2,290 6,803 133

725

1,667 3,851

74,673 33,554 3,770

(53,627) (25,294) (4,301)

48

21,046 9,927 4,093

23,336 16,730 4,226

34,175 27,580 8,064

12 5,236 539

1,380 1,606 358

547 3

249 138

1,244 84

1,392 8,882 1,122

519 7

3,517 349

4,036 356

1,392 12,918 1,478

21,046 8,862 4,083

11,737 5,800 2,503

32,783 14,662 6,586
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Central
Printing

194

116
192

Property
Management

506

7,190
88
53

43

2,284
(1,959)

7,331

325

25,236
6,464
2,807

225,851

1,493
(112,130)

11,066

368

135,551

874

160,787

202
11

50
138
78

168,118

479

1,242
2,416

513
135

32
155

4,306

187

466

666

466

243
(35)

4,772

208

135,651
27,695

163,346

139

Risk
Management

11,299
1
75

2,103

Totals
June 30, 2004

13,478

36,219
1,071
2,211
2,285
5,056

884

46,842

35,389
7,189
2,807

231,369
115,774
(197,311)

11,114

884

170,942

206,331

14,362

253,173

981
122
16,812

11

8,212
5,893
16,812
600
1,049
1,541

17,926

34,107

99,840

10

99,850

99,840
558
4,497

104,895

117,776

139,002

(103,414)

169,885
(55,714)

(103,414)

114,171




COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

(Expressed in Thousands)

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services
Other revenues

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Personal services
Utilities, rentals, and other services
Commodities and supplies
Grants and subsidies
Depreciation and amortization
Travel
Reinsurance expense
Claims expense

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Income (Expenses):
Gain (loss) on sale of fixed assets
Interest and other investment income
Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments
Interest expense
Total Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses

Income (Loss) before Capital Contributions
and Transfers

Capital Contributions
Transfers in
Transfers out

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets at July 1, as Restated
Net Assets at June 30

Fleet Computer Prison
Management Services Industries
23,390 $ 53,416 $ 12,882
140 37 1
23,530 53,453 12,883
1,397 31,326 4,083
2,732 18,915 693
7,801 1,157 6,496
16 849
9,110 2,343 230
4 73 73
37
21,044 53,867 12,424
2,486 (414) 459
522 (995) (47)
18
(107) (368) (12)
(95)
415 (1,440) (59)
2,901 (1,854) 400
316
51
(7,374) (353) (1,587)
(4,157) (2,156) (1,187)
36,940 16,818 7,773
32,783 $ 14,662 $ 6,586
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Central Property Risk Totals
Printing Management Management June 30, 2004

3,258 26,923 29,844 149,713
1 562 741
3,259 27,485 29,844 150,454
2,103 10,566 2,412 51,887
707 13,496 4,419 40,962
762 10,128 26 26,370
865

61 5,023 16,767

1 25 23 199

536 536

20,287 20,324

3,634 39,238 27,703 157,910
(375) (11,753) 2,141 (7,456)
(€] (521)

8) 57 67
1 (382) 3) (871)
) (102)
(14) (383) 54 (1,427)
(389) (12,136) 2,195 (8,883)
316

5,983 6,034

(2,380) (642) (12,336)

(389) (8,533) 1,553 (14,869)

597 171,879 (104,967) 129,040

208 163,346 (103,414) 114,171
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004
(Expressed in Thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers - public
Cash received from customers - state
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments for employee salaries and benefits
Cash payments for claims expense
Cash payments from other sources
Cash payments to other sources
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on revenue bond maturities and equipment contracts
Interest paid on revenue bonds and equipment contracts
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
Net Cash Used for Capital and Related Financing Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of investment securities
Proceeds from the sale of investment securities
Interest and dividends on investments
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at July 1
Cash and Cash Equivalents at June 30

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Miscellaneous nonoperating income (expense)
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in assets:
Receivables, net
Interfund receivables
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Interfund payables
Claims liability
Compensated absences
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities
Change in fair value of investments
Contributions of capital assets
Capital assets acquired through leases
Total Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities

Fleet
Management

Computer
Services

23,681
(8.859)
(1,401)

140

1,176
52,157
(17,255)
(31,909)

@0

(16)

13,561

4,116

(7,374)

(7,374)

51
(353)

(369)

837

(302)

(3,453)
(729)
(95)

468

(4,277

3,370

6,076
(350)

3,370

5,726

10,025
364

5,263
1,094

$ 10,389

6,357

$ 2,486

9,110
388

@
293

(93)
1,373

$ 13,561

(414)

2,343

39
(205)

(8)
(317)

2,250
905

(510)
46
(13)

4,116

$ (107)
316

$ 209

(368)

221

(147
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Prison
Industries

Central
Printing

2,759
9,837
(5,799)
(4,198)

(849)

42
3,348
(1,371)
(2,098)

1,751

(79)

(1,587)

(1,587)

(89)
@

(1)
(6)

(91)

537
(12)

)

525

333
@

598
192

326

790

170
24

459

230

(188)
(182)
727

312
350

(43)
86

194

(375)

61

13
89
84

1,751

(12)

(12)

Property Risk
Management Management
697 160
26,382 29,798
(20,888) (4,084)
(10,613) (2,373)
(22,023)
562
(609)
(3,860) 869
5,983
(2,380) (642)
3,603 (642)
(2,409)
(2,409)
(23,107)
10,078
(382) 54
(23,489) 10,132
(26,155) 10,359
33,345 940
7,190 11,299
(11,753) 2,141
5,023
(74) 160
231 (45)
233
674 365
2,061 10
(1,963)
(22) (32)
(3,860) 869
(382) 3)
(382) (3)
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Totals

June 30, 2004

4,834
145,203
(58,256)
(52,592)
(22,060)
703
(1,474)
16,358

6,034
(12,336)
(6,302)

(6,320)
(802)
(101)

837

(6,386)

(23,107)
20,394

(697)

(3,410)
260
35,959
36,219

(7,456)

16,767
388

(52)
181
809
(84)

3,538
4,683
(1,963)

(601)
161
(13)

16,358

(871)
316
221

(334)



CAPITAL ASSETS
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BY SOURCE

JUNE 30, 2004
(Expressed In Thousands)

Governmental Funds Capital Assets
Land
Improvements other than buildings
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Other intangibles
Easements
Construction in progress
Infrastructure
Total Governmental Funds Capital Assets

Investments in Governmental Funds Capital Assets by Source

General Fund

Special Revenue Funds

Donations

Other

Capital Projects Fund:

State appropriations

Revenue bonds

Federal grants

Other

Infrastructure (A)

Capital assets acquired prior to July 1, 1984 (A)

Capital assets acquired after July 1, 1984 (A)
Total Governmental Funds Capital Assets

(1) Internal Service Funds are not included in this schedule. Internal Service Fund assets are included as governmental

activities in the Statement of Net Assets.
(A) Capital assets with an undetermined funding source.
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June 30, 2004

$ 97,182
6,259

719,966

379,825

2,841

41,242

2,346,012
15,127,436

§ 18720763

$ 122,871
2,009,364

89,033

5,578

52,124
441,381
102,162

17,645

15,127,436
673,086
80,083

§ 8720763



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULE BY FUNCTION

JUNE 30, 2004

(Expressed in Thousands)

Improvements Machinery
Other Than and

FUNCTION Land Buildings Buildings Equipment
General Government $ 10,747 $ 2,572 $ 121,350 $ 33,189
Legislative & Judicial 55 10,465
Commerce 48,378 1,659 38,470 19,001
Education & Humanities 1,674 118 39,924 32,878
Human Resources 1,856 321 72,658 17,285
Justice 3,762 1,589 289,973 74,071
Natural Resources and Environmental Protection 15,039 1,087 31,654
Public Protection and Regulation 6,174
Transportation 15,671 156,504 155,108
Total Governmental Funds Capital Assets $ 97,182 $ 6,259 $ 719,966 $ 379,825

(1) Internal Service Funds are not included in this schedule. Internal Service Fund assets are included as governmental
activities in the Statement of Net Assets.
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Software /
Other
Intangibles

2,841

Easements

2,841

24,008

9,213

8,021

Construction
in
Progress

41,242

49,416

514

427

3,833

206,785

465

2,084,572

2,346,012

Totals
June 30, 2004
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Infrastructure
$
15,127,436
$ 15,127,436

244,123

10,520

108,022

84,234

95,953

576,180

56,266

6,174

17,539,291

18,720,763




COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

(Expressed in Thousands)

General Government
Legislative & Judicial
Commerce

Education & Humanities
Human Resources
Justice

Natural Resources and

Environmental Protection

Public Protection and Regulation

Transportation

Total Governmental Funds Capital Assets

(1) Internal Service Funds are not included in this schedule.
activities in the Statement of Net Assets.

Balance Balance
June 30, 2003 Additions Deductions June 30, 2004
$ 224,808 $ 24,402 5,087 $ 244,123
10,542 378 400 10,520
94,698 15,175 1,851 108,022
81,972 4,982 2,720 84,234
83,175 14,253 1,475 95,953
496,203 108,591 28,614 576,180
52,690 5,283 1,707 56,266
6,444 245 515 6,174
16,968,140 1,295,275 724,124 17,539,291
$ 18,018,672 $ 1,468,584 766,493 $ 18,720,763

Internal Service Fund assets are included as governmental
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PENSION (AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT) TRUST FUNDS

Pension trust funds account for monies received for and expenses incurred by the various public
employeeretirement systems administered by the State. Kentucky usesthefollowing Pension Trust
Funds:

Kentucky EmployeesRetir ement System Fund accountsfor revenuesand expensesof the
retirement system, which covers substantially all regular full-time employees of any State
department, board or agency directed by Executive Order to participate in the System.

State Police Retirement System Fund accounts for the revenues and expenses of the
retirement system, which coverssubstantially all regular full-time officers of the Kentucky
State Police.

County Employees Retirement System Fund accountsfor the revenues and expenses of
theretirement systemthat coverssubstantially all regul ar full-timeempl oyeesof each county,
local school board, and additional local agencies el ecting to participate in the System.

Kentucky Teachers Retirement System Fund accountsfor therevenuesand expenses of
the retirement system, which covers substantially all persons occupying positions in the
publicelementary and secondary school sfor whichacertificateisrequired, faculty members
of five regiona universities, the Commissioner of Education and the professional staff
members of the Department of Education.

Judicial Form Retirement System Fund accounts for the revenues and expenses of the
retirement systemthat coversall District Judges, Judgesof the Court of Appeal s, and Judges
of the Supreme Court.

Legidlators Retirement System Fund accounts for the revenues and expenses of the
retirement system that covers all members of the General Assembly.

Deferred Compensation accountsfor the monieswithheld from employees, asan Internal

RevenueCode Section 401 or 457 deferred compensati on plan, by placingamountswiththird
party administrators and overseeing the investment activities of such monies.
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

PENSION (AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT) TRUST FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2004
(Expressed in Thousands)

Assets
Cash and short-term investments:
Cash
Short-term investments
Total Cash and Short-Term Investments

Receivables:
Investments - accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Accounts receivable
Total Receivables

Investments at fair value:
Corporate and government bonds
Common stocks
Mortgages
Mutual funds
Real estate
Total Investments at Fair Value

Invested security collateral
Capital assets, net
Prepaid expenses

Total Assets

Liabilities

Investments - accounts payable

Accounts payable

Obligations under securities lending
Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Net assets held in trust for:
Employee retirement benefit
Retiree's health insurance
Total Net Assets

Kentucky
Employees
Retirement

System

$

150

866
227,866
228,732

29,991
31,413
61,404

1,795,887
4,016,631
272,632

4,493
6,089,643

881,383
344

7,261,506

4,752
881,383
886,135

5,625,563
749,808
6,375,371

State Police
Retirement
System

91
10,133
10,224

1,969
1,317
3,286

116,451
278,998
16,860

493
412,802

61,294
6

487,612

177
61,294
61,471

335,721
90,420
426,141

County
Employees
Retirement

System

$ 1,078
235,770
236,848

32,175
47,850
80,025

1,920,733
4,226,992
316,200

4,912
6,468,837

938,812
579

7,725,101

6,328
938,812
945,140

5,918,347
861,614

3 GrmoeL



Kentucky

Teachers' Judicial Legislators' Deferred
Retirement Retirement Retirement Compensation Totals
System System System System June 30, 2004
$ 3,825 $ 1 $ $ 2,084 $ 7,945
1,002,301 632 627 1,477,329
1,006,126 633 627 2,084 1,485,274
113,272 113,272
1,246 290 65,671
52,354 187 2,459 135,580
165,626 1,433 290 2,459 314,523
4,324,326 73,519 17,663 8,248,579
7,215,138 179,450 46,250 15,963,459
52,662 658,354
1,048,460 1,048,460
365,389 375,287
11,957,515 252,969 63,913 1,048,460 26,294,139
683,199 2,564,688
3,451 4,380
208 208
13,816,125 255,035 64,830 1,053,003 30,663,212
54,403 54,403
1,771 13,028
683,199 2,564,688
739,373 2,632,119
13,076,752 255,035 64,830 1,053,003 26,329,251
1,701,842
$ 13,076,752 $ 255,035 $ 64,830 $ 1,053,003 $ 28,031,093
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
PENSION (AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT) TRUST FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

(Expressed in Thousands)

Kentucky State
Employees Police
Retirement Retirement
System System
Additions
Contributions:
Employer $ 124,442 9,609
Employee 140,625 4,875
Total Contributions 265,067 14,484
Investment income:
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments 652,130 46,101
Interest 155,167 10,257
Dividends
Real estate operating income, net
Securities lending income, net 13,272 886
Total Investment Income 820,569 57,244
Less: Investment expense 6,983 461
Less: Securities lending expense 10,381 692
Net Investment Income 803,205 56,091
Total Additions 1,068,272 70,575
Deductions
Benefit payments 539,756 35,869
Refunds 9,411 96
Administrative expenses 6,159 122
Other deductions, net
Total Deductions 555,326 36,087
Change in Net Assets 512,946 34,488
Net Assets Held in Trust
Net Assets at July 1, as Restated 5,862,425 391,653
Net Assets at June 30 $ 6,375,371 426,141
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County
Employees
Retirement

System

$ 208,050
161,152
369,202

675,015
166,108

14,094
855,217
7,490
11,013

836,714
1,205,916

405,419
13,854
9,951
429,224

776,692

6,003,269

$ 6,779,961



Kentucky
Teachers'
Retirement
System

$ 435,627
292,825
728,452

763,175
256,194
118,487
31,532
5,989
1,175,377

4,617
5,445
1,165,315
1,893,767

885,327
10,484
10,548

119,298

1,025,657

868,110

12,208,642

$ 13,076,752

Judicial
Retirement
System

2,661
1,788
4,449

19,675
4,208
1,941

25,824

211

25,613
30,062

10,175
8

174
784
11,141

18,921

236,114
255,035

Legislators'
Retirement
System

862
256
1,118

5,159
1,059
495

6,713

6,713
7,831

2,007
455
153
434

3,049

4,782

60,048
64,830

153

Deferred
Compensation
System

$ 3,037
117,514
120,551

104,307
12,959

117,266

117,266
237,817

82,376
1,907
4311

88,594

149,223

903,780

F__ Toss003

Totals

June 30, 2004

$ 784,288
719,035
1,503,323

2,265,562
605,952
120,923

31,532
34,241
3,058,210

19,762
27,531
3,010,917
4,514,240

1,960,929
34,308
29,014

124,827

2,149,078

2,365,162

25,665,931

503100



AGENCY FUNDS

Agency Funds account for monies held by the Commonwealth for custodial purposes only. Kentucky usesthe
following Agency Funds:

Commonwealth Choice accountsfor flexible benefits spending accounts.

County FeesFund accountsfor moniesheld by the Commonwealth for those countieswith apopul ation
greater than 70,000.

Special Deposit Trust Fund accountsfor moniesheld by the Commonwealth and are marked for specific
purposes such as employee withholdings.
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
AGENCY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2004

(Expressed in Thousands)

Commonwealth County Fees Special Deposit Totals
Choice Program Trust Fund Trust Fund June 30, 2004
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ $ 1,994 $ 221,191 $ 223,185
Cash with fiscal agents 5,974 5,974
Investments, net of amortization 57,722 57,722
Receivables, net 211 211
Interfund receivables 148 148
Total Assets $ 5,974 $ 1,994 $ 279,272 $ 287,240
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ $ $ 116,244 % 116,244
Interfund payables 4,063 4,063
Amounts held in custody for others 5,974 1,994 158,965 166,933
Total Liabilities $ 5,974 $ 1,994 $ 279,272 $ 287,240
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

(Expressed in Thousands)

Balances

June 30, 2003

COMMONWEALTH CHOICE PROGRAN

Assets
Cash with fiscal agents $ 4,992
Total assets $ 4,992
Liabilities
Amounts held in custody for others $ 4,992
Total liabilities $ 4,992
COUNTY FEES TRUST FUND
Assets
Cash & cash equivalents $ 181
Accounts Receivable 6,248
Total assets $ 6,429
Liabilities
Amounts held in custody for others $ 6,429
Total liabilities $ 6,429
SPECIAL DEPOSIT TRUST FUND
Assets
Cash & cash equivalents $ 95,308
Investments 157,452
Accounts receivable 501
Interfund receivables 93
Total assets $ 253,354
Liabilities
Interfund payables $ 9,149
Accounts payable 101,232
Amounts held in custody for others 142,973
Total liabilities $ 253,354
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
Assets
Cash & cash equivalents $ 95,489
Cash with fiscal agents 4,992
Investments 157,452
Accounts receivable 6,749
Interfund receivables 93
Total assets $ 264,775
Liabilities
Interfund payables $ 9,149
Accounts payable 101,232
Amounts held in custody for others 154,394
Total liabilities $ 264,775
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Additions

27,902
27,902

27,902
27,902

90,175

90,175

90,175
90,175

755,024
57,722
211

148

813,105

4,062
116,246
782,950

903,258

845,199
27,902
57,722

211
148

931,182

4,062
116,246
901,027

1,021,335

Deductions

26,920
26,920

26,920
26,920

88,362
6,248
94,610

94,610

94,610

629,141
157,452
501

93

787,187

9,148
101,234
766,958

877,340

717,503
26,920
157,452
6,749
93

908,717

9,148
101,234
888,488

998,870

Balances

June 30, 2004

5,974
5,974

5,974
5,974

1,994

1,994

1,994
1,994

221,191
57,722
211

148
279,272

4,063
116,244
158,965
279,272

223,185
5,974
57,722
211

148
287,240

4,063
116,244
166,933
287,240



NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS- COMBINING

157



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

JUNE 30, 2004

(Expressed in Thousands)

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Investments, net of amortization
Accounts receivable, net
Interest receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Other current assets

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash
Long-term investments, net
Long-term receivables
Deferred charges
Land
Improvements other than buildings
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Other capital assets
Less: Accumulated depreciation
and amortization
Construction in progress
Total Capital Assets
Other assets
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accruals
Current portion of long-term debt:
Notes payable
Bonds payable
Capital lease obligations
Compensated absences
Claims liability
Deferred revenues
Payable from restricted assets
Other current liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Notes payable
Bonds payable
Capital lease obligations
Compensated absences
Other long-term liabilities
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Debt service
Other purposes
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

$

Non-Major
Component
Units -

Authorities

183,444
4,331
63,776
33,425
3,517
632
1,230
7,627
297,982

7,546
252,339
425,831

410
15,858
380
285,877
63,537
16,082

(175,324)
25,092

231,502

5,478
923,106

~_ 1,221,088

6,027

238
17,105
2,004
1,995
7,911
6,177

1,002
42,459

103
221,586
55,123
785

277,597

320,056

218,725

578,676
103,631

901,032

158

$

Non-Major
Component
Units -

Universities

138,544
13,692
13,652
63,200

721
5,798
4,574
2,120

242,301

101,465
254,099
34,035

40,337
42,981
1,052,799
253,452

(688,009)
88,205
789,765
50,414

1,220,778
1,472,079

41,912

2,384
27,078
4,539
11,213
3,569
36,970
6,346
32,352
166,363

16,947
228,022
55,313
766
55,269
356,317
522,680

461,837

24,785
338,085
124,692
949,399

Totals
June 30,
2004

321,988
18,023
77,428
96,625

4,238
6,430
5,804
9,747

540,283

109,011
506,438
459,866
410
56,195
43,361
1,338,676
316,989
16,082

(863,333)
113,297
1,021,267
55,892
2,152,884
2,693,167

47,939

2,622
44,183
6,543
13,208
11,480
43,147
6,346
33,354
208,822

17,050
449,608
110,436

1,551

55,269
633,914
842,736

680,562

24,785
916,761
228,323

1,850,431



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004
(Expressed in Thousands)

Non-Major
Component
Units -
Authorities
Expenses:
Operating and other expenses $ 200,108
Depreciation 8,008
Total expenses 208,116
Program Revenues:
Charges for services 79,870
Operating grants and contributions 61,400
Capital grants and contributions 10,163
Total Program Revenues 151,433
Net Program (Expense) Revenue (56,683)
General Revenues:
Unrestricted grants and contributions 3,631
Unrestricted investment earnings 2,576
Gain on sale of capital assets 7
Miscellaneous general 180,234
Total General Revenues 186,448
Change in Net Assets 129,765
Net Assets at July 1, as Restated 771,267
Net Assets at June 30 $ 901,032
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$

Non-Major
Component
Units -

Universities

974,643

974,643

254,234
234,681

7,083
495,998

(478,645)

35,370
18,853
1,814
494,114
550,151

71,506

877,893
949,399

$

Totals
June 30,
2004

1,174,751
8,008

1,182,759

334,104
296,081

17,246
647,431

(535,328)

39,001
21,429
1,821
674,348
736,599

201,271

1,649,160

1,850,431
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NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS-AUTHORITIES

Kentucky River Authority - responsiblefor themaintenance of the Commonwealth’ slocksand damson theK entucky
River.

BluegrassStateSkillsCor por ation - established toimproveand promotetheempl oyment opportunitiesof thecitizens
of the Commonwealth by assi sting the Economic Development Cabinet in creating and expanding programs of skill,
training and education.

Kentucky State Fair Boar d - accounts for the revenues earned and expenses incurred in the commercial operations
of the State Fair Board.

Kentucky Center for the Arts Corporation - established by the General Assembly to promote the growth and
development of thearts, conventiontrade, tourism and hotel i ndustrieswithin Jefferson County and the Commonweal th.
The Center hasthe responsibility of maintaining, operating and insuring the Kentucky Center for the Arts building.

Kentucky Educational Television Authority - established by KRS 168.030 to produce and transmit educational
television programming to the citizens of the Commonweal th.

Kentucky Economic Development Finance Authority - established in 1958 under KRS Chapter 154 to promote
industrial devel opment, and authorizedtoissueindustrial revenuebondsthat do not constitutealegal or moral obligation
of the Commonwealth.

Kentucky Artisan Center - establishedto celebrate Kentucky’ sartisan heritageand encourage K entuckiansand those
traveling in Kentucky to enjoy artisan products and activities.

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority - established in 1988 by KRS 224A.030, and amended, to assume all powers,
duties and obligations of the Kentucky Pollution Abatement and Water Resources Finance Authority in assisting
governmental agencieswithin the Commonwealth in constructing and acquiring infrastructure projects.

Kentucky Agricultural Finance Cor poration - created by the 1984 General Assembly to“improveand promotethe
health, welfareand prosperity of the peopl eof the Commonweal ththrough stimul ation of existing agricultural ventures.”
This corporation helps banks and other financial institutions assist eligible farmers in receiving low interest loans
through the issuance of tax-exempt agricultural revenue bonds.

Kentucky Grain I nsurance Cor por ation - provides protection to grain producersin the event of thefailureof agrain
dealer or grain warehouseman.

Kentucky Local Correctional Facilities Construction Authority - created in 1982 pursuant to Sections 441.605
through 441.695 of theKRSto providean additional and alternative method for constructing, improving, repairing, and
financing regional and local jail facilities.

Kentucky Access - provides healthcare to Kentucky’ s qualifying applicants who are at high risk.
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS - AUTHORITIES
JUNE 30, 2004

(Expressed in Thousands)

Kentucky Bluegrass Kentucky
River State Skills State Fair
Authority Corporation Board
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,748 $ $ 7,675
Restricted cash 4,331
Investments, net of amortization
Accounts receivable, net 417 358 2,443
Interest receivable 62
Inventories
Prepaid expenses 620
Other current assets 2
Total Current Assets 7,560 358 10,738
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash 3,036
Long-term investments, net 46,527
Long-term receivables
Deferred charges
Land 441 14,073
Improvements other than buildings 83
Buildings 234,889
Machinery and equipment 439 4,152
Other capital assets 12,880
Less: Accumulated depreciation
and amortization (4,425) (104,998)
Construction in progress 25,092
Total Capital Assets 9,418 173,208
Other assets 1,144
Total Noncurrent Assets 9,418 223,915
Total Assets 16,978 358 234,653
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accruals 359 122 1,081
Current portion of long-term debt:
Notes payable
Bonds payable
Capital lease obligations 2,004
Compensated absences 25 35 956
Claims liability
Deferred revenues 4,412
Other current liabilities 2
Total Current Liabilities 386 157 8,453
Noncurrent liabilities:
Notes payable
Bonds payable
Capital lease obligations 55,123
Compensated absences 61 4
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 61 4 55,123
Total Liabilities 447 161 63,576
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 9,418 162,731
Restricted for:
Other purposes 4,365 3,803
Unrestricted 2,748 197 4,543
Total Net Assets $ 16,531 $ 197 $ 171,077
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Kentucky Kentucky
Center for Educational

the Arts Television
Corporation Authority

$ 636 $ 2,639

1,656

674 998

25 20

341

209 401

272

1,544 6,327

918

15,181 6,282

1

129 76

31,571 12,867

15,263 43,025

1,243

(28,624) (37,136)
18,339 20,075
4,334

37,854 27,276

39,398 33,603

444 1,037

238

153 820

246 380

843 2,475

103

673

776

843 3,251

18,339 19,734

2,978 7,188

17,238 3,430

$ 38,555 $ 30,352




Kentucky

Kentucky Local

Economic Kentucky Kentucky Correctional
Development Kentucky Kentucky Agricultural Grain Facilities Totals
Finance Artisan Infrastructure Finance Insurance Construction Kentucky June 30,
Authority Center Authority Corporation Corporation Authority Access 2004
$ 37,714 69 $ 85,035 $ 2,469 $ 3,203 $ 2,882 $ 38,374 $ 183,444
4,331
14,979 967 46,174 63,776
16 24,046 960 3,513 33,425
157 2,713 1 107 432 3,517
291 632
1,230
7,353 7,627
60,219 1,327 157,968 2,470 3,203 3,949 42,319 297,982
3,592 7,546
3,872 179,227 544 706 252,339
39,053 381,492 5,286 425,831
409 410
1,139 15,858
297 380
6,550 285,877
641 17 63,537
1,959 16,082
(141) (175,324)
25,092
8,486 1,976 231,502
5,478
42,925 8,486 562,695 544 706 9,287 923,106
103,144 9,813 720,663 3,014 3,909 13,236 42,319 1,221,088
55 2,102 261 566 6,027
238
15,075 2,030 17,105
2,004
6 1,995
7,911 7,911
1 1,138 6,177
1,000 1,002
62 18,177 2,291 9,615 42,459
103
194,924 26,662 221,586
55,123
47 785
47 194,924 26,662 277,597
109 213,101 28,953 9,615 320,056
8,486 17 218,725
20,093 507,545 32,704 578,676
83,051 1,218 3,014 3,909 (15,717) 103,631
$ 103,144 9,704  $ 507,562 $ 3,014 $ 3909 $ (15,717)  $ 32,704  $ 901,032
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS - AUTHORITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

(Expressed in Thousands)

Kentucky Kentucky
Kentucky Bluegrass Kentucky Center for Educational
River State Skills State Fair the Arts Television
Authority Corporation Board Corporation Authority
Expenses:
Operating and other expenses $ 1,858 $ 2,647 $ 35,286 $ 10,512 $ 27,136
Depreciation 6,306 1,702
Total expenses 1,858 2,647 41,592 12,214 27,136
Program Revenues:
Charges for services 1,385 35,083 4,382 1,331
Operating grants and contributions 1,497 9,822
Capital grants and contributions 23 605
Total Program Revenues 1,408 35,083 6,484 11,153
Net Program (Expense) Revenue (450) (2,647) (6,509) (5,730) (15,983)
General Revenues:
Unrestricted grants and contributions 3,300 331
Unrestricted investment earnings 18 45 1,987 136
Gain on sale of capital assets 7
Miscellaneous general 304 2,719 1,101 2,372 14,143
Total General Revenues 322 2,719 4,446 4,697 14,279
Change in Net Assets (128) 72 (2,063) (1,033) (1,704)
Net Assets at July 1, as Restated 16,659 125 173,140 39,588 32,056
Net Assets at June 30 $ 16,531 $ 197 $ 171,077 $ 38,555 $ 30,352
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Kentucky Kentucky Local
Economic Kentucky Kentucky Correctional
Development Kentucky Kentucky Agricultural Grain Facilities Totals
Finance Artisan Infrastructure Finance Insurance Construction Kentucky June 30,
Authority Center Authority Corporation Corporation Authority Access 2004
$ 30,513 1,539 $ 60,262 $ $ 73 $ 3,203 27,079 200,108
8,008
30,513 1,539 60,262 73 3,203 27,079 208,116
1,569 934 12,908 3,000 28 5,811 13,439 79,870
1,215 22,944 6 25,916 61,400
9,535 10,163
1,569 11,684 35,852 3,000 28 5,817 39,355 151,433
(28,944) 10,145 (24,410) 3,000 (45) 2,614 12,276 (56,683)
3,631
112 14 (35) 299 2,576
7
34,207 (441) 125,829 180,234
34,319 (441) 125,829 14 (35) 299 186,448
5,375 9,704 101,419 3,014 (80) 2,614 12,575 129,765
97,769 406,143 3,989 (18,331) 20,129 771,267
$ 103,144 9,704 $ 507,562 $ 3,014 $ 3,909 $ (15,717) 32,704 901,032
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
COMPONENT UNITS-AUTHORITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004
(Expressed in Thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers - public
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments for employee salaries and benefits
Cash payments from other sources
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of investment securities
Proceeds from the sale of investment securities
Interest and dividends on investments
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at July 1
Cash and Cash Equivalents at June 30

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Miscellaneous nonoperating income (expense)
Change in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) Decrease in assets:
Receivables, net
Prepaid Expenses
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Compensated absences
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities
Change in fair value of investments
Total Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities

Major Non-major
Kentucky
School Kentucky Kentucky
Facilities Agricultural Grain
Construction Finance Insurance Totals
Commission Corporation Corporation June 30, 2004
$ 107,610 3,000 $ 119 $ 110,729
(112,618) (112,618)
(210) (73) (283)
5,315 5,315
97 3,000 46 3,143
(544) (544)
9,315 2,941 12,256
23 13 (18) 18
9,338 (531) 2,923 11,730
9,435 2,469 2,969 14,873
865 234 1,099
$ 10,300 2,469 $ 3,203 $ 15,972
$ (67,934) 3,000 $ 45 $ (64,979)
65,694 65,694
91 91
(1,132) (1,132)
3,466 3,466
3 3
$ 97 3,000 $ 46 $ 3,143
$ 300 2 $ 2 $ 300
$ 300 2 $ 2 $ 300
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NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS-UNIVERSITIES

Universities, Collegesand Related Entities

The University and College Funds account for all transactions relating to the State supported
universitiesand thecommunity collegesand technical schools. Theseinstitutionsmaintaintheir own
financia records and are not part of the central accounting system operated by the Finance and
Administration Cabinet. The non-major component units-universitiesare:

Eastern Kentucky University
Western Kentucky University
Morehead State University
Murray State University
Northern Kentucky University
Kentucky State University

Kentucky Council on Postsecondary Education — established in 1997 by the Postsecondary
Education | mprovement Act to coordinatechangesandimprovementswithin K entucky’ spostsecondary

educationsystem.
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS - UNIVERSITIES, COLLEGES AND RELATED ENTITIES

JUNE 30, 2004
(Expressed in Thousands)

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Investments, net of amortization
Accounts receivable, net
Interest receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Other current assets

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash
Long-term investments, net
Long-term receivables
Land
Improvements other than buildings
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Less: Accumulated depreciation
and amortization
Construction in progress
Total Capital Assets
Other assets
Total Noncurrent Assets, Net
Total Assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accruals
Current portion of long-term debt:
Notes payable
Bonds payable
Capital lease obligations
Compensated absences
Claims liability
Deferred revenues
Payable from restricted assets
Other current liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Notes payable
Bonds payable
Capital lease obligations
Compensated absences
Other long-term liabilities
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted for:
Debt service
Other purposes

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Eastern Western Morehead
Kentucky Kentucky State
University University University

31,948 39,682 13,164
323
5,661 1,699 1,013
16,981 9,601 5,300
191 310 7
493 1,383 1,630
752 949
746 383
56,026 54,370 21,820
25,735 30,996
42,643 70,991 43,318
6,268 15,708 5,426
6,414 6,527 12,047
12,725 11,315
209,032 245,629 155,942
44,066 60,409 50,287
(149,019) (120,524) (111,179)
9,412 24,325 9,552
132,630 227,681 116,649
33,187 6,386 86
240,463 351,762 165,479
296,489 406,132 187,299
8,754 5,294 6,130
232 110
5,655 4,814 7,220
1,080 619 427
2,736 2,061
1,632 784
9,806 13,912 1,707
1,257
9,442 7,780 767
39,105 36,753 16,361
1,919 350
43,060 96,984 28,305
23,386 1,610 1,463
38 44,447 5,019
66,484 144,960 35,137
105,589 181,713 51,498
90,942 91,834 78,775
8,162 5,069
62,501 96,217 40,284
29,295 31,299 16,742
190,900 224,419 135,801
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Murray Northern Kentucky Kentucky Council
State Kentucky State on Postsecondary Totals
University University University Education June 30, 2004
20,436 30,093 3,141 80 138,544
8,229 225 4,915 13,692
5,279 13,652
4,779 8,391 2,555 15,593 63,200
115 97 1 721
2,021 219 52 5,798
715 1,182 5 971 4,574
779 54 9 149 2,120
28,845 48,265 11,266 21,709 242,301
23,028 15,915 5,791 101,465
52,599 35,153 7,970 1,425 254,099
3,881 2,102 497 153 34,035
8,060 6,034 1,255 40,337
8,813 7,000 3,128 42,981
159,991 187,027 95,178 1,052,799
44,483 43,089 10,549 569 253,452
(123,886) (99,064) (84,027) (310) (688,009)
22,565 5,821 16,530 88,205
120,026 149,907 42,613 259 789,765
2,937 546 7,272 50,414
202,471 203,623 58,352 7,628 1,229,778
231,316 251,888 69,618 29,337 1,472,079
7,750 7,198 1,965 4,821 41,912
1,926 116 2,384
2,314 4,965 2,110 27,078
181 2,232 4,539
3,368 1,571 957 520 11,213
1,153 3,569
4,750 4,497 2,298 36,970
5,089 6,346
1,038 460 623 12,242 32,352
22,480 26,128 7,953 17,583 166,363
12,456 2,222 16,947
15,573 36,940 7,160 228,022
1,643 27,211 55,313
492 274 766
383 4,714 668 55,269
30,055 71,087 8,320 274 356,317
52,535 97,215 16,273 17,857 522,680
88,932 70,480 40,615 259 461,837
4,021 7,533 24,785
61,953 55,250 12,326 9,554 338,085
23,875 21,410 404 1,667 124,692
178,781 154,673 53,345 11,480 949,399
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS - UNIVERSITIES, COLLEGES AND RELATED ENTITIES

JUNE 30, 2004

(Expressed in Thousands)

Eastern Western Morehead
Kentucky Kentucky State
University University University

Expenses:

Operating and other expenses 189,592 204,633 110,104

Total Expenses 189,592 204,633 110,104

Program Revenues:

Charges for services 3,560 90,372 33,912

Operating grants and contributions 76,361 28,054 33,627

Capital grants and contributions 5,188

Total Program Revenues 85,109 118,426 67,539

Net Program (Expense) Revenue (104,483) (86,207) (42,565)
General Revenues:

Unrestricted grants and contributions 28,097

Unrestricted investment earnings 1,526 9,875 2,028

Gain on sale of capital assets 1,858 122 (1,585)

Miscellaneous general 113,591 85,875 45,564

Total General Revenues 116,975 123,969 46,007
Change in Net Assets 12,492 37,762 3,442
Net Assets at July 1, as Restated 178,408 186,657 132,359
Net Assets at June 30 190,900 224,419 135,801
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Murray Northern
State Kentucky
University University
126,946 122,338
126,946 122,338
51,465 62,018
24,373 24,415
200
75,838 86,633
(51,108) (35,705)
5,625 223
4,738 373
1,419
60,837 45,916
72,619 46,512
21,511 10,807
157,270 143,866
178,781 154,673

Kentucky KY Council
State Postsecondary Totals
University Education June 30, 2004
55,467 165,563 974,643
55,467 165,563 974,643
11,832 1,075 254,234
15,932 31,919 234,681
1,230 465 7,083
28,994 33,459 495,998
(26,473) (132,104) (478,645)
1,425 35,370
419 (106) 18,853
1,814
24,039 118,292 494,114
25,883 118,186 550,151
(590) (13,918) 71,506
53,935 25,398 877,893
53,345 11,480 949,399
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STATISTICAL SECTION

The Statistical Sectiongivesreport usersabetter historical perspectiveof financial informationthat may
assist in assessing current financial status and trends of the Commonwealth. In addition, certain
demographic and economic data have been presented that will allow a broader understanding of the
economic and social environment in which the State Government operates.
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
REVENUES BY SOURCE

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Expressed in Thousands)

SOURCE 1995 1996 1997 1998
Taxes:
Sales & gross receipts $ 2,739,653 $ 2,873,176 $ 3,018,770 $ 3,167,442
Individual income 1,964,960 2,080,418 2,201,574 2,390,823
Corporation income 340,913 289,508 291,536 338,354
Property 386,389 409,175 440,973 405,528
License & privilege 137,578 130,778 145,178 162,122
Severance 177,826 185,019 185,744 187,126
Inheritance & estate 79,531 82,673 93,962 105,550
Miscellaneous 117,077 104,819 109,451 114,903
Total Taxes 5,943,927 6,155,566 6,487,188 6,871,848
Intergovernmental revenue 3,307,139 3,394,888 3,625,241 3,809,686
Charges for services 222,309 277,165 262,366 289,555
Licenses, fees & permits 160,975 163,331 164,557 170,454
Fines & forfeitures 40,720 40,485 48,538 47,265
Interest & investments 112,124 148,908 155,878 191,986
Other income 133,506 133,524 193,206 218,883
Total Non-Tax Income 3,976,773 4,158,301 4,449,786 4,727,829
Total Revenues $ 9,920,700 $ 10,313,867 $ 10,936,974 $ 11,599,677
NOTE: Governmental Fund Types include the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Capital Projects Fund

and the Debt Service Fund.

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Expressed in Thousands)

FUNCTIONS 1995 1996 1997 1998
General government $ 418,256 $ 494,599 $ 593,500 $ 652,980
Legislative & judicial 132,421 147,563 150,604 165,645
Commerce 42,430 42,704 44,408 45,953
Education & humanities 2,835,220 2,962,449 3,076,843 3,187,712
Human resources 3,818,430 3,819,907 4,208,762 4,253,354
Justice 255,424 282,999 340,100 402,149
Natural resources and
environmental protection 110,509 96,094 103,356 112,923
Public protection and
regulation 86,411 94,124 105,763 115,479
Transportation 980,083 1,061,589 1,092,563 1,135,102
Securities lending expense
Capital outlay 82,040 79,245 99,702 135,106
Debt service 416,756 392,130 332,127 438,029
Total Expenditures $ 9,177,980 $ 9,473,403 $ 10,147,728 $ 10,644,432
SOURCE: Commonwealth of Kentucky Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
NOTE: Governmental Fund Types include the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Capital Projects Fund

and the Debt Service Fund.
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1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

$ 3,255,990 $ 3,546,343 $ 3,609,499 $ 3,699,098 $ 3,653,169 $ 3,766,057

2,538,948 2,701,349 2,768,302 2,681,443 2,763,769 2,785,161

312,579 307,939 288,418 211,382 283,436 311,741

424,471 440,438 457,216 480,890 492,507 516,106

170,480 139,922 146,422 120,902 166,222 140,987

173,094 169,154 177,774 187,588 177,868 195,782

79,168 76,751 83,267 89,753 96,784 65,977

120,765 3,390 3,203 3,653 143,857 151,387

7,075,495 7,385,286 7,534,101 7,474,709 7,777,612 7,933,198

3,825,985 4,602,881 4,208,631 4,821,756 5,093,078 5,150,705

298,952 359,782 426,173 506,924 548,226 616,638

188,304 203,608 200,239 308,209 252,123 265,699

53,024 49,986 54,297 54,169 73,691 95,745

140,328 163,893 232,100 201,933 149,146 50,971

185,881 230,325 616,361 406,869 506,272 625,008

4,692,474 5,610,475 5,737,801 6,299,860 6,622,536 6,804,766

$ 11,767,969 $ 12,995,761 $ 13,271,902 $ 13,774,569 $ 14,400,148 $ 14,737,964
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

$ 556,913 $ 541,008 $ 672,605 $ 2,036,798 $ 1,889,243 $ 1,933,909

186,168 212,978 216,608 239,515 246,838 265,847

49,927 52,941 51,283 58,741 62,486 65,518

3,250,456 3,351,422 3,442,741 3,584,412 3,752,918 3,823,798

4,368,927 5,109,752 5,110,365 5,563,087 5,650,039 5,984,514

451,532 511,106 553,499 564,427 575,237 563,890

120,938 125,724 127,048 143,924 135,349 149,401

130,245 131,350 124,725 120,764 139,299 112,587

1,356,322 1,502,356 1,588,052 1,724,061 1,695,652 1,724,342

13,123

266,165 225,409 309,011 483,145 244,419 293,761

357,698 302,708 410,058 337,546 460,256 545,642

$ 11,095,291 $ 12,066,754 $ 12,605,995 $ 14,856,420 $ 14,851,736 $ 15,476,332
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

DESCRIPTION OF TAX SOURCES ALL GOVERNMENTAL
FUND TYPES

JUNE 30, 2004

SALESAND USE - OnJuly 1, 1960, Kentucky became the 34" state
toenact asalesand usetax. Althoughthetax wasbroad based at thetime
of itsinception, the salesand usetax hasbeen significantly eroded over
the years with the passage of numerous exemptions. This has been
partially offset with rateincreasesin 1968 (3%to0 5%) and 1990 (5%to
6%0), and expansion of thetax basein 1985 to cover leasesand rentals
of tangible persona property. Effective January 1, 2001, the salestax
base expanded to includeinterstate communications services. During
fiscal year 2004, thesalesand usetax continued to bethesecond largest
generator of General Fund revenuefor the Commonwesl th.

COAL SEVERANCE -Kentucky’ scod severancetax becameeffective
April 1, 1972, and was intended to replace a mgor portion of the
revenueexpectedtobel ost by theexemptionof groceriesfromthesales
tax. Itwasthefirst major severancetax amongthestates. Theinitial rate
of 4% onthegrossvalueof coal mined in Kentucky or thirty cents per
ton, whichever isgrester, wasraised to 4.5% of thegrossvalueof coal
mined or fifty centsper ton, whichever isgreater, in 1976. 1n1978, the
statuteswererevised toincludethetaxation of coal processing and add
adeductionfromthegrossvaluefor thecost of transportation. A 1986
amendment providedthat coal producingand coal impact countieswere
toreceiveaminimumof 10%of coal severanceand processingtaxesfor
FY 1986-87 and 12% for subsequent years. The percentage has
increased over theyearsto alevel of approximately 40%for FY 2001-
02. The2000session of theGeneral Assembly producedlegidationthat
allowed for atax credit of 2.25% to 3.75% of the gross value of coal
produced from thin seams of coal from newly permitted production.

MOTOR FUEL S- 1n 1920, Kentucky becamethefifth stateto adopt
agasolinetax. Theinitial rateof onecent per gallonreached fivecents
per gallonby 1926. EffectiveApril 1,1948, thetax per gallonwasraised
to seven cents, with two-seventh of the total set aside for rural and
secondary roads. In 1952, thetax wasexpanded toincludespecia fuels
whichweretobetaxed at thesamerateasgasoline. OnJuly 1,1972, the
tax rateincreased to nine cents per gallon. Effective July 1, 1980, the
ratewaschangedto 9% of thewei ghted averagewhol esal etank wagon
pricefor saleinKentucky. Inno caseshall theaveragewholesaleprice
be deemed to be less than one dollar and eleven cents per gallon, nor
morethan onedollar andfifty centsper gallon. OnJuly 1, 1986, thetax
on gasolineand L P gaswasincreased five cents per gallon and the tax
on special fuelswas increased two cents per gallon.The current total
motor fuels tax rates are $.15 per galon on gasoline and liquefied
petroleum gas and $.12 per gallon on specia fuels.

MOTORVEHICLEUSAGE TAX - Motor vehicleswereoriginally
taxed under the 3 percent grossreceiptstax that wasrepealed in 1936.
Afterrepeal, aspecial 3 percenttax onmotor vehicleswasenacted. This
tax is based on the “retail price” of the motor vehicles as defined by
statute. The tax was increased to 5 percent on April, 1968 and to 6
percent on July 1, 1990. Thetax is paid to the county clerk when a
vehicleisfirst registered in the owner’ sname. The proceeds derived
from thetax are deposited to the Road Fund for usein the construction
and maintenance of Kentucky’ sroadsand bridges.

MOTOR VEHICLE REGISTRATION - The 1936 Genera
Assembly fixed aflat $4.50 registration fee (plus $.50 for the County
Clerk) for passenger cars. Similar feeswere enactedin 1938 for farm
trucks and in 1944 for church buses, water well drillers, and certain
wreckers. Truck licenseswere changed to agraduated “ grossweight”
basisin 1964. Thecurrent $11.50 feefor passenger cars, farm trucks,
and the lightest trucks was passed in 1968. Effective January 1, 1993
there was an additional $.50 added to cover the cost of reflectorizing
plates (KRS 186.240(2) (c)). In 1973, al motor vehicle registration
functions were transferred from the Department of Revenue to the
Department of Transportation. The apportioned registration of
commercid vehicles began April 1, 1974. Current rates for heavier
trucksrangefrom$24(6,001-10,0001bs.) to$1,250.50(73,281-80,000
Ibs.) with extended weight tags available for cod haulers.

INDIVIDUAL INCOME TAX - Theindividua incometax became
effectiveforincomeearned during calendar year 1936 and produced
itsfirst revenueduring fiscal year 1936-37. Theinitial ratesranged
from 2% on the first $3,000 of incometo 5% on all over $5,000. In
1950, arate of 6% wasimposed onincomein excess of $8,000. In
1954, K entucky becamethefourth statetoimplement awithhol ding
system and also adopted the federal definition of net income.

Currently, netincomeiscomputed usingthelnternal Revenue Code
in effect on December 31, 2001 for tax years beginning after
December 31, 2001, modified for Kentucky differences between
federal and Kentucky tax laws. Primary differencesincludethetax
treatment of pensionincome(excludableupto $39,400in2003) and
interest on federal obligations.

Changes to the federal income tax law made after the Internal
Revenue Codereferencedate of December 31, 2001 do not apply to
Kentucky taxpayers unless adopted by the Kentucky General
Assembly. TheGeneral Assembly hasnot adopted the provisionsof
the Job Creation and Worker Assistance Act of 2002 and the Jobs
and Growth and Tax Relief Reconciliation Act of 2003.

Theratesappliedto netincomewhichremainunchanged since 1950
are: 2% of thefirst $3,000; 3% of the next $1,000; 4% of the next
$1,000; 5% of the next $3,000; and 6% of the excess over $8,000.
Thepersonal tax credit of $20went into effectin 1961 and astandard
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

deduction of $650wasadoptedin 1976. The 1996 General Assembly
increased the standard deduction over a period of four years to
$1,700for 2000. The standard deduction isindexed annually based
onchangesintheCPIU andiscurrently set at $1,830for 2003. A low
income tax credit of 5% to 100% for single persons or married
coupleswith adjusted grossincome of $25,000 or |esswas enacted
in 1990. A child and dependent care credit equal to 20% of the
Federal credit isalso allowed.

CORPORATION INCOME TAX - The corporate income tax was
enacted tofirst apply to calendar year 1936 income. Theratewas4%
of net income assigned to Kentucky after deduction of federal income
taxes. Thisratewaschangedto4.5%in1950andagainto5%of thefirst
$25,000 of taxableincomeand 7% of all in excessthereof in 1956. In
1972, thefederd tax deductionwasremoved and the stateratereduced
t04% of thefirst $25,000 and 5.8% ontheexcess. Tax ratesbeginning
onJanuary 1, 1980, were: first $25,000at 3%; next $25,000 at 4%; next
$50,000 at 5%; and theexcessover $100,000 at 6%. The 1985 Specid
Session of the General Assembly passed theK entucky Equity Tax Act
(KETA)intolaw. KETA mandatedaStatedepreciationsystem separate
fromthefederal system. Thisnew Kentucky systemallowed corporate
taxpayers to recover the entire cost of property through depreciation
compared to recovery of 71% of cost using the Accelerated Cost
Recovery System (ACRS) asadjusted for under prior Kentucky Law.
KETA & so added anew graduated rate of 7.25% of taxableincomein
excess of $250,000 of taxable income effective August 1, 1985.

The 1990 Generd Assembly replaced the Kentucky depreciation
system with the depreciation and expense deductions alowed by
Sections 168 and 179 of the Internal Revenue Code in effect on
December 31, 1989, effective for property placed in service after
December 31, 1989. Thetax rates beginning on January 1, 1990 are:
first $25,000 at 4%; next $25,000 at 5%; next $50,000 at 6%; next
$150,000 at 7%; and al over $250,000 at 8.25%.

The1994 General Assembly amended KRS141.0101 tomakeK entucky
depreciation rules consistent with federal depreciation rules for all
assets, regardlessof when placedinservice, effectivefor taxableyears,
beginning after December 31, 1993. To account for this change in
depreciation rules, each taxpayer must determine the amount of any
difference in Kentucky adjusted basis and federal adjusted basis
(transitionamount) asof thefirst day of thefirst taxableyear beginning
after December 31, 1993. Thetransition amount must be added to or
subtracted from grossincomein thefirst taxable year beginning after
December 31,1993, if theamount doesnot exceed $100,000 or inequal
amounts over 4 yearsif the amount exceeds $100,000 or the taxpayer
soelects.

The 2000 Genera Assembly amended KRS 141.200 to prohibit
affiliated corporations from filing combined Kentucky income tax
returnsusingtheunitary businessconcept. Affiliated corporationsmay

elect to file consolidated Kentucky income tax returns, with such
election being binding for 96 consecutive calendar months.

Effectivefortax yearsbeginningonor after January 1,2002, netincome
iscomputed usingthel nternal RevenueCodeineffect onDecember 31,
2001.

Changestothefederal incometax law made after thelnternal Revenue
Code reference date of December 31, 2001 do not apply to Kentucky
taxpayers unless adopted by the Kentucky General Assembly. The
Generd Assembly has not adopted the 30 percent federal bonus
depreciation, five-year net operatinglosscarryback andother provisions
of the Job Creation and Worker Assistance Act of 2002. Also, the
Generd Assembly has not adopted the 50 percent federal bonus
depreciation and increase in the Section 179 election to expense
deduction and other provisions of the Jobs and Growth Tax Relief
Reconciliation Act of 2003.

PROPERTY TAX - Kentucky has levied a property tax since the
creation of the statein 1792. Prior to 1934, the property tax was the
State’ smajor revenuesource. Inthat year, an attempt toremovethetax
onresal estatewasruled uncongtitutiona . Thetax ratewasthenreduced
from 30 centsto 5 cents per $100 assessed value. The 1965 Specid
Session of the Generd Assembly further reducedtherateonrea estate
from five centsto 1.5 cents and on tangible property from 50 centsto
15cents. HouseBiIll 4, passedinthe 1976 regul ar session of theGenera
Assembly, established the power equalization program for school
funding and raised the Statetax rate on real property from 1.5 centsto
31.5 cents per $100 of assessed value and the tax rate on tangible
personal property from 15 centsto 45 centsper $100 of assessed value.
ThisincreaseintheStateproperty tax ratewasaccompanied by 30 cents
per $100 of assessed val ue decreasein local school tax rates. Thetax
rateonintangiblepersonal property, whichisnot subjecttolocal rates,
remained at 25 cents per $100. House Bill 44, enacted by the 1979
extraordinary legidative session, established a new rate setting
mechanism which limited the increase in aggregate revenues for al
taxing districtsingeneral, and specificaly limited the Stateratefor real
estateto no greater than necessary to providea4% increasein revenue
from year to year. Asaresult, the State tax rate on real property has
dropped 58% from 31.5 cents per $100in 1978 to 13.1 cents per $100
in 2004.

The 1996 General Assembly repealed thebank sharesproperty tax and
enacted abank franchisetax for statetax purposesand alocal deposits
franchisetax for local tax purposes. A discussion of thebank franchise
tax follows.
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INHERITANCEANDESTATE TAX —Inheritance Tax isatax on
theright toreceiveproperty uponthedeath of theowner. Thetax rates
and exemptionsare based on therel ationship of the beneficiary tothe
decedent. The Kentucky inheritancetax beganin 1906 and taxed all
beneficiaries other than nearest relatives. Beneficiaries taxed were
given a$500 exemption. Many changes have been enacted over the
yearstotheinheritancetax, however, the K entucky estatetax that was
enacted in 1936, has not been changed. The Kentucky estate tax is
equal to theamount that the state death tax credit allowable under the
federd estate tax law exceedsthetotal inheritancetax paid.

A major change was made in 1985 to the Kentucky inheritance tax
when asurviving spousewas given an exemption of thetotal amount
inherited. Effective for dates of death on or after July 1, 1995, the
inheritance tax for parents, children (natural, step, or adopted),
grandchildren, brothers(half or whol€) and sisters(half or whole) was
phased out over afour year period. The exemption during the phase-
out period wasthe greater of the exemption permitted under the pre-
July 1, 1995 law or a percentage of the inheritable interest. The
inheritancetax for these beneficiarieswas completely phased-out for
deathsthat occurred after June 30, 1998. If theentire estate passesto
exempt beneficiaries there may not be any Kentucky inheritance tax
due, but there could be Kentucky estate tax due if the estateislarge
enoughtorequirethat aFederal Estate Tax Return befiled and astate
deathtax creditisallowed. Duetotherepeal of thefederd statedesth
tax credit, the Kentucky estate tax will not apply to deaths occurring
after December 31, 2004.

Other beneficiaries such asnieces, nephews, daughters-in-law, sons-
in-law, great-grandchildren, cousinsand rel ativeswerenot affected by
the1995 phase-out of theinheritancetax. All transferstoeducational,
religious or other ingtitutions whose sole purpose are to carry on
charitable, educational , or religiouswork areexempt fromtheK entucky
inheritancetax.

PROVIDER TAX - HouseBill 250, enacted duringthe 1994 Regul ar
Sessionof theGeneral Assembly, continuedtheK entucky HealthCare
Provider Tax. Thebill, whichwaseffective July 15, 1994, imposed a
2.5% tax on gross revenues received by al providers of hospital
services, a 2% tax on gross revenues received by other providers of
specified health careitemsor services, and a25 cent tax per outpatient
prescriptiondrug di spensed by pharmaciesor other personsdispensing
outpatient prescription drugs (KRS Chapter 142). Thepurposeof the
Health Care Provider Tax is to help fund Kentucky's $2 billion
Medicaid program. The Medicaid program is ajoint federa state
medical assistance program that is operated and administered by the
state. Approximately 25% of thefundingfor theprogramisprovided
by the state with the remaining 75% being funded by the federa
government.

KRS Chapter 142 was amended in 1996 to phase out the health care
provider tax on physician services. Therateis 1% for the period July
1,1997,through June30, 1998; and 0.5%for July 1, 1998, through June
30, 1999. Thetax on physician services has been entirely removed as
of July 1, 1999.

KRS Chapter 142 was amended in 1998 to phase out the tax on
outpatient prescriptiondrugs. Thetax on outpatient prescription drugs
will bereduced from 25 centsto 15 centsper prescriptionfor theperiod
July 1, 1999, through June 20, 2000. EffectiveJuly 1, 2000, thetax on
outpatient prescription drugs expired.

BANK FRANCHI SE TAX - HouseBill 416 asenacted by the 1996
Generd Assembly created the bank franchisetax. Thetax isimposed
on any financial institution which obtainsor solicitsbusinessfrom 20
or more personswithinthe Commonweal th or hasrecei ptsattributable
tosourcesintheCommonweal thwhichequal or exceed $100,000. The
bank franchi setax isbased onafive-year averageof net capital accounts
reflected on the quarterly reportsof conditionfiled with theapplicable
federa regulatory institution. The minimum tax is $300 per year.
Because HB 416 is effective for the calendar year 1996, the first tax
returns and payments were due on March 15, 1997.

Effective for tax years beginning after December 31, 1997, KRS
136.500wasamendedin 1998todefinetheterm*” Kentucky obligations’
tomeanall abligationsof theCommonwealthof Kentucky, itscounties,
municipalities, taxing districts, and school districts, exempt from
taxation under the Kentucky Revised Statutes and the Kentucky
Congtitution. The amendment allows as a deduction from capital an
amount equal to the same percentage of total capital asthebook value
of Kentucky obligationsbearstothebook val ueof thetotal assetsof the
financia ingtitution. Additionally, thequarterly averagesof net capital
and deductions for United States and Kentucky obligations will be
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
FOR CALENDAR YEARS 1994-2003

(Expressed in Thousands, Except Ratio Data)

Ratio of Total

Assessed
Real Property Personal Property Totals to Total
For the Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated
Year Ended Assessed Actual Assessed Actual Assessed Actual Actual
December 31 Value Value Value Value Value Value Value
1994 $ 89,570,464 95,287,728 153,225,083 153,225,083 242,795,547 248,512,811 97.7%
1995 94,579,246 100,616,219 161,791,401 161,791,401 256,370,647 262,407,620 97.7%
1996 101,534,494 108,015,419 152,832,983 152,832,983 254,367,477 260,848,402 97.5%
1997 109,108,366 116,072,730 126,697,051 126,697,051 235,805,417 242,769,781 97.1%
1998 116,105,606 123,516,602 135,870,575 135,870,575 251,976,181 259,387,177 97.1%
1999 124,798,246 132,764,091 138,392,876 138,392,876 263,191,122 271,156,967 97.1%
2000 134,604,823 143,196,620 141,579,703 141,579,703 276,184,525 284,776,323 97.0%
2001 144,947,137 154,199,082 148,966,508 148,966,508 293,913,645 303,165,590 96.9%
2002 153,558,852 163,360,481 178,290,246 178,290,246 331,849,099 341,650,727 97.1%
2003 162,167,033 172,518,120 188,846,577 188,846,577 351,013,610 361,364,697 97.1%
SOURCE: Kentucky Revenue Cabinet
NOTE: Assessed values are established through the utilization of an annual ad valorem tax based on the fair value of property.
COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
FOR FISCAL YEARS 1994-2003
(Expressed in Thousands, Except Percentages)
Percent of Total
For the Year Total Current Tax Percent of Levy Delinquent Tax Total Tax Tax Collections
Ended June 30 Collections Collected Collections Collections to Tax Levy
1994 392,652 357,996 91.2% 12,204 370,200 94.3%
1995 417,799 377,710 90.4% 17,615 395,325 94.6%
1996 424,505 391,977 92.3% 17,200 409,177 96.4%
1997 410,755 399,759 97.3% 15,099 414,858 101.0%
1998 365,014 349,774 95.8% 13,019 362,793 99.4%
1999 377,835 358,478 94.9% 11,927 370,405 98.0%
2000 402,428 371,715 92.4% 15,543 387,258 96.2%
2001 416,490 386,890 92.9% 20,605 407,495 97.8%
2002 429,425 407,380 94.9% 25,650 433,030 100.8%
2003 450,348 414,399 92.0% 20,369 434,768 96.5%
SOURCE: Kentucky Revenue Cabinet
NOTE: Property taxes are assessed as of January 1 of each year in one of two ways: 1) by the 120 Property Valuation

Administrators within the State, or 2) by the Revenue Cabinet. The tax rates are set by the various taxing jurisdictions
and applied to the particular assessment. Tax bills are delivered by September 15 of each year. Also, the "Total Tax Levy" in
this table has been re-specified for the years shown to adjust for the fact that the receipts for motor vehicles involve two

different assessment years.
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

RATIO OF GENERAL LONG-TERM BONDED DEBT
TO ASSESSED VALUE AND DEBT PER CAPITA
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Expressed in Thousands, Except Ratio and Per Capita Debt,

General Bonded Debt

For the Year Estimated Assessed General Long-Term Ratio to
Ended June 30 Population Value Bonded Debt Assessed Value Per Capita
1995 3,887 $ 256,370,647 $ 3,133,332 1.2% 806
1996 3,920 254,367,477 3,134,342 1.2% 800
1997 3,953 235,805,417 3,133,332 1.3% 793
1998 3,985 251,976,181 2,833,433 1.1% 711
1999 4,018 263,191,122 2,178,683 0.8% 542
2000 4,049 276,184,525 2,315,533 0.8% 572
2001 4,069 293,913,645 2,944,839 1.0% 724
2002 4,093 331,849,099 3,405,046 1.0% 832
2003 4,118 351,013,610 3,165,223 0.9% 769
2004 4,143 Projected 361,895,032 Estimated 3,225,432 0.9% 779
SOURCE: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census.
NOTE: General long-term bonded debt includes adjustments to eliminate bonds accounted for by Proprietary Funds and

State Universities and adjustments for updated amortization schedules, bonds redeemed prior to scheduled
maturity, and adjustments of maturity.

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE FOR GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO
TOTAL EXPENDITURES FOR GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNCTIONS
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Expressed in Thousands, Except Ratio Data)

General
For the Year Long - Term Total
Ended June 30 Debt Service Expenditures Ratio
1995 $ 416,756 $ 9,177,980 4.5%
1996 392,130 9,473,403 4.1%
1997 332,127 10,147,728 3.3%
1998 438,029 10,644,432 4.1%
1999 357,698 11,095,291 3.2%
2000 302,708 12,066,754 2.5%
2001 410,058 12,605,995 3.3%
2002 416,619 14,856,420 2.8%
2003 460,256 14,851,736 3.1%
2004 545,642 15,476,332 3.5%
SOURCE: Commonwealth of Kentucky Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports.

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
UNIVERSITY AND COLLEGE FUNDS REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Expressed in Thousands, Except Ratio Data)

Net Revenue

Fiscal Year Available

Ending For Debt Debt Service Coverage

June 30 Service Requirement Ratio
1995 $ 254,402 $ 81,113 3.14
1996 251,153 84,791 2.96
1997 270,837 84,962 3.19
1998 276,395 88,252 3.13
1999 329,681 84,782 3.89
2000 293,988 86,164 341
2001 301,649 83,069 3.63
2002 269,609 66,828 4.03
2003 112,670 53,825 2.09
2004 329,073 54,034 6.09

SOURCE: Commonwealth of Kentucky Comprehensive Annual

Financial Reports; State universities' audited financial statements
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS

FOR CALENDAR YEARS 1994-2003

For the Year Estimated Per Capita Unemployment
Ended December 31 Population Income Rate
1994 3,849,088 18,389 5.4%
1995 3,887,427 19,056 5.4%
1996 3,919,535 19,957 5.6%
1997 3,952,747 20,979 5.4%
1998 3,985,390 22,118 4.6%
1999 4,018,053 22,702 4.5%
2000 4,048,832 24,258 4.1%
2001 4,068,816 24,878 5.4%
2002 4,092,891 25,579 5.6%
2003 4,117,827 26,252 6.2%
SOURCE: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census; U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis;
Kentucky Cabinet for Human Resources
COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
CONSTRUCTION AND BANK DEPOSITS
FOR CALENDAR YEARS 1994-2003
(Expressed in Thousands, Except Number of Units,
Non-Residential Residential
Construction Construction
For the Year Number Number Bank
Ended December 31 of Units Value of Units Value Deposits
1994 10,024 801,728 18,554 $ 1,370,011 37,352,000
1995 10,025 1,247,662 17,625 1,276,432 37,893,000
1996 See Note See Note 18,778 1,484,079 39,769,000
1997 See Note See Note 18,114 1,483,895 38,247,000
1998 See Note See Note 20,640 1,730,505 39,921,000
1999 See Note See Note 21,581 1,909,051 37,173,000
2000 See Note See Note 18,460 1,767,181 39,497,000
2001 See Note See Note 17,685 1,817,684 42,282,000
2002 See Note See Note 19,459 2,080,766 40,092,000
2003 See Note See Note 20,404 2,346,693 34,325,268
SOURCE: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census; Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
NOTE: Beginning January 1996, the Bureau of Census, Building Permits Section has discontinued

collection of Nonresidential Data due to budget reductions.
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

SOURCES OF PERSONAL INCOME
FOR CALENDAR YEARS 1994-2003

(Expressed in Thousands, Except Percent Data)

1994 1995 1996 1997 1998
Source Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent

Farm $ 1,062,592 2.1% 651,984 12% $ 1005924 17% $ 1,089,030 1.9% $ 957,190 1.6%
Agriculture services,

forestry, fisheries

and others 319,445  0.6% 341,495  0.6% 343,124  0.6% 381,650 0.7% 423,380 0.7%
Mining 1,435,725  2.8% 1,322,910 2.4% 1,280,840 2.2% 1,285,732  2.2% 1,348,968  2.2%
Manufacturing 10,975,287  21.2% 11,424,900 21.0% 11,589,170  20.1% 12,115,301  21.0% 12,666,832  20.8%
Construction 2,875,033  5.6% 2,877,756  5.3% 3,076,508  5.3% 3,327,836  5.8% 3,612,018  5.9%
Wholesale and retail

trade 7,355,968  14.2% 7,828,796  14.4% 8,196,534  14.2% 8,799,661 15.3% 9,356,004 15.3%
Finance, insurance and

real estate 2,330,102  4.5% 2,469,422  4.5% 2,638,070  4.6% 2,879,266  5.0% 3,102,800 5.1%
Transportation and

public utilities 3,577,361  6.9% 3,702,916  6.8% 3,923,834  6.8% 4,139,689  7.2% 4,687,916  7.7%
Services 10,454,944  20.2% 11,128,883  20.4% 11,967,410 20.8% 12,756,524  22.1% 13,716,312  22.5%
Government and

government enterprises 9,692,029 18.7% 10,032,371  18.4% 10,424,575 18.1% 10,820,753  18.8% 11,125,965 18.2%
Earnings by Place of Work ~ $ 50,078,486  100.0% 51,781,433 100.0% $ 54,445989 100.0% $ 57,595442 100.0% $ 60,997,385 100.0%

1999 2000 2001 2002* 2003**
Source Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent

Farm $ 730,192 1.1% 1,361,530 2.0% $ 973,207 14% $ 883,000 12% $ 854,000 1.1%
Agriculture services,

forestry, fisheries

and others 462,975  0.7% 502,305 0.7% 521,571  0.7% 521,000 0.7% 383,250 0.5%
Mining 1,350,661  2.1% 1,197,845 1.7% 1,332,006 1.9% 1,382,000 1.9% 1,310,500 1.6%
Manufacturing 13,373,527  20.7% 13,945,732 20.3% 13,636,163  19.3% 13,611,000 18.8% 14,816,000 18.5%
Construction 3,922,877  6.1% 4,196,268  6.1% 4,330,236  6.1% 4,276,000 5.9% 4,821,250 6.0%
Wholesale and retail

trade 10,032,800  15.5% 10,537,792  15.3% 10,699,135 15.2% 11,088,000 15.3% 9,940,250 12.4%
Finance, insurance and

real estate 3,296,512 5.1% 3,690,749  5.4% 3,776,761  5.4% 4,034,000 5.6% 4,962,750 6.2%
Transportation and

public utilities 5,005,048 7.7% 5,337,433 7.8% 5,495,944  7.8% 5,478,000 7.6% 5,023,250 6.3%
Services 14,716,433  22.8% 15,629,585 22.7% 16,507,154  23.4% 17,285,000 23.8% 23,330,250 29.1%
Government and

government enterprises 11,770,589  18.2% 12,452,644 18.1% 13,218,964 18.8% 13,940,000 19.2% 14,686,250 18.3%

Earnings by Place of Work

SOURCE:
NOTE:

$ 64661614 "100.0% $ 68,851,883 100.0% $ 70,491,141 "100.0% $ 72,498,000 100.0%

$~ 80,127,750 ~100.0%

U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis (http://www.bea.gov/bealregional)
Percentages may not add to 100% due to rounding.

* 2002 annual estimates computed with BEA table SQ5 by adding 4 quarters of 2002 and dividing by 4.

** 2003 annual estimates computed with BEA table SQ5N by adding 4 quarters of 2003 and dividing by 4.
Quarterly charts show each quarter as an annualized amount based on amounts to date.

** 2003 amounts are based on the North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) instead of the
Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) system used in previous years. This affects comparability of amounts.
NAICS will be used in the future fiscal years.
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
TOP 10 MANUFACTURERS

(Ranked by Number of Employees;

June 30, 2004

Company

Ford Motor Co.

United Parcel Service, Inc.
Toyota Motor Corp.
General Electric Co.

Delta Airlines

Dana Corp.

Johnson Controls, Inc.
Lexmark International, Inc.
Fidelity Investments
Alcan, Inc.

SOURCE:

2003 Kentucky Directory of Manufacturers, Harris InfoSource in cooperation with the Kentucky Cabinet for Economic Development.
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Number
of
Locations
2
12
4
10
2
14
14
1
1
8

Number
of
Employees

10,900
10,419
8,519
8,227
5,799
5,038
4,088
3,500
2,750
2,400



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
SCHEDULE OF MISCELLANEQOUS STATISTICS
JUNE 30, 2004

Adoption of Kentucky Constitution
Form of Government

Land Area (square miles)

Miles of Highways, Roads and Streets

Police Protection:

Statewide Jurisdiction
Number of Kentucky State Police Posts
Number of Sworn Officers
Number of Other Statewide Agencies
Number of Officers

County Jurisdictions
Number of Sheriffs
Number of Deputies
Number of County Departments
Number of County Officers

Local Jurisdictions
Number of Departments
Number of Sworn Officers

College and Universities
Number of Departments
Number of Sworn Officers

Other law Enforcement/Task Forces/Airport Security/

County Schools Security

Number of Departments
Number of Sworn Officers

Higher Education:

State-Supported Universities and Community and Technical Colleges
Number of Campuses
Number of Full-Time Instructional Faculty
Number of Students, Fall 2003

Private Colleges and Universities
Number of Campuses
Number of Full-Time Instructional Faculty
Number of Students, Fall 2003

State Supported Recreation:
Number of Resort Parks
Number of Recreation Parks
Number of Historic Sites
Area of State Parks (acres)
Number of 2003 Overnight Visitors

Permanent Full-Time Executive Branch Employees

SOURCES: Kentucky Revised Statutes
Kentucky Transportation Cabinet
Kentucky State Police
Kentucky Council on Postsecondary Education
Kentucky Department of Parks
Kentucky Personnel Cabinet
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1792

Legislative, Executive, Judicial
39,650

79,641

16
960

640

120
1,644

143

245
5,193

147

15
200

25
6,623
198,621

21
1,400
30,440

17

24

10
45,137
548,245

34,998
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